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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. At t h i s time, we w i l l go on 

the rec o r d w i t h the r e g u l a r l y scheduled New Mexico O i l 

Conservation Commission meeting f o r February 24, 2009. 

Let the r e c o r d r e f l e c t t h a t Commissioner B a i l e y , 

Commissioner Olson, and Commissioner Fesmire are a l l present. 

We, t h e r e f o r e , have a quorum. And the f i r s t i t e m on the agenda 

t h i s morning i s the adoption of the minutes of the 

January 15, 2009 Commission meeting. These minutes have been 

presented by the Commission s e c r e t a r y . 

Have the members had a chance t o review those 

minutes? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and I move t o 

adopt them. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s there a second? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I ' l l second t h a t . I've read 

them, and I t h i n k they a c c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t our a c t i o n s a t the 

meeting. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the recor d r e f l e c t t h a t the 

Commissioners have reviewed and adopted the minutes. A l l those 

i n favor s i g n i f y by saying, "Aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Aye. Now, l e t the recor d r e f l e c t 

t h a t the Commissioners have reviewed and adopted the minutes. 

They w i l l be signed by the Chairman and conveyed t o the 
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s e c r e t a r y f o r r e c o r d i n g . 

The: next matter before the Commission i s the adoption 

of the annual open meetings r e s o l u t i o n . The meetings 

r e s o l u t i o n hs.s been prepared by the s e c r e t a r y of the Commission 

and c i r c u l a t e d t o the Commissioners f o r review. Have the 

Commissioners had a chance t o review t h i s document? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, I have, and i t ' s my 

understanding t h a t i t i s e x a c t l y the same as l a s t year's. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: With the exception of the dates. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: With the exception of the 

dates. So I move t h a t we adopt them. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s the r e a second t o t h a t ? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I second. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A l l those i n favo r s i g n i f y by 

saying, "Aye." 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Aye. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Aye. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The recor d should r e f l e c t t h a t the 

open meetings r e s o l u t i o n has been adopted by the Commission, 

w i l l be signed by a l l Commissioners, and conveyed t o the 

se c r e t a r y . 

There are two major cases on the Commission docket 

t h i s morning. The i s the d e l i b e r a t i o n i n Case 14255 concerning 

Santa Fe County and G a l i s t e o Basin s p e c i a l r u l e s . And the 

other one i s the -- there's a case w i t h X e r i c . 
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Counsel, do you remember the case number on t h a t one? 

MS. ALTOMARE: 14106, De Novo A p p l i c a t i o n of Xe r i c 

O i l and Gas. 

MR.. FESMIRE: 14106. Those are the two t h a t are 

going t o take the most time today. We also have an executive 

session scheduled t o re c e i v e an update and discuss the appeal 

of the Bass Energy Production Company. At t h i s time, I ' d l i k e 

t o take j u s t a few minutes and discuss scheduling. 

I have got t o be over at the Roundhouse some time 

a f t e r 1:30 t h i s a f t e r n o o n , so we may have t o end. Do the other 

Commissioners have any scheduling c o n f l i c t s today or tomorrow? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: This evening. I've got t o get 

out of here by 6:00. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Given those c o n s t r a i n t s , counsel 

i n the X e r i c case — I understand t h a t counsel f o r the OCD has 

a scheduling c o n f l i c t she has t o address. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. Tomorrow morning I'm not going 

t o be a v a i l a b l e probably u n t i l about 11:00 i n the morning. I'm 

not going t o be able t o change t h a t , and I t h i n k I had 

addressed t h a t w i t h the Chairman and w i t h opposing counsel a 

couple of weeks ago. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So given those c o n s t r a i n t s , 

Counsel. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Chairman, Commissioner B a i l e y , 
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Commissioner Olson, i t ' s at your pleasure. You can see my 

c l i e n t s are here, and we're ready t o proceed today. 

U n f o r t u n a t e l y , tomorrow a f t e r n o o n they do have some scheduling 

c o n f l i c t s t h a t need t o take them back t o t h e i r r e s p e c t i v e 

s t a t e s . 

I d i d t a l k t o Ms. Altomare yesterday afternoon about 

how we should proceed. And w e ' l l proceed a t your pleasure, but 

we may need t o ask f o r an continuance u n t i l another docket i f 

i t looks l i k e your d e l i b e r a t i o n s — which I don't mean t o rush 

or put a l i m i t on — but i f i t looks l i k e t hey're going t o take 

the m a j o r i t y of the day and then i f you're going t o need t o be 

gone. However you t h i n k we should proceed. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k what we're going t o do i s 

go ahead and do the Xeric case f i r s t and take i t t h i s morning. 

And a f t e r t h a t , w e ' l l f i g u r e out where we are time-wise and 

proceed l i k e t h a t . 

So at t h i s time, we w i l l go ahead and c a l l Case 

No. 14106, the De Novo A p p l i c a t i o n o f the New Mexico O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r a Compliance Order Against X e r i c O i l 

and Gas Corp o r a t i o n . 

Counsel, would you make your announcements, please. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Mikal Altomare on be h a l f of the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n . I have one witness here i n person and 

one witness by a f f i d a v i t . 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Good morning, Commissioners. Ocean 
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Munds-Dry w i t h the law f i r m of Holland & Hart here r e p r e s e n t i n g 

Xe r i c O i l and Gas Corporation t h i s morning, and I have t h r e e 

witnesses. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Before we proceed, 

Ms. Munds-Dry, I understand t h a t you have a p r e l i m i n a r y motion 

i n t h i s cause. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes. Excuse me f o r a second. I ' l l 

get comfortable here. 

We f i l e d a motion yesterday a f t e r n o o n t o exclude i n 

whole or i n p a r t the testimony of Mr. Sanchez, who the D i v i s i o n 

has i n d i c a t e d t h a t they i n t e n d t o c a l l today. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Before we proceed w i t h a c t u a l argument 

on t h a t , I would l i k e t o make a c l a r i f i c a t i o n f o r the r e c o r d . 

I was not served by hand-delivery as i n d i c a t e d on t h a t motion 

yesterday a f t e r n o o n . I received t h i s f i r s t t h i n g t h i s morning 

and have not had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o respond i n substance i n any 

way, shape, or form. 

And so I j u s t wanted t o make a re c o r d of t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I apologize f o r t h a t . We d i d b r i n g 

the motion over yesterday a f t e r n o o n . And i t was, as I 

understood, hand-delivered, but I don't know what happened 

a f t e r i t came here. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Apparently, the runner came. I was 

not i n my o f f i c e at the time, although my l i g h t was on. I was 
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here u n t i l almost 6:00. The runner, then, i n s t r u c t e d the 

r e c e p t i o n i s t t o give i t t o me, which I don't t h i n k they have 

the a u t h o r i t y t o do. 

Ms. Munds-Dry i s w e l l aware t h a t I do almost 

e v e r y t h i n g e l e c t r o n i c a l l y , and n o t h i n g was f o l l o w e d up w i t h a t 

t h a t time, e l e c t r o n i c a l l y or otherwise. I was not aware t h a t 

any motion was pending u n t i l t h i s morning. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I do apologize f o r t h a t . I don't 

know what happened w i t h the runner. So w e ' l l have t o address 

t h a t w i t h our o f f i c e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, i s t h a t a l l you 

have t o say i n support of the motion? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: No, s i r . Just a few b r i e f p o i n t s . I 

won't belabor i t i n any way. Our challenge i s t h a t w i t h 

Mr. Sanchez's testimony, what we w i l l understand he w i l l 

t e s t i f y about, he has no personal knowledge of any of the 

conta c t s , phone c a l l s , or meetings t h a t took place between 

Xe r i c and the D i v i s i o n . 

Our challenge w i t h t h a t i s not t h a t we disagree 

n e c e s s a r i l y w i t h what he i s going t o t e s t i f y about, but i t ' s 

the witness t h a t ' s being c a l l e d . I nstead of c a l l i n g d i s t r i c t 

s t a f f who had the d i r e c t communication, or even, u n f o r t u n a t e l y , 

having counsel being put i n the place as a witness, she i s 

in s t e a d -- and d i s t r i c t s t a f f has i n s t e a d -- i s having t o 

re p o r t what took place d u r i n g those meetings. And then 
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Mr. Sanchez, i n t u r n , i s r e p o r t i n g as t o what took place t h e r e 

according t o counsel from her notes and from what she's 

re p o r t e d . That i s , i n f a c t , hearsay. 

And I r e a l i z e t h a t you do have d i s c r e t i o n t o f o l l o w 

the r u l e s of evidence or how you choose t o f o l l o w them, but 

t h a t i s our concern today. I n s t e a d of being able t o cross 

Ms. Altomare or d i s t r i c t s t a f f , we are having t o be put i n a 

p o s i t i o n t o cross Mr. Sanchez, which he was never d i r e c t l y 

i n v o l v e d i n any o f those conversations. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, I r e a l i z e t h a t 

you've had very l i t t l e time t o prepare a response, but do you 

have one? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I do. F i r s t of a l l , j u s t a 

p r e l i m i n a r y matter, I would o b j e c t t o the motion i n i t s 

e n t i r e t y because of the lateness of i t s f i l i n g . I t h i n k i t ' s 

i n a p p r o p r i a t e t o be f i l i n g a t such a l a t e time. 

S u b s t a n t i v e l y , the r u l e s of evidence, j u s t by v i r t u e 

of the f a c t o f the way t h a t a d m i n i s t r a t i v e proceedings proceed 

and the way t h a t r e g u l a t o r y agencies operate, do not apply i n 

f u l l f o r c e , i n l a r g e p a r t , I t h i n k , because of the way t h a t our 

r e g u l a t o r y agency i s s t r u c t u r e d . 

But Mr. Sanchez i s an example of t h a t . He i s the 

enforcement compliance manager. He manages and oversees the 

enforcement and compliance program. He has the knowledge, the 

c o l l e c t i v e knowledge o f many of the d i f f e r e n t d i s t r i c t s as they 
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r e p o r t on the d i f f e r e n t i n s p e c t i o n s and v i o l a t i o n s t h a t come 

h i s way. He i s here as a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the OCD and of the 

enforcement and compliance program and i s speaking on b e h a l f of 

the D i v i s i o n and on b e h a l f of the d i s t r i c t s and the i n d i v i d u a l s 

over which he supervises a t the time t h a t he i s p r o v i d i n g t h i s 

testimony. 

I n a d d i t i o n , he was here a t the time of the l a s t 

hearing. There was s i g n i f i c a n t testimony p r o v i d e d a t t h a t time 

by both of the X e r i c p r i n c i p a l s . A great deal of statements by 

a p a r t y opponent, i f you w i l l , t h a t are exceptions t o the 

hearsay r u l e were made a t t h a t time r e g a r d i n g a l l o f the 

s p e c i f i c meetings about which Ms. Munds-Dry i s speaking. And I 

t h i n k he's p e r f e c t l y able t o t e s t i f y r e g a r d i n g those 

i n t e r a c t i o n s as w e l l . 

There were meetings t h a t took place i n v o l v i n g myself, 

other i n d i v i d u a l s t h a t were d i r e c t l y i n v o l v e d i n i n s p e c t i o n s 

and i n t e r a c t i o n s w i t h the Xeri c p r i n c i p a l s and t h e i r employees 

as the i n v e s t i g a t i o n s and the e f f o r t s of the OCD went forward 

i n attempts t o t r y and regain compliance from t h i s operator. 

Mr. Sanchez i s the person t h a t heads up those e f f o r t s and i s 

the most a p p r o p r i a t e person at t h i s time t o t e s t i f y as t o 

c o l l e c t i v e l y those e f f o r t s . 

So, given the f a c t t h a t the r u l e s of evidence don't 

apply i n f u l l f o r c e and the d i s c r e t i o n of the Commission t o 

allow such testimony and the value of h i s testimony, we would 
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ask t h a t t h i s motion be denied. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. Munds-Dry, given the 

circumstances of the motion and the f a c t t h a t , you know, we do 

have relaxed r u l e s here, I'm going t o go ahead and o v e r r u l e the 

o b j e c t i o n w i t h o u t p r e j u d i c e w i t h your r i g h t t o r a i s e the 

hearsay o b j e c t i o n a t a f u t u r e time. Okay? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Sure. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: With t h a t , Ms. Altomare, would you 

have your witnesses be sworn, please. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. Again, the very f i r s t e x h i b i t i s 

from one of our witnesses, which i s the a f f i d a v i t o f Dorothy 

P h i l l i p s who i s t e s t i f y i n g e x c l u s i v e l y by a f f i d a v i t . The other 

witness i s Daniel Sanchez. He i s the one t h a t needs t o be 

sworn. 

DANIEL SANCHEZ 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, do you have an 

opening statement? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. Just give me one minute t o get 

my -- I d i d n ' t expect t o be going r i g h t away. I do have one 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n t o make on the e x h i b i t l i s t . I r e a l i z e d t h a t I 

swapped E x h i b i t No. 7 and E x h i b i t No. 10. They both are dated 

September 3rd, but they are — they should be reversed. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t what? 
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MS. ALTOMARE-: E x h i b i t 7 and E x h i b i t 10, the two 

September 3rd OCD o n l i n e l i s t s . . One i s the f i n a n c i a l assurance 

compliance l i s t and one i s the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t . And I 

a c c i d e n t a l l y swapped those two. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. Altomare, how do you 

want t o handle t h a t ? Do you want t o leave them numbered the 

way they are and j u s t r e f e r t o them as the number? 

MS. ALTOMARE: They are a c t u a l l y l a b e l e d c o r r e c t l y i n 

the packet. They are j u s t l a b e l e d i n c o r r e c t l y on the sheet, 

the cover sheet. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. W i l l you c a l l the 

Commission's a t t e n t i o n t o t h a t f a c t when i t becomes p e r t i n e n t ? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. I apologize. I've been thrown 

f o r a loop t h i s morning, so give me one second t o l o c a t e --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Take your time. We have 

no t h i n g -- we have other t h i n g s t o do, but n o t h i n g b e t t e r . 

Would you l i k e t o take a shor t recess? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t h i n k I might need t o . I apologize. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't we take a f i v e - m i n u t e 

recess . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I'm r e a l l y s o r r y . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: No problem. 

[Discussion o f f the record.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s time, we w i l l go back on 

the rec o r d i n Case No. 14106. 
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Ms. Altomare, I b e l i e v e t h a t you were about t o begin 

the examination o f your f i r s t w itness, Mr. Sanchez? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t h i n k I was going t o do a b r i e f 

opening, i f I'm s t i l l p e r m i t t e d t o do so a f t e r my l i t t l e j o g . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I ' l l t r y and keep i t r e l a t i v e l y b r i e f . 

E s s e n t i a l l y , t h i s has been an ongoing o r d e a l w i t h 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r o p erator through i t s many i n c a r n a t i o n s f o r over 

a decade. This operator has been a problem operator i n 

New Mexico. 

The p a r t i c u l a r d i s t r i c t i n which i t operates has been 

p e r s i s t e n t l y t r y i n g t o get compliance from t h i s o p erator. The 

w e l l s are r o u t i n e l y imposing environmental hazards, r o u t i n e l y 

being out of compliance, being s h u t - i n , being i n a c t i v e . The 

signs are o f t e n out of compliance. 

Many new operators -- new people have come i n and 

taken over the o p e r a t o r s h i p . I t seems l i k e w i t h each new 

i n c a r n a t i o n of Xe r i c there's renewed hope, and yet the problems 

seem t o p e r s i s t i n e x a c t l y the same f a s h i o n . 

Such i s the case i n t h i s s i t u a t i o n . Almost -- -- --

e x a c t l y a year ago, the c u r r e n t o p e r a t o r s h i p changed hands; 

q u i t e i r o n i c a l l y , the exact same date we f i l e d the a p p l i c a t i o n 

i n t h i s matter. We have been making g r e a t e f f o r t s t o t r y and 

work w i t h t h i s o p erator. However, a t the time t h a t we f i l e d 

t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n , t h e r e were a t o t a l of 88 w e l l s t h a t were out 
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of compliance, e i t h e r w i t h what was f o r m a l l y known as Rule 201, 

meaning t h a t the w e l l s were i n a c t i v e a t o t a l o f one year plus 

90 days, or t h a t t h e r e were a d d i t i o n a l bonding owed on the 

w e l l s or both. 

I n a l o t of cases since t h a t time I t h i n k the net 

e f f e c t o f the e f f o r t s of the operator i s t h a t a t o t a l of seven 

w e l l s are now i n compliance. So I t h i n k they now have a t o t a l 

of 81 w e l l s out of compliance, which f o r a year's work i s not 

a l l t h a t g r e a t . Some of the s i t e s are -- have j u s t been l e f t 

t o f e s t e r . There are some environmental issues t h a t are not 

n e c e s s a r i l y addressed by t h i s complaint b u t are of a concern. 

This operator has a h a b i t o f making promises and not 

f o l l o w i n g through. And at t h i s p o i n t i n time, we simply j u s t 

want an order r e q u i r i n g them t o p l u g t h e i r w e l l s and be done 

w i t h i t already. Because we're t i r e d of g i v i n g them new cracks 

at coming i n t o compliance. 

So a t t h i s p o i n t i n time, we are asking f o r an order 

asking -- r e q u i r i n g them t o pl u g a l l of the w e l l s s p e c i f i e d i n 

the order, r e q u i r i n g i n the i n t e r i m they post a l l of the bonds 

t h a t are due on those w e l l s u n t i l each of those s i t e s i s 

plugged and released. And t h a t they be r e q u i r e d t o pay a 

pe n a l t y assessment i n twice the amount which was o r i g i n a l l y 

ordered i n the u n d e r l y i n g hearing, simply because of the amount 

of e f f o r t s t h a t have gone i n t o t h i s . This has dragged on f o r 

years, e s s e n t i a l l y , and i t ' s j u s t i n the l a s t year the amount 
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of e f f o r t t h a t has gone i n t o t h i s case i s excessive. 

We are also asking i n t h i s case t h a t they be r e q u i r e d 

t o come back t o the next Commission he a r i n g i n A p r i l w i t h a 

st a t u s r e p o r t f o r the Commission, r e p o r t i n g t o the Commission 

what they are doing t o come i n t o compliance, and t h a t they 

again be r e q u i r e d t o r e t u r n back a t the next Commission hearing 

a f t e r the l a s t deadline set by the Commission t o give a f u l l 

r e p o r t as t o the completed compliance w i t h the Commission's 

order. 

I t h i n k t h a t once you hear a l l the testimony and the 

evidence, i t w i l l become c l e a r as t o why the OCD has go t t e n t o 

the p o i n t where they are asking f o r t h i s k i n d of r e l i e f . 

And a t t h i s time, I w i l l c a l l the witness, Daniel 

Sanchez. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. Munds-Dry, would you 

l i k e t o make an opening, or would you l i k e t o reserve i t ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: May I reserve i t f o r my case? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, ma'am. 

Ms. Altomare, why don't you go ahead and begin your 

examination of Mr. Sanchez. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Can you s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the record, 

please. 

A. Daniel Sanchez. 
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Q. And by whom are you employed, Mr. Sanchez? 

A. The O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

Q. And what i s your f u l l t i t l e w i t h the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Compliance and enforcement manager. 

Q. How long have you h e l d t h a t p o s i t i o n ? 

A. For over f o u r years now. 

Q. Okay. And i n t h a t p o s i t i o n you oversee, t r a i n , 

and supervise a l l o f the d i f f e r e n t f i e l d o f f i c e s w i t h the 

enforcement and compliance program? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the requirements of what 

was p r e v i o u s l y designated Rule 201 but has been now 

redesignated as 19.15.5.9? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And what does t h a t r e q u i r e of operators? 

A. Operators are r e q u i r e d a f t e r a w e l l has been 

i n a c t i v e f o r over 15 months t o e i t h e r r e s t o r e t h a t w e l l t o 

pro d u c t i o n or i n j e c t i o n , t o p r o p e r l y p l u g and abandoned i t , or 

get an approved temporary abandonment s t a t u s . 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h requirements of what 

was p r e v i o u s l y designated as Rule 101 (B) and has now been 

redesignated 19.15.8.9.C? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And what does t h a t r e q u i r e of operators? 

A. That any s t a t e or fee w e l l t h a t has been i n a c t i v e 
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f o r more than two years r e q u i r e s a d d i t i o n a l bonding, s i n g l e 

w e l l f i n a n c i a l assurance. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the requirements of the 

p r e v i o u s l y designated Rule 1115 now r e f e r r e d t o as 19.5.7.24? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. And what does t h a t r e q u i r e of operators? 

A. Operators must r e p o r t p r o d u c t i o n on a monthly 

basis f o r a l l completed w e l l s . 

Q. And before we get i n t o the s p e c i f i c s of the 

a p p l i c a t i o n f i l e d by the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n i n March of 

2008, g e n e r a l l y , since you've been w i t h the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n , what has been your experience or general impression 

regarding the operator known as X e r i c O i l and Gas? 

A. Through v i s i t s t o the Hobbs D i s t r i c t O f f i c e , 

going out t o the f i e l d and seeing some of the s i t e s myself, 

they've been w i l l i n g t o make promises, t o clean up w e l l s , get 

them plugged p r o p e r l y , do s p e c i f i c work t h a t was r e q u i r e d from 

the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e . Yet, we have s t i l l not seen any of those 

promises r e a l l y take place. 

Q. Okay. And what i s your impression r e g a r d i n g 

t h e i r h i s t o r y of repeated v i o l a t i o n s ? 

A. They f a i l e d t o meet any of the requirements set 

out by the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n up t o t h i s date. 

Q. Okay. And a t the time the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d 

on March 5th of 2008, what was the s t a t u s of X e r i c O i l and Gas 
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a t t h a t p o i n t i n time? 

A. Out of 110 w e l l s , they had 88 of those w e l l s 

e i t h e r i n a c t i v e or i n v i o l a t i o n of the f i n a n c i a l assurance 

requirements. 

Q. Okay. And a t t h a t p o i n t , we d i d n ' t r e a l i z e i t , 

but they were a c t u a l l y -- i t was a c t u a l l y the same day t h a t 

Mr. H i r s h f i e l d , St. John, and C o l l i e r were becoming o f f i c i a l l y 

i n v o l v e d w i t h X e r i c O i l and Gas; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How many of Xer i c ' s o i l and gas w e l l s were 

showing as i n a c t i v e and t h e r e f o r e i n v i o l a t i o n of Rule 201 a t 

the time the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d ? 

A. 80 w e l l s . 

Q. So 80 out of 110. Okay. And again, a t t h a t 

p o i n t , we were basing t h i s on p r o d u c t i o n r e p o r t e d by the 

operator, so e i t h e r Rule 201 or 1115 they would have been i n 

v i o l a t i o n of? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And these are the 80 w e l l s t h a t are s p e c i f i c a l l y 

i d e n t i f i e d a t Section 4, paragraph 20 of the OCD's a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how many of Xer i c ' s w e l l s were i n v i o l a t i o n 

of the f i n a n c i a l assurance requirement at the time the 

a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d ? 

A. 69 of the 110. 
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Q. And these are the 69 w e l l s s p e c i f i c a l l y 

i d e n t i f i e d a t Section 2, paragraph 11 of the OCD's a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And once the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , the 

hear i n g was scheduled f o r A p r i l 17th, 2008? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. What, i f any, response from X e r i c was rec e i v e d 

f o l l o w i n g the f i l i n g of the a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. The only response was two days p r i o r t o t h a t 

h e aring where X e r i c c a l l e d and asked t o discuss the case w i t h 

OCD. 

Q. And you weren't p e r s o n a l l y i n v o l v e d i n t h i s 

telephone c a l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That i s r i g h t . 

Q. But you are -- e x p l a i n f o r the Commission how you 

are aware of the content of t h a t telephone conference. 

A. Being i n charge o f the v a r i o u s d i s t r i c t o f f i c e s , 

I do get r e g u l a r r e p o r t s from my d i s t r i c t s u p ervisors and 

s t a f f . I v i s i t the o f f i c e s on a r e g u l a r b a s i s , so they keep me 

up t o date on issues t h a t are coming up, e s p e c i a l l y when i t 

concerns an upcoming hearing. 

Q. Okay. But t h a t telephone c a l l f o r August 15th 

was a c t u a l l y d i r e c t e d t o Santa Fe; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And the telephone c a l l t h a t took place on 
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August 15th was between whom? . 

A. I t was Joe Cook, who was the owner a t the time or 

previous t o the March 15th t r a n s f e r . And I b e l i e v e i t was --

Mr. C o l l i e r was i n v o l v e d i n t h a t phone c a l l as w e l l . 

Q. And what i s your understanding o f what was 

discussed at the telephone conference? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Mr. Chairman, I'm going t o renew my 

o b j e c t i o n a t t h i s time. Now we're g e t t i n g i n t o hearsay 

t e r r i t o r y . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. Munds-Dry, I'm going t o 

go ahead and o v e r r u l e t h a t o b j e c t i o n because t h i s i s w i t h i n the 

scope of Mr. Sanchez's employment. And I r e a l i z e t h a t i s not a 

t r a d i t i o n a l hearsay exception, but then our r u l e s -- I t h i n k i t 

has become s o r t o f an exception here. 

I f you want t o e i t h e r o b j e c t when you t h i n k i t ' s 

p e r t i n e n t or j u s t leave a running o b j e c t i o n , w e ' l l a l l o w t h a t . 

You can do e i t h e r one. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I f I j u s t leave a running o b j e c t i o n 

t o save us a l l some time, I w i l l do i t . Thank you. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): So again, Mr. Sanchez, what 

i s your understanding of what was discussed at the telephone 

conference on A p r i l 15th? 

A. The OCD r e i t e r a t e d i t s concerns about the v a r i o u s 

v i o l a t i o n s o f r u l e s , the i n a c t i v e w e l l s , the la c k of f i n a n c i a l 

assurance. Also, Mr. C o l l i e r confirmed t h a t he was aware of 
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the i n a c t i v e w e l l bonds issue and planned t o work w i t h both the 

f i n a n c i a l assurance a d m i n i s t r a t o r and the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e s t o 

do the r e q u i r e d bonds, get those r e q u i r e d bonds posted. 

Mr. C o l l i e r also agreed i f the he a r i n g were t o be 

continued t h a t he would come and meet i n person w i t h OCD and 

put together a p l a n t o s t a r t coming i n t o compliance. 

Q. Okay. And i s i t your understanding t h a t the 

A p r i l 17th he a r i n g was continued as requested by Mr. C o l l i e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And d i d X e r i c f o l l o w through as promised and come 

i n t o meet w i t h the OCD p r i o r t o t h a t next hearing s e t t i n g t h a t 

was scheduled i n May? 

A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. Okay. Was a meeting u l t i m a t e l y scheduled, 

though? 

A. Yes. We f i n a l l y confirmed a meeting f o r 

June 13th, I b e l i e v e i t was. 

Q. Okay. And do you r e c a l l testimony from the l a s t 

hearing by one of the Xeric p r i n c i p a l s r e f l e c t i n g t h a t 

Mr. C o l l i e r was r e p r e s e n t i n g X e r i c a t the time t h a t he attended 

t h a t A p r i l 15th telephone conference? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were you able t o a t t e n d the June 13th hear i n g , 

June 13th meeting w i t h the Xeri c i n d i v i d u a l s when they came in? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. The one t h a t — 

A. Oh, f o r t h a t one, no. I was out of town again. 

Q. Okay. But t h a t was conducted i n person a t the 

OCD o f f i c e s i n Santa Fe, r i g h t ? 

A. I n Santa Fe, yes. 

Q. What was your understanding of what was discussed 

at the June meeting w i t h X e r i c and OCD? 

A. X e r i c assured the OCD t h a t i t intended t o come 

i n t o compliance as soon as p o s s i b l e . They discussed p u t t i n g a 

plan t o g e t h e r assessing the w e l l s and determining a 

p r i o r i t i z a t i o n of those w e l l s t o get them back i n t o compliance. 

And they agreed t o prepare a general plan o f a c t i o n 

and corresponding a n t i c i p a t e d t i m e l i n e f o r the OCD t o review. 

And t h a t would be done before the next hearing, which was 

scheduled f o r J u l y , J u l y 10th. 

Q. Okay. And, again, t h a t hearing was attended by 

Mr. C o l l i e r as w e l l as Mr. H i r s h f i e l d and Mr. St. John? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. What concerns d i d the OCD express a t t h a t 

hearing? 

A. They r e i t e r a t e d t h e i r concerns about the high 

l e v e l of w e l l s t h a t were out of compliance, e i t h e r i n a c t i v e or 

w i t h the f i n a n c i a l assurances. They advised X e r i c t h a t 

Mr. L a r r y H i l l , the d i s t r i c t s u p e r v i s o r , should be. contacted, 

t h a t he had a great deal of i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t would probably be 
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h e l p f u l t o X e r i c w i t h the new ownership t h a t would help them 

s t a r t , you know, get the p r i o r i t i z a t i o n i n place t o s t a r t 

working on those w e l l s . 

Q. And j u s t so there's not a whole l o t o f confusion, 

the operators a c t u a l l y know L a r r y H i l l as Buddy H i l l , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. Larry's nickname i s Buddy. 

Q. Just t o be c l e a r . And what was one of the t h i n g s 

t h a t OCD emphasized a t t h a t h earing -- I mean, at t h a t meeting? 

I'm s o r r y . 

A. B a s i c a l l y , communication, which we p r e t t y much 

emphasize w i t h a l l o p e r a t o r s . Some of our bi g g e s t reasons t h a t 

we a c t u a l l y have t o get t h i s f a r i n t o a s i t u a t i o n i s because 

the operator f a i l e d t o contact e i t h e r the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e or 

Santa Fe. 

With good communication, most of these problems go 

away before they ever get t h i s f a r . And we j u s t s t r e s s the 

importance o f t h a t t o keep i n touch w i t h the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e 

and w i t h Santa Fe. 

Q. Okay. And t o your knowledge, d i d X e r i c submit 

the promised plan and t i m e l i n e f o r OCD review p r i o r t o t h a t 

J u l y h e aring date? 

A. No, they d i d n ' t . 

Q. Okay. What, i f any, contact was made i n Ju l y by 

Xer i c or t h e i r counsel? 

A. Counsel contacted OCD counsel t o l e t them know 
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t h a t i t would be forthcoming. 

Q. To l e t OCD know? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what was the reason t h a t was given? 

A. They were s t i l l working w i t h the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , 

and Buddy H i l l was t r y i n g t o put to g e t h e r t h a t r e p o r t . 

Q. So as of J u l y the 1st? 

A. That was J u l y 1 s t , yes. As of J u l y 30th, t h e r e 

was s t i l l n o t h i n g received from X e r i c . E-mails were sent t o 

Xeric's counsel seeing when t h a t l i s t was going t o come i n . 

And on August 15th, 2008, X e r i c f i n a l l y submitted 

t h a t s t a t u s update. 

Q. Okay. At t h i s time, I ' d l i k e you t o t u r n t o 

E x h i b i t 11 i n your packet. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And i s t h i s the August 15th r e p o r t t h a t was 

received from Xeric? 

A. Yes. I t was dated August 14th and was re c e i v e d 

at OCD on the 15th, yes. 

Q. Was the update p l a n r e c e i v e d on August 15th 

s u f f i c i e n t ? Did i t meet w i t h the exceptions o f OCD based on 

the p r i o r discussions w i t h Xeric? 

A. No, i t d i d n o t . 

Q. And why not? 

A. I t covered some w e l l s , but some of those w e l l s 
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weren't p a r t of the o r i g i n a l l i s t of w e l l s t h a t the OCD had 

concerns about. And i t d i d n ' t say an y t h i n g about the complete 

l i s t t h a t was given t o them. 

Q. Okay. 

A. So i t j u s t was i n s u f f i c i e n t i n terms of l e t t i n g 

us know how they were going t o deal w i t h a l l of the issues t h a t 

we had w i t h them. 

Q. Okay. And d i d the s t a t u s update and plan o f 

a c t i o n p r o v i d e any s o r t of a time frame e i t h e r f o r tasks t h a t 

had already been completed or f o r those t h a t i t a n t i c i p a t e d t o 

complete, t h a t X e r i c a n t i c i p a t e d completing? 

A. I t had some tasks t h a t were complete and t h a t 

were t o be completed, but i t was very minimal. 

Q. Okay. Were any dates or any s o r t of 

p r i o r i t i z a t i o n or time frame p r o v i d e d w i t h i n the body of t h a t 

update plan? 

A. No. 

Q. Was any documentations or i n f o r m a t i o n produced 

along w i t h the update f o r the purpose of r e b u t t i n g the 

presumption of i n a c t i v i t y f o r e i t h e r of the p r e v i o u s l y 

designated Rules 101 or 201 t h a t are a t issue i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r case? 

A. No. Just the paper t h a t was submitted. That's 

a l l t h a t was submitted, n o t h i n g e l s e . 

Q. I ' d l i k e you t o , a t t h i s p o i n t , t u r n t o 
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E x h i b i t No. 4 i n your packet, which I b e l i e v e i s a l e t t e r dated 

August 15th. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And can you describe the purpose f o r t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. Okay. This was a c t u a l l y August 21st. 

Q. I'm s o r r y . August 21st, r a t h e r , addressing the 

r e p o r t o f August 15th. 

A. Yes. And i t was sent out reg a r d i n g the 

shortcomings of the s t a t u s r e p o r t , b a s i c a l l y . I t o u t l i n e d and 

summarized i n t e r a c t i o n s between the OCD and Xeric l e a d i n g up t o 

the submission of the s t a t u s update. 

I t i d e n t i f i e d what OCD viewed t o be d e f i c i e n c i e s i n 

the s t a t u s update and i n v i t e d X e r i c t o submit a d d i t i o n a l 

i n f o r m a t i o n or data p r i o r t o the scheduled hearing of 

September 4 t h . 

Q. And t o your knowledge, was any a d d i t i o n a l data or 

i n f o r m a t i o n r e ceived from X e r i c i n response t o t h i s l e t t e r 

p r i o r t o the scheduled hearing o f September 4th? 

A. No. 

Q. So the hearing d i d proceed on September 4, 2008; 

i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I ' d l i k e you at t h i s time t o t u r n t o E x h i b i t 7 

and E x h i b i t 10. And, again, these e x h i b i t s should be p r o p e r l y 

i d e n t i f i e d i n your packet, although they are not p r o p e r l y 
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i d e n t i f i e d on your cover sheet t o your packet. 

I f you could i d e n t i f y these documents f o r the record, 

Mr. Sanchez? 

A. Okay. E x h i b i t No. 7 i s going t o be the i n a c t i v e 

w e l l a d d i t i o n a l f i n a n c i a l assurance r e p o r t which was generated 

from OCD Online. 

Q. And these numbers are generated i n the r e g u l a r 

course o f OCD business? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the f i g u r e s are c a l c u l a t e d based on the data 

t h a t i s submitted by the o p e r a t o r ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And i t i s p u b l i c access, p u b l i c record? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And E x h i b i t 10 i s what? 

A. E x h i b i t No. 10 i s the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t f o r 

Xe r i c , and t h i s i s showing t h a t they have 110 w e l l s , and the r e 

were 82 i n a c t i v e as June 1, 2007. And t h i s r e p o r t was p u l l e d 

on September 3rd of 2008/ p r i o r t o t h a t h e a r i n g . 

Q. Okay. And, again, the same question : These are 

p u b l i c documents based on data submitted by the operators? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. And they are maintained i n the r e g u l a r course of 

OCD business? 

A. Yes, they were. 
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Q. And so those two- documents r e f l e c t the s t a t u s of 

Xer i c O i l and Gas a t the time of the hearing on 

September 4 t h , 2008? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Moving on, i f I could d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o 

E x h i b i t No. 2. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you recognize t h i s document or t h i s packet of 

documents? 

A. Yeah. These are sundry forms, Form C-103s, t h a t 

were submitted by X e r i c . 

Q. Okay. And these were a c t u a l l y l a b e l e d E x h i b i t C 

i n the previous hearing and submitted as an e x h i b i t by X e r i c ; 

i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And these are not a c t u a l l y f i l e d sundries; 

i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, could you e x p l a i n 

t h a t these are not a c t u a l l y f i l e d sundries? These are sundries 

t h a t X e r i c prepared but d i d n ' t f i l e ? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yeah. That's was I was — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That's your next question? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yeah. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Excuse me. Let's s t r a i g h t e n t h a t 

out. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Can you summarize the 

importance o f t h i s packet of sundries, please? 

A. These were sundries t h a t were meant as n o t i c e of 

i n t e n t t o perform remedial work on these w e l l s . They were put 

together and prov i d e d t o the OCD, but they were never a c t u a l l y , 

I guess, put i n t o the system. 

Q. Okay. And do you r e c a l l testimony p r o v i d e d by 

Mr. H i r s h f i e l d a t the D i v i s i o n h e a r i n g s t a t i n g t h a t X e r i c 

intended t o f i l e these sundries e i t h e r the date of the hea r i n g 

or the end of t h a t week on September 4th, 2008? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t o your knowledge, d i d Xeri c ever f i l e any of 

these sundries t h a t they had prepared and submitted as an 

e x h i b i t ? 

A. No, they d i d n ' t . 

Q. And the r e are sundries f o r ten d i f f e r e n t w e l l s ; 

i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And a l l of these w e l l s are f o r e i t h e r the Crosby 

Deep or the Gregory leases operated by X e r i c O i l and Gas? 

A. Yes. 

Q. For thr e e of the ten w e l l s , however, they d i d 

f i l e f e d e r a l sundries t h a t were s i m i l a r i n nature; i s t h a t 
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r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. Okay. Let me go ahead and d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n 

a t t h i s time t o E x h i b i t 6. 

A. Okay. 

Q. What does t h i s packet of m a t e r i a l s represent? 

A. E x h i b i t 6 i s a l i s t of w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r i e s 

f o r , I b e l i e v e , there's 10 w e l l s , those t e n w e l l s t h a t were on 

those sundries, the C-103s. They also i n c l u d e p i c t u r e s of the 

w e l l s i t e s . 

Q. Okay. So t h i s i s recent c u r r e n t statuses f o r 

these ten wells ? 

A. Yeah. These i n s p e c t i o n s were taken on 

February 6th a couple of weeks ago. 

Q. Okay. And who was the i n s p e c t o r w i t h the OCD who 

conducted these i n s p e c t i o n s ? 

A. Mark Whitaker out of the Hobbs D i s t r i c t O f f i c e . 

Q. And have you had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o discuss these 

i n s p e c t i o n s w i t h Mr. Whitaker? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And was he one of the in s p e c t o r s working under 

your s u p e r v i s i o n as a compliance and enforcement manager w i t h 

the OCD? 

A. Yes, he i s . 

Q. And were these i n s p e c t i o n s , r e p o r t s , and 
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photographs documenting these i n s p e c t i o n s completed and taken 

i n the course o f Mark's r e g u l a r d u t i e s as a f i e l d i n s p e c t o r 

w i t h the Hobbs D i s t r i c t O f f i c e ? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. Are these records kept i n the r e g u l a r course o f 

OCD business? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Do the r e p o r t s and photographs r e f l e c t Mark's 

observations on February 6th, 2009, regarding these t e n w e l l s ? 

A. Yes, they do. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o , at t h i s time, go ahead and work 

through these ten w e l l s beginning w i t h -- I t h i n k I tabbed them 

a l l f o r -- I t h i n k t h i s i s f o r Counsel as w e l l — beginning 

w i t h 6-A. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I t should be the Crosby Deep No. 1. 

A. Okay. This w e l l , the i n s p e c t i o n r e p o r t claims 

the w e l l i s not plugged, there's no recor d of a pressure t e s t , 

and t h a t he took p i c t u r e s . And then the p i c t u r e s , the f i r s t 

one, of course, i s showing the w e l l s i g n , X e r i c O i l and Gas 

Corporation. 

The next p i c t u r e i s a p i c t u r e of the wellhead. 

There's a p i c t u r e of the s i t e , a d d i t i o n a l equipment on s i t e , 

and j u s t an o v e r a l l p i c t u r e of the s i t e a f t e r t h a t . 

Q. Okay. This going back t o the very f i r s t o f 
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the page f o r the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y , t h i s w e l l had been 

s h u t - i n since 2000; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And, a c t u a l l y , i n 2005, a n o t i c e of i n t e n t t o 

plu g and abandon was approved by the Feds i n 2005? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. So t h i s w e l l has been i n a c t i v e f o r some time; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And a t t h i s p o i n t i n time, i t does appear t h a t 

there's no a c t i v i t y going on? 

A. No a c t i v i t y . The next one i s another Crosby Deep 

w e l l and the same date, February 6, 2009, f o r the i n s p e c t i o n . 

That shows t h a t the w e l l was i d l e . 

"No fl o w l i n e s connected t o the wellhead. O i l 

seeping from wellhead. Rods stacked out i n t u b i n g . The sub 

cable also s t i c k i n g out of wellhead. Location has been scraped 

and l e v e l e d . P i p i n g and other junk metal n o r t h of w e l l . Large 

excavation on the east side of l o c a t i o n . O i l - s t a i n e d s o i l on 

NW corner of l o c a t i o n . " 

And he took p i c t u r e s . 

Q. So, i n a d d i t i o n on t h i s case, i n a d d i t i o n t o the 

i n a c t i v i t y , t h e r e were a c t u a l l y some environmental issues going 

on at t h i s s i t e ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. So there's d e b r i s and s t a i n e d s o i l and some 

l e a k i n g going on? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t looks l i k e , l o o k i n g a t the w e l l i n s p e c t i o n 

h i s t o r y , t h a t the l e a k i n g was noted, and the d e b r i s was noted 

q u i t e some time back; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Back i n A p r i l of 2006. The l a s t i n s p e c t i o n p r i o r 

t o t h i s one, i t shows, " O i l l e a k i n g out wellhead. Needs leak 

stopped and w e l l T/A, P/A, or put back i n use." 

Q. And the f a c t t h a t a v i o l a t i o n was noted back i n 

2005 i n d i c a t e s t h a t the operator would have been n o t i f i e d of 

t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And the v i o l a t i o n has p e r s i s t e d , i t appears. 

A. Yes. And once again, there's p i c t u r e s attached 

showing the leak and the s t a i n i n g and the junk on s i t e as w e l l 

as the o v e r a l l s i t e . And there looks t o be some s o r t of 

excavation. For what purpose, we don't know though. 

And the next w e l l ? 

Q. 6-C i s the Crosby Deep #3. 

A. And the r e p o r t s t a t e s , "Well i s i d l e . No 

f l o w l i n e s connected t o the wellhead. No r e c o r d of recent 

pressure t e s t . L o c a t i o n has been scraped and l e v e l e d . " 

And, w e l l , the previous i n s p e c t i o n shows the w e l l 

s i g n was okay. And i t also shows t h a t i t needs some c o r r e c t i v e 
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work, I guess. I t -- "Needs w e l l c o r r e c t e d . W i l l check T/A 

s t a t u s . F i r s t n o t i c e . " 

That was back i n 2005. 

Q. But the w e l l had been s h u t - i n a t l e a s t since 

August o f 2007, according t o the i n s p e c t i o n h i s t o r y ? 

A. Yes. And again, t h i s one, the w e l l sign doesn't 

show i t as a X e r i c w e l l . I t shows i t as an XOG Operating w e l l . 

So t h a t would be another v i o l a t i o n . And the other p i c t u r e , of 

course, i s j u s t o f the wellhead and the general l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. So the next w e l l i s 6-D, Crosby Deep #4. 

A. The w e l l i s i d l e . "Sub pump cable s t i c k i n g out 

of wellhead. A l l valves closed running toward separator. 

Surplus equipment and other d e b r i s south of the l o c a t i o n . 

Pumping u n i t base on the west s i d e . Sub pump c o n t r o l l e r on NW 

corner. Location has been l e v e l e d and scraped o f f . " 

Q. Okay. 

A. And going back t o 2005, e v e r y t h i n g looked l i k e i t 

was okay. And then the p i c t u r e s , again, j u s t show the area and 

general l o c a t i o n of the w e l l and the w e l l s i t e . 

Q. Okay. Moving on t o 6-E, would be the Gregory --

do I have the r i g h t one? Do I have the r i g h t one? 

A. Yeah. I t ' s the Gregory A. 

Q. The Gregory A? 

A. This one shows an i d l e w e l l . "No f l o w l i n e s 

c o r r e c t e d t o wellhead. N e t t i n g on the tank west of the w e l l 
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has f a l l e n i n t o the tank. Location scraped and l e v e l e d . " 

P r i o r t o t h a t , i t looked l i k e i t was i n good shape 

back i n '07. Again, then, the w e l l signs, the wellhead 

p i c t u r e s , and the p i c t u r e o f the n e t t i n g f a l l i n g i n t o the tank. 

Q. Okay. And then the -- so t h a t was the Gregory 

A #5? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So 6-F i s the Gregory A; i s t h a t the #7? 

A. I b e l i e v e so. 

Q. Yeah. Number 7. 

A. I t shows, "The w e l l appears i d l e . Pumping u n i t 

on w e l l and rods i n t u b i n g . 1" val v e on o f f side o f pumping 

tee open. " 

And p r i o r t o t h a t , i t looked l i k e t h i n g s were okay. 

Again, the w e l l s i g n shows i t t o be cleaned up a l i t t l e b i t . 

You can b a r e l y see the Xe r i c name on i t . And i t has a p i c t u r e 

of the pumping u n i t and the wellhead. I t looks l i k e there's 

s t a i n i n g around the wellhead t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. Moving on t o 6-G, the Gregory A No. 8. 

A. This one shows, "Pumping u n i t on the w e l l w i t h 

rods i n hole. No f l o w l i n e s connected t o wellhead. Location 

was scraped and l e v e l e d . " 

And l a s t i n s p e c t i o n i n 2005 shows the tank b a t t e r y 

had been removed and the s i t e cleaned up. Again, the p i c t u r e s 

of the s i t e , wellhead pumping u n i t . 
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Q. Okay. And 6-H i s the Gregory C No. 1. 

A. On t h i s w e l l the, "Rods stacked out i n t u b i n g . 

L ocation has been scraped and l e v e l e d . No f l o w l i n e connected 

t o wellhead." 

And the w e l l was i d l e . Back i n '05, the w e l l was 

s h u t - i n . No TA t e s t was shown. And previous t o t h a t , i t was 

on a TA s t a t u s from 2000, February o f 2000. 

Q. So t h i s has been an i n a c t i v e w e l l f o r some time? 

A. Yes. The p i c t u r e showing the wellhead and s i g n . 

Q. And 6-1 i s the Gregory E l Paso Federal No. 1? 

A. I t shows, "Well i d l e . No f l o w l i n e s connected t o 

w e l l . Reda cable s t i c k i n g out of wellhead. L o c a t i o n has been 

scraped and l e v e l e d . Debris from l o c a t i o n pushed o f f on the 

no r t h s i d e . " 

And p r i o r t o t h a t i n '07, t h i n g s looked l i k e they 

were okay. 

And once again, the w e l l s i g n , p i c t u r e s o f the 

f l o w l i n e , and the w e l l s i t e k i n d of needs t o be picked up a 

l i t t l e b i t , i t looks l i k e . And then an o v e r a l l shot of the 

area of the s i t e . 

Q. Okay. And f i n a l l y 6-J i s the Gregory E l Paso 

Federal No. 4. 

A. This one shows an i d l e w e l l . "No f l o w l i n e 

connected t o the w e l l . " 

Previous t o t h a t , i t looked l i k e e v e r y t h i n g was okay 
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and i n good shape. I t has a l i t t l e b i t longer i n s p e c t i o n 

h i s t o r y than t h i s other one. And once again, the X e r i c O i l 

si g n and wellhead and l o c a t i o n and g e n e r a l l y i n good shape i n 

terms of being a clean s i t e . 

Q. Okay. With regard t o the Crosby Deep No. 1, 

which was a c t u a l l y Tab No. 6-A, X e r i c a c t u a l l y had f i l e d a 

f e d e r a l sundry f o l l o w i n g up, even though they d i d n ' t f i l e the 

one t h a t they had submitted a t the hearing w i t h the OCD; i s n ' t 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what, i f any, a c t i o n was taken by the BLM 

w i t h regard t o t h a t f e d e r a l sundry? 

A. They were granted an extension t o February 1st of 

•09. 

Q. To do what? 

A. To pl u g the w e l l or get i t back on p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. And d i d they meet t h a t o b l i g a t i o n ? 

A. According t o the p i c t u r e s , they d i d not. 

According t o the i n s p e c t i o n of the s i t e , not j u s t the p i c t u r e s . 

Q. And w i t h regard t o the Crosby Deep No. 3, which 

was Tab No. 6-C, again, they f i l e d a f e d e r a l sundry n o t i c e of 

i n t e n t . What was the response o f the BLM w i t h t h a t w e l l ? 

A. They also gave them a deadline o f February 1st of 

2009, which they d i d not meet. 

Q. Okay. And f i n a l l y , the Crosby Deep No. 4, which 
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was Tab No. 6-D, they f i l e d a f e d e r a l sundry i n t h a t as w e l l , I 

b e l i e v e . And what was the BLM's response t o t h a t ? 

A. January 7th deadline on t h a t one of '09, and they 

d i d not meet t h a t deadline e i t h e r . 

Q. Okay. I ' d l i k e you a t t h i s time t o t u r n t o 

E x h i b i t No. 5. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you recognize t h i s document? 

A. This i s the D i v i s i o n Order i n Case 14106. 

Q. I t ' s Order No. R-13005; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what was Xe r i c ordered t o do as a r e s u l t ? 

A. They were given s e v e r a l t h i n g s t o do. They were 

given a deadline t o pay a s i n g l e w e l l bonding note f o r the 69 

we l l s i d e n t i f i e d i n t h a t a p p l i c a t i o n . Any and a l l d e l i n q u e n t 

C-115 p r o d u c t i o n r e p o r t s f o r any of the i d e n t i f i e d w e l l s had t o 

be f i l e d by December 31st of '08. 

The deadline f o r the w e l l bonding was November 28th 

of '08. And they ended up w i t h a deadline of January 30th of 

'09. 88 i d e n t i f i e d i n a c t i v e w e l l s must be plugged or otherwise 

brought i n t o compliance and $88,000 p e n a l t y . Assessment must 

be p a i d by t h i s date. 

Q. And d i d Xeric meet any of the deadlines set by 

the order? 

A. No, they d i d not. 
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Q. And t o your knowledge, d i d X e r i c seek and/or 

o b t a i n a stay of the D i v i s i o n Order pending the outcome of t h i s 

de novo a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n a t t h i s time t o 

E x h i b i t No. 8 and E x h i b i t No. 9. Can you i d e n t i f y these 

documents f o r the Commission, please? 

A. E x h i b i t No. 8 i s the i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t f o r 

X e r i c . And t h i s i s from February 16th, 2009, which was l a s t 

week. And t h e r e are s t i l l 75 w e l l s on t h a t i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t . 

Q. Out of 110? 

A. Out of 110, yes. And E x h i b i t 9 i s the i n a c t i v e 

w e l l a d d i t i o n a l f i n a n c i a l assurance r e p o r t p r i n t e d on t h a t same 

day, February 16, 2009. And t h i s one i s showing q u i t e a number 

of w e l l s t h a t are s t i l l --

Q. What i s the approximate amount of t o t a l bonding, 

a d d i t i o n a l bonding owed by Xer i c at t h i s time? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t ' s $667,000. 

Q. And t h a t number i s q u i t e a b i t less than a t the 

l a s t h earing. Do you know why t h a t number has dropped? 

A. Yes. Dorothy P h i l l i p s , our bond a d m i n i s t r a t o r , 

had rechecked some of the depths on those w e l l s and found a 

p r e t t y b i g e r r o r on one of them. And by c a t c h i n g t h a t , she was 

a c t u a l l y able t o reduce the amount r e q u i r e d by over $100,000. 

Q. So t h a t was a c t u a l l y caught by the OCD and not by 
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the operator? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has Xe r i c posted any s i n g l e w e l l bonds since the 

f i l i n g o f t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. No. 

Q. I n f a c t , has Xe r i c posted any of the s i n g l e w e l l 

bonds since the new r u l e went i n t o e f f e c t i n January of 2008? 

A. No, they have not. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l hearing testimony given at the 

previous hearing i n t h i s matter by the p r i n c i p a l s i n X e r i c , 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d and Mr. St. John? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. S p e c i f i c a l l y , do you r e c a l l both gentlemen 

t e s t i f y i n g t h a t they had known since a t l e a s t June of 2008 t h a t 

they have o b l i g a t i o n s t o post s i n g l e w e l l bonds f o r a number of 

w e l l s ? 

A. Yes, I do remember t h a t . 

Q. And do you r e c a l l they both t e s t i f i e d t h a t they 

both knew they had t o post the bonds even i f they p l a n t o b r i n g 

these w e l l s i n t o compliance? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l testimony of Mr. H i r s c h f e l d t h a t he 

d i d not check w i t h the OCD or review OCD r u l e s p r i o r t o 

a c q u i r i n g X e r i c and, t h e r e f o r e , did. not budget f o r t h i s 

bonding? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t as w e l l . 

Q. And do you r e c a l l both of these gentlemen 

t e s t i f y i n g t h a t they knew a t the time t h a t they decided t o 

acquire X e r i c t h a t X e r i c had many issues t o be addressed 

i n c l u d i n g i n a c t i v e w e l l s ? 

A. Yes, I remember t h a t . 

Q. And f i n a l l y , do you r e c a l l them both 

acknowledging t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r had made numerous commitments t o 

the OCD t h a t were not f o l l o w e d through on w i t h the OCD? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n a t t h i s time t o 

E x h i b i t No. 3, which i s p o r t i o n s o f the t r a n s c r i p t from the 

D i v i s i o n h e aring --

A. Okay. 

Q. -- c o n s i s t i n g of the testimony o f Mr. H i r s c h f e l d 

and Mr. St. John from t h a t hearing. Have you reviewed the 

excerpts from the t r a n s c r i p t i n E x h i b i t 3? 

A. I've reviewed -- I've gone through them, yes. 

Q. To your knowledge, does t h i s f a i r l y and 

ac c u r a t e l y r e f l e c t what your r e c o l l e c t i o n of t h a t testimony 

was? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And are you aware t h a t X e r i c has now submitted as 

p a r t of i t s e x h i b i t s i n t h i s matter an a d d i t i o n a l set of C-103s 

s i m i l a r t o the previous e x h i b i t s f o r the l a s t h e aring 
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1 r e f l e c t i n g some basic maintenance done on 22 we l l s ? 

2 A. Yes, I am. 

3 Q. And these are not the same w e l l s t h a t i t had 

4 i n i t i a l l y s a i d i t was going t o focus i t s a t t e n t i o n on, the 

5 Gregory and Crosby Deep leases? 

6 A. Yes . 

7 Q'. Which leases are the 22 w e l l s i n t h i s new e x h i b i t 

8 located? 

9 A. They are on West Pea r l , the South P e a r l , and the 

10 Mesa Queen u n i t s . 

11 Q. Out of the 22 w e l l s f o r which the new C-103s t h a t 

12 we've j u s t r eceived are on, how many were a t issue i n t h i s 

13 matter? I n other words, s p e c i f i c a l l y , out of the 22 w e l l s , how 

14 many are amongst the 88 t h a t are a t issue i n t h i s case? 

15 A. I b e l i e v e t h e r e were seven. 

16 Q. How many were a c t u a l l y l i s t e d though? 

17 A. Oh, l i s t e d ? 15. 

18 Q. And how many, a c t u a l l y , out of t h a t 15 were 

19 a c t u a l l y brought i n t o compliance? 

20 A. Seven. 

21 Q. So out of 88 w e l l s since the f i l i n g of t h i s 

22 a p p l i c a t i o n , X e r i c has brought seven back i n t o compliance since 

23 l a s t March? 

24 A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. Okay. At t h i s p o i n t , what i s the D i v i s i o n 
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seeking from the Commission? 

A. We're seeking an order from the Commission asking 

t h a t these w e l l s be plugged by a date c e r t a i n , t h a t the 

f i n a n c i a l assurance being posted, the r e q u i r e d p o s t i n g s , the 

$667,000 — the approximate $667,000 be posted f o r the 

f i n a n c i a l o u t s t a n d i n g s i n g l e w e l l bonds. The o r i g i n a l p e n a l t y 

assessment was f o r $88,000. Since they d i d n ' t meet any of the 

deadlines of the o r i g i n a l order, we would request t h a t t h a t 

p e n a l t y be doubled and a time frame given f o r t h a t p e n a l t y t o 

be received. 

Q. Now, again, we're s t i l l not pursuing the $1,000 

per day per v i o l a t i o n ? We're s t i l l not pursuing the maximum 

amount of p e n a l t y p e r m i t t e d under the O i l and Gas Act? 

A. No, we are not. 

Q. For c l a r i f i c a t i o n purposes. 

A. We are r e q u e s t i n g t h a t the Commission order X e r i c 

t o f i l e any and a l l d e l i n q u e n t C-115s by a date c e r t a i n . We're 

asking t h a t X e r i c be r e q u i r e d t o appear before the Commission 

at the Commission meeting t o be conducted i n A p r i l f o r the 

purpose of a s t a t u s hearing t o advise the D i v i s i o n and the 

Commission of any work t h a t has been done up t o t h a t p o i n t 

t r y i n g t o come i n t o compliance w i t h the Commission's orders. 

And we're asking t h a t the Commission r e q u i r e X e r i c t o 

reappear before the Commission at the f o l l o w i n g Commission 

hearing i n order t o get another s t a t u s r e p o r t , b a s i c a l l y , on 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, Su i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



45 

t h e i r e f f o r t s t o come i n t o compliance. 

Q. Okay. I s t h e r e any a d d i t i o n a l comments t h a t you 

would l i k e t o make t o c l a r i f y or f o l l o w - u p on any of your 

testimony you've given here? 

A. Just t h a t , you know, over a p e r i o d o f years, the 

d i s t r i c t o f f i c e and the Santa Fe o f f i c e has t r i e d t o work w i t h 

X e r i c t o b r i n g them i n t o compliance, and i t j u s t doesn't seem 

t o be moving anywhere up t o t h i s time, a t l e a s t up t o t h i s 

date. 

The most recent v e r s i o n of Xe r i c has simply committed 

t o the same p a t t e r n and p r a c t i c e of the previous owners. And 

we j u s t don't see any change a t t h i s p o i n t . And we b e l i e v e 

maybe a Commission order may change t h a t , or we're hoping t h a t 

a Commission order w i l l change t h a t . 

Q. Okay. 

MS. ALTOMARE: At t h i s time, I would move E x h i b i t s — 

OCD E x h i b i t s 1 through 11 i n t o evidence. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: OCD E x h i b i t s 1 through 11 w i l l be 

admitted f o r the record. 

[ A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s 1 through 11 admitted i n t o 

evidence.] 

MS. ALTOMARE: And I w i l l pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, you s a i d at the beginning of your 

testimony t h a t your general impression t h a t you a t l e a s t 

understood from the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e i s t h a t X e r i c has made a 

number of promises t h a t they have not been able t o keep. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Can you discuss what s p e c i f i c promises they have 

made i n the l a s t year? 

A. Well, when X e r i c came i n before the hearing i n 

September, they had promised t o put to g e t h e r a l i s t of 

p r i o r i t i z e d w e l l s , you know, based on the l i s t t h a t we had 

given them on i n a c t i v e w e l l s and t o s t a r t working on those. 

They had promised t o take care of the f i n a n c i a l 

assurance issues and j u s t b a s i c a l l y t o s t a r t coming i n t o 

compliance w i t h the r u l e s and what we were r e q u e s t i n g . They 

were also ordered i n the hearing order t o do some of those same 

t h i n g s , i n c l u d i n g the f i l i n g of the C-115s. 

Q. Okay. I understand t h a t . But before the order, 

those were the promises t h a t you r e c a l l t h a t X e r i c made or t h a t 

you understand t h a t X e r i c made? 

A. Yes. And when the issue f i r s t came up — i t must 

have been about t h r e e years ago -- w i t h the d i s t r i c t , I was 

a c t u a l l y taken out t o some of the s i t e s by one of the — w e l l , 

a couple of d i s t r i c t i n s p e c t o r s out t h e r e , the compliance 
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o f f i c e r s , and they had t o l d me about numerous contacts w i t h 

X e r i c a t t h a t time where they were t r y i n g t o get c e r t a i n areas 

cleaned up and w e l l s plugged. 

And those, most of t h a t was probably done on an 

i n f o r m a l b a s i s , so I r e a l l y can't say t h a t they made an 

o f f i c i a l promise or anyth i n g t h a t we have togethe r i n w r i t i n g . 

But those kinds of issues were r e a l l y on the minds of d i s t r i c t 

s t a f f , and they were hoping t o be able t o take care of those. 

Q. Have you had the o p p o r t u n i t y since t h a t time 

t h r e e years ago t o v i s i t any of the Xe r i c s i t e s ? 

A. Yes. I b e l i e v e I was out the r e maybe two years 

ago. I t might not have even been t h a t -- a year and a h a l f --

and we went out t o the same s i t e s t h a t we had o r i g i n a l l y gone 

out t o , and the appearance o f the s i t e s was s i m i l a r t o the 

f i r s t v i s i t . 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, i f we could t u r n t o the A p r i l 15th 

telephone c a l l . You mentioned t h a t Mr. Cook and Mr. C o l l i e r 

were on the phone c a l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Who from the OCD was present on the phone c a l l ? 

A. I b e l i e v e counsel s t a f f a t the time was t h e r e . 

And r i g h t now I don't remember i f we had someone from the 

d i s t r i c t o f f i c e on t h a t as w e l l . 

Q. Because you weren't there? 

A. Because I wasn't t h e r e . Yes, ma'am. 
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Q. So your knowledge of what took place on t h a t 

phone c a l l was re l a y e d t o you by? 

A. I t was re l a y e d t o me by counsel. 

Q. I s t h a t Ms. Altomare? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So there may or may not have been d i s t r i c t s t a f f 

on t h a t c a l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And d u r i n g your testimony, you s a i d t h a t the OCD 

r e i t e r a t e d t h e i r concerns w i t h X e r i c operations i n New Mexico. 

Do you know who r e i t e r a t e d or who expressed those concerns f o r 

the OCD? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t would have been s t a f f counsel. 

Q. At the June 13th meeting, Mr. Sanchez, who was 

present f o r the OCD? 

A. Off the top of my head, I can't r e c a l l o t her than 

s t a f f counsel. 

Q. Okay. And you al s o i n d i c a t e d t h a t X e r i c had 

assured s t a f f counsel t h a t they would come i n t o compliance w i t h 

OCD r u l e s . Do you know who made t h a t promise? 

A. My understanding i s i t was Mr. C o l l i e r . 

Q. And, again, you s t a t e d t h a t the concerns were 

r e l a t e d t o Xe r i c about t h e i r compliance issues. Who expressed 

those concerns as f a r as you know? 

A. Whoever was a t t h a t meeting at the time. 

500 
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Q. Mr. Sanchez, i f we cou l d t u r n b r i e f l y t o 

E x h i b i t No. 11. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Who i s t h i s l e t t e r d i r e c t e d to? 

A. To Ms. Altomare. 

Q. Did you review t h i s l e t t e r a t the time i t came 

in? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you s t a t e d i n your testimony, Mr. Sanchez, 

t h a t the l e t t e r d i d not meet OCD e x p e c t a t i o n s . 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Was t h a t the e x p e c t a t i o n of y o u r s e l f ? 

A. Myself and the r e s t of OCD and the d i s t r i c t s t a f f 

t h a t had been working on t h i s . 

Q. Okay. And do you know what guidance was given t o 

Xeric when s u b m i t t i n g t h i s l e t t e r t o the OCD? 

A. My understanding was t h a t we were l o o k i n g at 

having a l l o f the w e l l s i n question addressed i n t h a t , not j u s t 

a few of them. 

Q. Anything else? 

A. I b e l i e v e the concern about f i l l i n g out the 

C-115s was addressed a t t h a t time as w e l l , and, of course, the 

f i n a n c i a l assurance. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 4, please, Mr. Sanchez. 

Who d r a f t e d t h i s l e t t e r t o -- i t ' s addressed t o me. Who 
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addressed the l e t t e r ? Do you know who d r a f t e d t h i s ? 

A. I b e l i e v e our counsel d r a f t e d i t . 

Q. Did you a s s i s t i n the d r a f t i n g ? 

A. Yes. I review a l l l e t t e r s t h a t are going t o be 

going out. 

Q. Okay. You t e s t i f i e d t h a t since t h i s time l a s t 

year, I b e l i e v e -- and c o r r e c t me, Mr. Sanchez, i f I'm wrong, 

my notes may not be accurate here -- t h a t X e r i c has brought 

seven w e l l s i n t o compliance? 

A. Yes, seven w e l l s . 

Q. And do you know when those w e l l s were brought 

i n t o compliance? 

A. They were f a i r l y recent, but I can't t e l l you the 

exact dates. 

Q. Okay. I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the questions I have. 

Thank you, Mr. Sanchez. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. Fo l l o w i n g up on t h a t June 8th meeting, what 

promises were made t o comply w i t h OCD ru l e s ? Do you r e c a l l i f 

o i l and gas p r i c e s were p r e t t y h igh at t h a t time? 

A. Yes, they were. 

Q. So t h a t there was a reasonable e x p e c t a t i o n t h a t 

the company would be able t o a f f o r d compliance w i t h the r u l e s 
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at t h a t time? 

A. Given the p r i c e s at t h a t time, t h a t ' s what we 

were hoping. 

Q. Did you deal w i t h l o c a l X e r i c people? Or d i d the 

Di v i s i o n ? Or were a l l contacts made w i t h the Houston o f f i c e ? 

A. They were made w i t h the -- I b e l i e v e i t ' s the 

Houston o f f i c e . 

Q. So as f a r as you know, th e r e weren't any l o c a l 

X e r i c people t o work with? 

A. Not t h a t I was aware o f , no. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I have no questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, you s a i d t h a t the sundries were 

provided t o OCD but not put i n t o the system; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Why were they not put i n t o the system, and why 

was t h a t not considered a f i l i n g ? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e they were submitted t o the 

d i s t r i c t o f f i c e . They were submitted t o Santa Fe. On a 

re g u l a r b a s i s , they would be submitted t o the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e . 

They would review them and go ahead and f i l e them t h e r e . 

They'd be scanned i n and put i n t o the system from the d i s t r i c t 
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o f f i c e , not from Santa Fe. 

Q. Did X e r i c have any reason t o b e l i e v e t h a t they 

were f i l i n g them when they presented them t o you? 

A. Not t h a t I'm aware o f , no. 

Q. Have you ever heard them say t h a t they thought 

t h a t was a f i l i n g ? 

A. No. 

Q. What was the i n t e n t i o n of g i v i n g them t o you and 

not f i l i n g them? 

A. I b e l i e v e t o show t h a t they had some i n t e n t on 

working on those w e l l s . 

Q. So d i d you have an impression t h a t they knew they 

s t i l l needed t o f i l e them when they l e f t here? 

A. I don't remember. 

Q. Now, you s a i d t here was a change i n the 

c a l c u l a t e d amount of i n i t i a l bonding r e q u i r e d because the depth 

of one w e l l changed. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why was t h a t mistake i n the OCD records? 

A. I t h i n k i t was j u s t a number e r r o r . These might 

not be the r i g h t numbers, but i t was o r i g i n a l l y seen as a --

w r i t t e n down as 50,000, which was c a l c u l a t e d out on the 

program. And when Dorothy reviewed i t , i t was a 5,000-foot 

deep w e l l , not 50,000. 

Q. So our records showed a 50,000-foot depth f o r the 
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bonding? 

A. Like I s a i d , I'm not r e a l l y sure about the exact 

depth, but i t was l a r g e . I t was l a r g e enough t o make an e r r o r 

of over $100,000. 

Q. But e v e n t u a l l y t h a t d i d send up a f l a g ? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I f I might, Commissioner, according t o 

Ms. P h i l l i p s , we're not sure whether the e r r o r arose from the 

o r i g i n a l r e p o r t i n g from the predecessor of X e r i c or whether i t 

arose from the e n t r y here, b u t , yeah. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do we have any more problems l i k e 

t h a t anywhere? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Other operators have n o t i c e d i t as the 

program has gone i n t o f o r c e and brought i t t o Dorothy's 

a t t e n t i o n , and then she's c o r r e c t e d i t i n due course. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do we t h i n k our data i s p r e t t y 

clean now i n t h a t respect? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r questions. Do 

you have a r e d i r e c t ? 

MS. ALTOMARE: A couple of c l a r i f i c a t i o n questions. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. Sanchez, j u s t t o c l e a r t h i n g s up, the 

sundries t h a t were submitted a t the l a s t hearing were submitted 
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on l y as an e x h i b i t by X e r i c ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And there was testimony p r o v i d e d a t t h a t hearing 

by X e r i c p r i n c i p a l s t h a t they p l a n t o f i l e them e i t h e r t h a t day 

or l a t e r t h a t week f o r m a l l y w i t h the d i s t r i c t . 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t was the case. 

Q. Okay. And, then, i n terms of missed promises, at 

the A p r i l conference, t h e r e was testimony p r o v i d e d a t the l a s t 

h e a r i n g , and i t ' s your understanding, i s n ' t i t , t h a t 

Mr. C o l l i e r i n d i c a t e d t h a t he would set up a meeting before the 

May hearing i f the hearing was continued? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t was never done? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And he would begin working on bonding w i t h the 

bonding a d m i n i s t r a t o r , and t h a t was never done? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And, then, a t the June meeting, they were t o come 

up w i t h a t i m e l i n e and r e p o r t t h a t they never ended up doing 

u n t i l mid-August, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And, again, they promised t o do the bonding, and 

t h a t was never done? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And the June meeting they also promised t o begin 
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working w i t h the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And they d i d n ' t appear t o begin doing t h a t u n t i l 

v e r y l a t e i n the game as w e l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n the same v e i n , a f t e r the September hearing, 

they requested t h a t we give them a s p e c i f i c c o n t a c t a t the 

Hobbs D i s t r i c t O f f i c e . Was t h a t contact name given t o them? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. And what, i f any, contact has the Hobbs D i s t r i c t 

O f f i c e r e c e i v e d from X e r i c personnel since the September 

hearing? 

A. I don't t h i n k they've had any con t a c t since the 

hearing. 

Q. Okay. Once again, at the September hearing, do 

you r e c a l l h e aring testimony t h a t X e r i c planned t o begin making 

e f f o r t s t o post the bonds or understood t h a t they needed t o 

take steps t o begin p o s t i n g bonds? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have they done so? 

A. No. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, anyt h i n g f u r t h e r on 

those subjects? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: No f u r t h e r questions. Thank you. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything f u r t h e r from the 

Commissioners ? 

Why don't we take a 15-minute break and reconvene a t 

25 t o 11:00. 

[Recess taken from 10:19 a.m. t o 10:39 a.m., and 

testimony continued as f o l l o w s : ] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We'll go back on the rec o r d . At 

t h i s time, we w i l l reconvene Case 14106. The rec o r d should 

r e f l e c t t h a t a f t e r the break a l l t h r e e Commissioners are 

present, and we s t i l l do have a quorum. 

Ms,. Altomare, you've j u s t f i n i s h e d w i t h your f i r s t 

w itness, and you have a second witness by a f f i d a v i t , I b e l i e v e . 

MS.. ALTOMARE: Yes. I t i s E x h i b i t 1, which has been 

admitted. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. Munds-Dry, you have no 

o b j e c t i o n t o an admission by a f f i d a v i t ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, do you have an 

opening statement? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. Chairman Fesmire, 

Commissioner B a i l e y , Commissioner Olson, today y o u ' l l hear from 

three persons re s p o n s i b l e f o r the f u t u r e of X e r i c . But l e t me 

back up very b r i e f l y and give you a shor t h i s t o r y of what has 

happened since the new pa r t n e r s acquired X e r i c i n March of 

2008 . 
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As was s t a t e d by Mr. Sanchez — and you've heard 

e a r l i e r -- the new p a r t n e r s f o r X e r i c bought or acquired X e r i c 

i h March of 2008. I t may have .been coincidence, but as i t 

t u r n s out, t h e i r welcome package was an OCD a p p l i c a t i o n seeking 

compliance a g a i n s t them. 

There were t h r e e p a r t n e r s o r i g i n a l l y who acquired 

X e r i c . There? was one, p r i m a r i l y Mr. C o l l i e r , who was 

respo n s i b l e and was set t o be i n charge o f the New Mexico 

p r o p e r t i e s and o p e r a t i o n s . As you heard p r e v i o u s l y , and as you 

w i l l a l s o hear from the two i n d i v i d u a l s who are s t i l l w i t h 

X e r i c today, he was e n t r u s t e d w i t h those o p e r a t i o n s . He d i d 

have meetings w i t h the OCD and made c e r t a i n promises t o the 

D i v i s i o n about what could be accomplished. 

U n f o r t u n a t e l y , t h a t p a r t n e r , Mr. C o l l i e r , went on t o 

other t h i n g s . And the two remaining i n d i v i d u a l s were l e f t 

unaware f o r a p e r i o d o f time t h a t t h a t had occurred. Once they 

became aware, they q u i c k l y r e a l i z e d t h a t t here was a l o t of 

ground t o cover, came t o New Mexico, and y o u ' l l hear them 

t e s t i f y about t h e i r e f f o r t s since they have been i n charge of 

the New Mexico o p e r a t i o n s . 

There were a t l e a s t two i n d i v i d u a l s a t t h a t time who 

were re s p o n s i b l e f o r a l l of these New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s , and 

given the tremendous l i s t t h a t you see before you, they 

r e a l i z e d w i t h t h e i r time and resources t h a t i t q u i c k l y was too 

much f o r them t o handle on t h e i r own, f r a n k l y , both f i n a n c i a l l y 

500 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

4th S t r e e t , NW, Su i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

58 

and j u s t from a time p e r s p e c t i v e . 

You w i l l hear them t e s t i f y today, though, about what 

they have been a t t e m p t i n g t o do and come i n t o compliance w i t h 

a l l the D i v i s i o n r u l e s . I t ' s simply j u s t been too much, and 

there's been too l i t t l e time f o r them t o take care of a l l of 

the issues t h a t they discovered were i n f r o n t of them. 

They have now -- and you w i l l a l s o hear as our l a s t 

witness -- brought on a new p a r t n e r , Mr. F i e l d e r , who i s p a r t 

of another company who w i l l b r i n g them the resources, both 

f i n a n c i a l l y and from a manpower sta n d p o i n t t o make much more 

aggressive progress here i n New Mexico. And they have every 

i n t e n t i o n of doing t h a t . 

And w i t h t h a t , I would l i k e t o c a l l my f i r s t witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Adam H i r s c h f e l d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Before we s t a r t , would a l l 

of the witnesses stand and be sworn, please. 

[Witnesses sworn.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , would you come 

forward, please? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Mr. Chairman, before we begin, i f I 

might,. 

Ms. Munds-Dry, you i n d i c a t e d you were going t o be 

f i l i n g an amended pre-hearing statement adding Mr. F i e l d e r . I 

have not received an amended re-hea r i n g statement. Was there 
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one? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: There was, and I'm s o r r y . I'm r e a l l y 

t r y i n g t o get them t o her, and I — 

MS. ALTOMARE: Was the substance of i t the same, j u s t 

the a d d i t i o n — 

MS., MUNDS-DRY: Just the a d d i t i o n . 

MS., ALTOMARE: I f you could get me a copy of t h a t 

a f t e r w a r d s , I ' d a p p r e c i a t e i t . 

MS,. MUNDS-DRY: Sure. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s t h a t the one t h a t you f i l e d on 

February 19th, dated February 19th? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes, s i r . And I do promise, 

Mr. Chairman., we're r e a l l y t r y i n g not t o keep i n f o r m a t i o n from 

D i v i s i o n counsel. 

ADAM HIRSCHFELD 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record. 

A. Yes. Adam H i r s c h f e l d . 

Q. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , where do you reside? 

A. I n Ohio. 

Q. By whom are you employed? 

A. I'm employed by Xeric as a c o n s u l t a n t . 
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Q. And your c a p a c i t y i s as a co n s u l t a n t ? 

A. I b a s i c a l l y handle a l l the back o f f i c e f i n a n c i n g 

and operations f o r X e r i c . 

Q. And what do those d u t i e s w i t h the back o f f i c e and 

operations include? What are those r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n c l u d i n g ? 

A. I t b a s i c a l l y includes making sure t h a t we're 

p r o p e r l y financed t o take on any r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s we have i n 

r e l a t i o n t o f i n a n c i n g , workovers on the w e l l s and/or p l u g g i n g 

and/or p l a c i n g f i n a n c i a l s assurance bond requirements. I t a l s o 

r e q u i r e s me t o manage whatever o f f i c e s t a f f r e q u i r e d f o r f i l i n g 

C-115s and sundry n o t i c e s i n a t i m e l y manner. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t was 

f i l e d by the D i v i s i o n i n t h i s case or i n the u n d e r l y i n g case? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Can you t e l l me when d i d you acquire X e r i c O i l 

and Gas Corporation? 

A. The e f f e c t i v e date of c o n t r a c t was March 1, and 

t h a t was signed on March 5th , 2008. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, when you say "you," 

you mean h i s c l i e n t ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I'm s o r r y . And w e ' l l e x p l a i n t h a t i n 

j u s t a l i t t l e b i t . But h i s r o l e has changed w i t h X e r i c and 

so -- he was p a r t of the o r i g i n a l a c q u i s i t i o n . And I can ask 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d t h a t t o c l a r i f y what has happened t h e r e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At your l e i s u r e , j u s t t o c l a r i f y 
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t h a t . 

Q. (By Ms. Munds-Dry): Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , you s t a t e d 

you were a c o n s u l t a n t or an agent f o r X e r i c . Has your r o l e 

changed since X e r i c was acquired i n March o f 2008? 

A. Corr e c t . I was a p a r t of the group t h a t brought 

the o r i g i n a l c a p i t a l i n t o X e r i c t o acquire i t , as w e l l as t o 

finance the day-to-day o p e r a t i o n s . Over the l a s t months w i t h 

the company's a c q u i s i t i o n o f a new p a r t n e r w i t h R e s i l i e n t 

Energy, my r o l e has changed j u s t a l i t t l e b i t i n the 

r e s t r u c t u r i n g . 

Q. So you're no longer a p r e s i d e n t or no longer an 

o f f i c e r of Xeric? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. I ' d l i k e t o t a l k about what the 

i n d i v i d u a l s who are now resp o n s i b l e f o r X e r i c has done since 

X e r i c was acquired. And l e t ' s break i t down i n steps i f we 

could. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Before the D i v i s i o n hearing, what was your focus 

i n terms of your New Mexico operations? 

A. Our focus was t o get i n t o compliance and t o 

communicate e x t e n s i v e l y w i t h the OCD and t o work w i t h any means 

we had necessary t o work w i t h the State. 

In previous operations i n my r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h 

Mr. St. John and Mr. C o l l i e r , we had a successful h i s t o r y i n 
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other s t a t e s of b r i n g i n g p r o p e r t i e s t h a t weren't compliant back 

i n t o compliance. So p r i o r t o the o r i g i n a l h e a r i n g we were t o 

accomplish t h a t g o a l , and we had placed Mr. C o l l i e r i n the 

p o s i t i o n t o correspond w i t h the State of New Mexico because of 

h i s f a m i l i a r i t y w i t h the f i e l d , w i t h the p r o p e r t i e s , as w e l l as 

OCD r e g u l a t i o n s . 

Q. You s t a t e d p r e v i o u s l y t h a t your main f u n c t i o n s 

had been back o f f i c e a d m i n i s t r a t i v e o p e r a t i o n s . 

A. Cor r e c t . 

Q. What were your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s d u r i n g t h a t time? 

A. My r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s were t o , b a s i c a l l y , a t t h a t 

time, t o r a i s e c a p i t a l and t o manage the resources t h a t we had. 

We d i d implement some improvements on the f i e l d when i t comes 

to -- I b e l i e v e i t was Case 14107, or whichever the p i t 301 on 

the West Pearl Queen was. We had improvement on t h a t . 

And we also t e s t e d some workovers on some of the 

we l l s t o see i f t h e r e was a way t h a t we could increase our 

pr o d u c t i o n and make t h i s a l l f i n a n c i a l l y v i a b l e as we were 

r e t u r n i n g these w e l l s t o p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. And when d i d you become aware t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r 

had made c e r t a i n promises t o the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. I was present i n the meeting i n June. And I was 

also -- I became aware of some of the promises he made a t t h a t 

meeting. And I had checked up w i t h him the f o l l o w i n g month, 

and he had confirmed w i t h me t h a t he was communicating back and. 
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f o r t h w i t h the OCD i n p r e p a r i n g the necessary statements or 

paperwork t h a t we wanted t o submit t o show which w e l l s we were 

going t o address f i r s t . 

And i t came t o my a t t e n t i o n r i g h t around the f i r s t 

week of August t h a t -- when you had a c t u a l l y contacted me — 

t h a t t h i s communication was not being done i n a t i m e l y manner. 

Q. Okay. So your counsel had contacted you t h a t we 

had made some promises t o the D i v i s i o n , and they were yet t o be 

f u l f i l l e d ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. We went t o hearing on t h i s matter i n 

September of 2008, Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , and a f t e r t h a t h e a r i n g , what 

became, then,, the focus of your e f f o r t s and operatio n s i n 

New Mexico? 

A. Our only focus i n our e n t i r e business, b a s i c a l l y , 

was t o get our w e l l s compliant and improve the o v e r a l l --

b a s i c a l l y , improve a l l the p r o p e r t i e s i n New Mexico. 

We had p i n p o i n t e d the Pearl Queen p r o p e r t i e s as the 

main area of issue. When you look a t the w e l l l i s t s or the 

bonding l i s t s , the Pearl Queens are overwhelmingly the most 

non-compliant p r o p e r t i e s . So w i t h t h i s , we wanted t o b a s i c a l l y 

a t t a c k the p r o p e r t i e s and clean up the surface area, t r y t o 

a l l e v i a t e any environmental problems, as w e l l as t a k i n g the 

w e l l bores o f f of the noncompliance l i s t . 

Q. Were you present f o r Mr. Sanchez's testimony? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And you were present when he discussed the 

sundries t h a t X e r i c a c t u a l l y o f f e r e d f o r the l a s t h earing, the 

OCD hearing, which I b e l i e v e i s E x h i b i t No. 2 f o r the Crosby 

and Gregory wells? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. What happened w i t h those w e l l s ? 

A. Well, a c t u a l l y , l e a d i n g up t o t h a t hearing, we 

were c o n t r a c t i n g w i t h a company c a l l e d Phoenix Environmental t o 

prepare the roads and the w e l l l o c a t i o n s so t h a t we could r i g 

up and t e s t the anchors and do e v e r y t h i n g necessary t o f u l f i l l 

those sundry n o t i c e s , which I had prepared as an e x h i b i t . 

And a f t e r l e a v i n g the hearing, we had changed our 

focus from the Crosby and Gregory u n i t s t o the Pearl Queens, 

being t h a t they were s u b s t a n t i a l l y the most non-compliant and 

were the most i n a c t i v e w e l l s . 

Q. What other e f f o r t s d i d you undertake t o come i n t o 

compliance w i t h D i v i s i o n r u l e s ? 

A. Ron and I were the a c t i v e p r i n c i p a l s at the time, 

and we had c o n t r a c t e d a company c a l l e d Baker Energy, who i s a 

reputable c o n t r a c t o r and surfaces manager t o b a s i c a l l y improve 

our amount of boots on the ground and improve our a b i l i t y t o 

get work done. 

And they had s t a r t e d t o correspond w i t h the d i s t r i c t 

o f f i c e from t h a t p o i n t forward. And we had begun t o r i g up on 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, Su i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



the Pearl Queens, as w e l l as c l e a n i n g up the surface area. 

Q. And from t h a t time forward, d i d you have any 

contact w i t h the D i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. I had not. I was corresponding w i t h Baker's 

compliance o f f i c e r , which was Whitney Boyd. And I b e l i e v e 

y o u ' l l see she signed the sundry n o t i c e s f o r the work from 

September forward. 

Q. That was one of the reasons you h i r e d Baker 

Energy? 

A. E x a c t l y . Because the overwhelming amount of 

work, we had t o b r i n g i n some more resources. 

Q. And what k i n d of work d i d Baker Energy perform 

f o r X e r i c , g e n e r a l l y speaking? 

A. We had begun by going out t o the Pearl Queens 

f i r s t and cl e a n i n g up l o c a t i o n s , t a k i n g any scrap equipment and 

any d e b r i s o f f of the l o c a t i o n s and g e t t i n g t h a t cleaned up. 

We f o l l o w e d t h a t by beginning t o r i g up on i n a c t i v e 

w e l l s t o t e s t our a b i l i t y t o r e t u r n t o p r o d u c t i o n , also swab on 

them t o get some type of p r o d u c t i o n f o r now and see what k i n d 

of p r o d u c t i o n we would get once we r e t u r n e d i t . 

And we also d i d r e t u r n t o p r o d u c t i o n any w e l l s t h a t 

were nearby t h a t weren't n e c e s s a r i l y i n a c t i v e , but were down 

because of p a r t e d rods or t u b i n g or anything o f t h a t s o r t . So 

we d i d work over the w e l l s t h a t we -- we r e a l l y d i d need t o 

produce j u s t t o keep our business going. 
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Q. And as a r e s u l t of Baker Energy's work, how many 

w e l l s were you able t o b r i n g i n t o compliance? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was seven t h a t we took o f f the 

i n a c t i v e w e l l l i s t . 

Q. And what p e r i o d of time d i d Baker Energy perform 

the work they d i d f o r you? 

A. They worked from around mid-September t o r i g h t 

before Thanksgiving. 

Q. And not t o be crass, but do you know how much you 

have spent w i t h the work you've done w i t h Baker Energy t o date? 

A. We have been b i l l e d over 700,000 f o r t h a t work so 

f a r . 

Q. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , Mr. Sanchez t e s t i f i e d t h a t he d i d 

not see any r e c o r d of any s i n g l e w e l l bonds being yet posted. 

Why has X e r i c not posted the s i n g l e w e l l bonds? 

A. We are k i n d of a small company, and we are i n the 

business of producing o i l and gas f o r revenue so we can 

continue t o grow our business. 

Our goal from the beginning has been t o r e t u r n these 

w e l l s t o p r o d u c t i o n because we see a very v a l u a b l e p r o j e c t i n 

i t . There are some overwhelming r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s t o take care 

of f i r s t , or as we continue t o develop the f i e l d , but our 

f i n a n c i a l c a p a b i l i t i e s haven't allowed us t o move a t the pace 

t h a t we wished. 

Q. Have the c u r r e n t p r i c e s i n the o i l and gas 
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markets a f f e c t e d your a b i l i t y t o c a p i t a l i z e your e f f o r t s here 

i n New Mexico? 

A. They have a f f e c t e d us on the bottom l i n e of the 

company, as w e l l as our a b i l i t y t o place c a p i t a l f o r operations 

i n growing the company. They have. 

Q. I f X e r i c had t o post a l l the s i n g l e w e l l bonds 

t h a t were now due t o the D i v i s i o n , how would t h a t a f f e c t your 

e f f o r t s t o continue t o do work on the ground on the wells? 

A. We would be incapable of doing i t . 

Q. How would i t a f f e c t your o p e r a t i o n s o v e r a l l i n 

New Mexico? 

A. Well, we r e a l l y wouldn't be a v i a b l e company a t 

t h a t p o i n t . 

Q. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , i n a d d i t i o n t o you wanting t o be 

i n compliance, why does X e r i c want t o b r i n g your w e l l s back 

i n t o production? 

A. We want t o b r i n g them back i n t o p r o d u c t i o n 

because we know the p r o p e r t i e s t h a t are non-compliant and 

i n a c t i v e are very good p r o p e r t i e s and have the p o t e n t i a l f o r 

great p r o d u c t i o n . 

I t ' s been our goal t o b u i l d a company around these 

New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s j u s t because of the q u a l i t y o f them. And 

we've had some bumps i n the road, but i t i s s t i l l our absolute 

goal t o get them r e t u r n e d t o p r o d u c t i o n . 

As you know, every w e l l we d i d r i g up on d i d produce 
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o i l i n a swab t e s t . So we know t h a t we can r e t u r n them a l l t o 

p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. Going forward, what are your plans f o r c o n t i n u i n g 

t o b r i n g your w e l l s back i n t o compliance? 

A. Well, the company has brought on a new p a r t n e r 

w i t h R e s i l i e n t Energy. And i n t h a t r e l a t i o n s h i p , w e ' l l have 

e s s e n t i a l l y doubled the management, as w e l l as b r i n g on a 

p a r t n e r t h a t would be -- h i s sole r e s p o n s i b i l i t y would be t o 

work over the Pearl Queens and the p e r i p h e r a l New Mexico 

p r o p e r t i e s t h a t are non-compliant. And our goal i s t o grow the 

company and u t i l i z e the p r o p e r t i e s i n our p o r t f o l i o i n 

New Mexico as a st r o n g base i n assets f o r our company. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You also heard Mr. Sanchez's 

testimony about X e r i c having a long h i s t o r y i n New Mexico of 

being non-compliant and the members of t h a t company being 

absent. What e f f o r t s do you plan t o undertake t o change t h a t 

p e r c e p t i o n and t h a t r e a l i t y here i n New Mexico? 

A. Well, our goal i s t o not only b r i n g -- i n 

b r i n g i n g the w e l l s back i n t o compliance are t o abide by the 

r e g u l a t i o n s of the State of New Mexico. I n no way i s the r e a 

de s i r e f o r us t o not be i n r e g u l a t i o n . 

But we are working i n earnest t o b r i n g f o r t h the 

resources necessary t o not only r e t u r n the w e l l s t o compliance 

and p r o d u c t i o n , increase the revenue base f o r the company and 

the State, but t o b a s i c a l l y u t i l i z e the resources we have t o 
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make the most of these p r o p e r t i e s . 

Q. You understand from Mr. Sanchez's testimony today 

t h a t the D i v i s i o n i s seeking t o plug a l l of your w e l l s and i s 

als o seeking a penalty? 

A. Correct. 

Q. What i s your response t o t h a t request? 

A. I j u s t can't r e a l l y see how t h a t ' s -- I 

understand there's a l e g a l r e s p o n s i b i l i t y we have and t h a t we 

i n h e r i t e d w i t h the company, X e r i c , and the p r o p e r t i e s , but 

what's best f o r what -- I b e l i e v e what's best f o r the State and 

the p r o p e r t i e s and the company i s f o r us t o get them t o r e t u r n 

t o p r o d u c t i o n . And I would wish t h a t our resources were a 

l i t t l e b i t g r e a t e r than they are now, but I do see them 

c o n t i n u a l l y improving over time as we make the r i g h t business 

d e c i s i o n s i n developing these f i e l d s and r e l a t i o n s h i p s w i t h new 

pa r t n e r s i n the c a p i t a l markets. 

Q. Do you b e l i e v e X e r i c committed a knowing and 

w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n t h a t would s u b j e c t them t o the c i v i l p e n a l t y 

t h a t ' s being requested i n t h i s case? 

A. We d i d n o t . We do know these p r o p e r t i e s f o r the 

most p a r t have many i n a c t i v e w e l l s even p r i o r t o 2006 since the 

l a s t p r o d u c t i o n . And t h a t goes a couple of owners back i n t h i s 

company. And we d i d not knowingly t r y t o commit any v i o l a t i o n 

whatsoever. We d i d knowingly t r y t o take c o n t r o l of the 

p r o p e r t y and b r i n g them back i n t o compliance and improve them, 
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but our resources have l i m i t e d our speed i n doing so. 

Q. Thank you. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: That concludes my d i r e c t examination 

of Mr. H i r s c h f e l d . Pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , I'm a l i t t l e confused. What i s 

your a c t u a l t i t l e now w i t h Xeric? 

A. I do not ho l d an o f f i c e or d i r e c t p o s i t i o n w i t h 

the company possession. I act as a c o n s u l t a n t and a t t h i s 

p o i n t manage a l l operations f o r the company on a f u l l - t i m e 

b a s i s . 

Q. Do you have any i n t e r e s t i n the company? 

A. I do not own an i n t e r e s t i n the company a t t h i s 

p o i n t . 

Q. Okay. Who are the i n t e r e s t holders i n the 

company now? 

A. Ron St. John and the new p a r t n e r w i t h R e s i l i e n t 

Energy. 

Q. Okay. So when you r e f e r t o Mr. F i e l d e r --

A. Yes. 

Q. -- as a new p a r t n e r , you're not r e f e r r i n g t o him 

as your new pa r t n e r . He's a new p a r t n e r i n v o l v e d i n Xeric? 

A. E x a c t l y . 
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Q. Okay. Why d i d you decide t o step down as a 

p r i n c i p a l i n the company? 

A. The r e o r g a n i z a t i o n stemmed from my i n v e s t o r group 

f i n a n c i n g the o r i g i n a l a c q u i s i t i o n of the company and the 

f u r t h e r development of the company. And since t h i s new 

p a r t n e r s h i p has taken form, t h a t investment group i s i n the 

p o s i t i o n of b a s i c a l l y being weaned out of the company. 

Q. Okay. Because you were the m a j o r i t y shareholder 

at the l a s t h e a r i n g ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. A c t u a l l y , i t was j u s t about a 50/50 breakdown. 

Q. Okay. I t h i n k I r e c a l l you t e s t i f y i n g you were 

the m a j o r i t y shareholder, and you were the p r e s i d e n t ; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. Ri g h t . But the books were cleaned up, and we 

were about 50/50. 

Q. Okay. So, again, you were not i n v o l v e d i n the 

o r i g i n a l telephone conference t h a t took place i n A p r i l a f t e r 

the f i l i n g of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. But you had knowledge t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r was at 

t h a t time a c t i n g on be h a l f of Xeric? 

A. He was. 

Q. And at t h a t p o i n t i n time, you were secretary? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. Mr. C o l l i e r contacted you a f t e r t h a t 
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telephone conference, r i g h t ? 

A. He d i d . 

Q. And informed you t h a t the conference had taken 

place and t h a t you needed t o r e t a i n counsel? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And he advised you t h a t the a p p l i c a t i o n had been 

f i l e d and t h a t you had t o respond? 

A. Rig h t . I don't r e c a l l every word i n the 

conv e r s a t i o n , but we covered the issue as w e l l as what he knew 

t o t e l l me. 

Q. At the time t h a t y o u - a l l -- you, Mr. C o l l i e r , and 

Mr. St. John -- acquired X e r i c , you were already aware t h a t i t 

was a problem company, t h a t i t had issues, i n a c t i v e w e l l , 

environmental issues, and whatnot? 

A. No, I t h i n k t h a t ' s an assumption. We knew t h a t 

t h e r e were w e l l bores t h a t had t o be r e t u r n e d t o p r o d u c t i o n . 

But our previous o p e r a t i n g h i s t o r y i n Montana and Wyoming — 

when you say a problem company, there's a problem company w i t h 

the p o s i t i o n we're i n now, and then a problem company w i t h 

needing t o r e t u r n w e l l s t o p r o d u c t i o n because the revenues 

increase. 

The p o s i t i o n we were i n i s t h a t we had t o r e t u r n 

w e l l s t o p r o d u c t i o n t o increase revenue f o r the company. When 

we completed our due d i l i g e n c e i n the w e l l f i l e s , any OCD 

communications were apparently not i n c l u d e d i n those w e l l 
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f i l e s . And any p r i o r communications between the OCD and Xe r i c 

we are t r y i n g t o t r a c k down but s t i l l have not seen. 

Q. Okay. At the time you acquired X e r i c , you were 

aware t h a t t h e r e were out of compliance wel l s ? 

A. We were aware t h e r e were i n a c t i v e w e l l s . 

Q. And t h a t t h e r e were environmental issues t h a t 

needed t o be addressed? 

A. We were aware o f one environmental issue i n the 

West Pearl Queen p i t 301, and t h a t u ndertaking, the cost was 

warranted by the previous owner. They d i d n ' t f u l f i l l t h e i r 

o b l i g a t i o n , but we s t i l l f u l f i l l e d our o b l i g a t i o n o f t a k i n g 

care of t h a t p i t . 

Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l t e s t i f y i n g at the previous 

hearing t h a t the due d i l i g e n c e t h a t you are r e f e r r i n g t o was 

k i n d of abbr e v i a t e d and t h a t i t wasn't a r e a l i n - d e p t h process 

p r i o r t o a c q u i r i n g Xeric? 

A. We searched through a l l the w e l l f i l e s and d i d 

t o u r a l l the f i e l d s w i t h the previous owner. So i t was as 

in-de p t h as previous p r o j e c t s had r e q u i r e d of us. 

Q. Okay. And you never contacted the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n d i r e c t l y t o i n q u i r e f u r t h e r r e g a r d i n g 

a c t u a l w e l l f i l e s housed here or reg a r d i n g any records we might 

have regarding v i o l a t i o n s or pending issues w i t h Xeric? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. Did you contact the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n t o 

500 
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f i n d out s p e c i f i c a l l y what your o b l i g a t i o n s would be as an 

incoming operator i n New Mexico? 

A. I d i d n o t . 

Q. Okay. But you were aware t h a t as an operator i n 

New Mexico you would be r e q u i r e d t o comply w i t h New Mexico O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n r u l e s ? 

A. I was aware t h a t t h a t ' s i n h e r e n t t o the State, 

e x a c t l y . And once again, Tim C o l l i e r was the quote, unquote, 

p r o f e s s i o n a l associated w i t h New Mexico, and he was the le a d i n g 

resource i n a c q u i r i n g these assets. 

Q. But you are the i n d i v i d u a l who i s and has always 

been res p o n s i b l e f o r making arrangements f o r bonding, making 

arrangements f o r f i l i n g r e p o r t s and whatnot w i t h the r e g u l a t o r y 

agency? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. When d i d you become aware of the s i n g l e 

w e l l bonding f i n a n c i a l assurance o b l i g a t i o n under New Mexico 

r u l e s ? 

A. I had become aware of the case a f t e r t h a t phone 

c a l l w i t h Mr. C o l l i e r i n A p r i l , and on the exact amount of 

w e l l s and amount of bonding r e q u i r e d f o r those w e l l s was most 

s p e c i f i c a l l y made a v a i l a b l e d u r i n g the September hearing. 

Q. Okay. But i n general, when were you aware t h a t 

New Mexico had f i n a n c i a l assurances o b l i g a t i o n s f o r s i n g l e 

w e l l s t h a t had been i n a c t i v e f o r an excessive amount of time? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, Su i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

75 

A. I t ' s tough t o remember exact dates, but I would 

say a t l e a s t by the time you and I were to g e t h e r i n June a t 

t h i s time, meeting. 

Q. Okay. And d u r i n g t h a t June meeting, t h e r e were a 

number of t h i n g s discussed, i n c l u d i n g the OCD's concerns about 

i n a c t i v e w e l l s t h a t X e r i c had; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. As w e l l as the f i n a n c i a l assurances t h a t were 

owed by Xeric? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And a t t h a t time, X e r i c agreed t o come back t o 

the OCD w i t h some k i n d of a plan of a c t i o n about how i t 

decided -- how i t planned t o p r i o r i t i z e i t s e f f o r t s t o come 

i n t o compliance? 

A. Right. The p r e s i d e n t of Xe r i c a t t h a t p o i n t was 

Mr. C o l l i e r , and we had agreed t o do t h a t . And he was given 

the task of a d m i n i s t e r i n g t h a t . 

Q. Okay. And t h a t r e p o r t was t o have i n f o r m a t i o n 

regarding some k i n d of a time frame f o r coming i n t o compliance 

w i t h the r u l e -- what's p r e v i o u s l y been r e f e r r e d t o as Rule 201 

and Rule 101 f o r the i n a c t i v e w e l l and f i n a n c i a l assurance and 

noncompliance? 

A. As I r e c a l l i t , i t was t o i n c l u d e the w e l l s t h a t 

w i t h were t o work over i n the immediate f u t u r e and then a long 

term p l a n . 
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Q. Okay. And t h a t was t o be given t o the OCD w i t h 

enough time to review p r i o r t o the next h e a r i n g so we cou l d 

determine whether or not we go needed t o go forw a r d w i t h the 

heari n g ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? I s t h a t your r e c o l l e c t i o n ? 

A. Once again, I don't remember a l l these 

s p e c i f i c a l l y , but t h a t makes sense t h a t t h a t would have been 

the purpose of i t . 

Q. Okay. And again, t h a t occurred i n June, and the 

next hearing, I b e l i e v e , was set i n July? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And Mr. C o l l i e r or your company never got us 

anything before t h a t J u l y hearing, d i d you? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. You i n d i c a t e d t h a t you were advised i n August 

t h a t we s t i l l had not been provided w i t h t h a t r e p o r t . You may 

have s t a t e d t h i s already, but how d i d t h a t come t o your 

a t t e n t i o n ? 

A. Counsel had contacted me, b a s i c a l l y , s t a t i n g t h a t 

t h ere had t o be a r e p o r t . The r e p o r t t h a t was refere n c e d i n 

June had t o be prepared and f i l e d as the hearing was coming i n 

the f i r s t week of September, i f I r e c a l l t h a t r i g h t . 

And I do remember t h i n k i n g about maybe even asking 

counsel -- but once again, i t ' s a phone con v e r s a t i o n — why i t 

wasn't completed, and not r e a l l y r e c a l l i n g why i t wasn't 

completed, and we t r i e d t o contact our p a r t n e r at the time, 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

77 

Mr. C o l l i e r , and I , i n t u r n , completed the r e p o r t . 

Q. Okay. So you were the one t h a t a c t u a l l y 

completed the r e p o r t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you were a t t h a t June meeting where we 

discussed what was t o be i n c l u d e d i n t h a t r e p o r t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i s the e x p l a n a t i o n f o r why t h a t r e p o r t 

d i d n ' t i n c l u d e more d e t a i l s as t o what your plans were going 

forward f o r p r i o r i t i z i n g your e f f o r t s t o come i n t o compliance? 

A. The u n f o r t u n a t e circumstance, but i t i s a f a c t , 

t h a t the task of completing t h a t r e p o r t should have been 

completed at the f i e l d l e v e l by our p a r t n e r , Mr. C o l l i e r . And 

at the time, Mr. St. John was out working, and I had t o 

complete the r e p o r t t o get i t done i n a t i m e l y manner. 

And we were t r y i n g t o reorganize and f i g u r e out how 

t o move forward the best way. So t o answer your q u e s t i o n , I 

hone s t l y d i d n ' t know how t o complete the r e p o r t p r o p e r l y . 

Q. Okay. Did you, a t any time, consider c o n t a c t i n g 

the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e — you had been given a t l e a s t one person's 

name i n t h a t o f f i c e -- f o r assistance i n t r y i n g t o complete 

t h a t r e p o r t and come up w i t h some s o r t of more d e t a i l e d 

framework f o r t h a t r e p o r t ? 

A. Mr. St. John had t r i e d t o v i s i t w i t h the d i s t r i c t 

o f f i c e a couple of times p r i o r t o me completing the r e p o r t i n 
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August, i f I r e c a l l . And those were unsuccessful, and so a t 

t h a t p o i n t , I j u s t completed the r e p o r t and submitted i t . 

Q. Okay. But you, p e r s o n a l l y , d i d not make any 

e f f o r t s t o e i t h e r telephone, e-mail, by any means, contact the 

d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Were you advised t h a t the OCD was not s a t i s f i e d 

w i t h the content of the r e p o r t upon r e c e i p t ? 

A. At the he a r i n g I was advised of t h a t , not p r i o r . 

Q. You do r e c a l l a t the hearing, at the D i v i s i o n 

l e v e l , acknowledging t h a t you understand t h a t r egardless of 

what you f e e l your f i n a n c i a l c o n s t r a i n t s are t h a t you're not 

supposed t o be proceeding t o operate, t h a t you are o p e r a t i n g i n 

v i o l a t i o n of OCD r u l e s u n t i l you post those s i n g l e w e l l bonds? 

A. That i s my understanding. And u n f o r t u n a t e l y , 

we've had t o use the resources t h a t we have a v a i l a b l e t o t r y 

and improve the circumstance of the s i t u a t i o n on the f i e l d 

l e v e l as w e l l as p o s s i b l e . 

Q. Why i s i t t h a t X e r i c f e e l s l i k e the r u l e s don't 

apply or apply s p e c i a l t o them, whereas other operators have t o 

post those bonds i n order t o continue operating? 

A. I would say t h a t ' s an assumption. We don't 

assume or t h i n k t h a t we don't have t o abide by the law or the 

r e g u l a t i o n s . We j u s t do not have the resources or f i n a n c i a l 

c a p a b i l i t y o f p o s t i n g these bonds. 
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And i f we do not increase p r o d u c t i o n , then we cannot 

continue t o improve w e l l bores. 

Q. But you continued t o dedicate other money t o 

other resources r a t h e r than post the money t h a t i s due t o the 

D i v i s i o n a t t h i s time. 

A. Resources i n improving l o c a t i o n s , yes, we have, 

out of the p r o d u c t i o n and out of what t r e a s u r y we have 

a v a i l a b l e . 

Q. Okay. Regarding the testimony t h a t was pr o v i d e d 

a t the l a s t h e aring r e g a r d i n g the Gregory and the Crosby Deep 

leases t h a t were i n i t i a l l y the focus of Xer i c ' s e f f o r t s t o 

begin coming i n t o compliance, you t e s t i f i e d t h a t a f t e r t h a t 

h e aring i t was decided t o s h i f t the focus t o the Pearl Queen 

p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Did anybody i n the X e r i c framework ever advise 

anybody i n the OCD t h a t t h a t focus had s h i f t e d ? 

A. Baker had begun corresponding back and f o r t h w i t h 

the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e w i t h , I b e l i e v e , Buddy H i l l and L o r i 

Johnson. I ' d have t o go back and check my communications, b u t , 

yes, they had begun communicating w i t h the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e on 

va r i o u s areas on making sure they were doing t h i n g s p r o p e r l y on 

the f i e l d l e v e l and communicating s o l u t i o n s and r e p a i r s on the 

f i e l d . So yes. 

Q. Okay. But having j u s t p rovided testimony at the 
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hearing l e v e l , at the Santa Fe l e v e l t h a t we could expect t o 

receive a number of sundries t o be f i l e d , d i d anybody ever 

advise the OCD t h a t those sundries were not going t o be f i l e d ? 

A. No. But a l o t can happen i n a couple of weeks, 

and d u r i n g t h a t time frame, we were on the f i e l d working w i t h 

Baker and g e t t i n g the problems f i x e d . 

We had not informed you t h a t we weren't going t o f i l e 

those Crosby sundries, but we had informed the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e 

of our i n t e n t and as w e l l as asking questions about the best 

ways t o get i t completed. 

Q. When you decided t o s h i f t your focus and l e t the 

Crosby and Gregory leases f a l l by the wayside, what happened t o 

those BLM deadlines? Did you j u s t decide those d i d n ' t matter 

e i t h e r ? 

A. No. Once again, those sundries f o r the BLM were 

i n i t i a l l y f i l e d by the previous owner i n May of 2008. They had 

no power t o sign or a u t h o r i t y t o si g n on the sundry w i t h the 

BLM. 

We had contacted the BLM and asked them, you know, 

"We j u s t got approved sundry back from you t h a t we d i d n ' t s i g n , 

t h a t was signed by the previous owner two and a h a l f months 

a f t e r they had given up c o n t r o l of the company. At t h i s time 

we have t o focus our a t t e n t i o n on other w e l l s . What i s the 

best way t o handle t h i s ? " 

They informed us t o f i l e a sundry and t o request an 
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given us a f i n a l deadline f o r the February 1 time frame. P r i o r 

t o the February 1 time frame, our goal was a b s o l u t e l y t o 

complete working over the 1, 3, and 4 Crosby Deep w e l l s i n 

accord w i t h those sundries, but the c a p i t a l resources were 

delayed i n doing so. 

Q. I n f a c t , d i d n ' t you l i s t as your reason f o r a 

need f o r an extension on those r i g a v a i l a b i l i t y ? 

A. Co r r e c t . 

Q. And there's not --

A. But t h a t was a couple of months p r i o r t o the 

f i n a l date. So I suppose I ' d admit t h a t we have t o f i l e an 

amended sundry as proof — 

Q. Was t h e r e t r u l y an issue w i t h r i g a v a i l a b i l i t y at 

the time t h a t you f i l e d the need f o r an extension? 

A. I don't r e c a l l . I wasn't the one c o n t r a c t e d . 

That's Ron's r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . 

Q. Okay. You had mentioned t h a t you have experience 

i n other s t a t e s b r i n g i n g w e l l s i n t o compliance, and t h a t was 

one of the t h i n g s t h a t made you t h i n k you wanted t o take on the 

New Mexico X e r i c w e l l s . 

I t h i n k at the previous hearing, you t e s t i f i e d about 

Wyoming and Montana where you had taken on some Xe r i c w e l l s ; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 
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Q. What i s the c u r r e n t s t a t u s of the Montana X e r i c 

w e l l s ? 

A. B a s i c a l l y , a t t h i s p o i n t , as of December, as o f , 

I b e l i e v e , as of the f i r s t week of January, they a r e n ' t 

producing any more a t t h i s p o i n t . We have a b i g , deep discount 

on s e l l i n g our o i l up t h e r e . And we are r e a l l o c a t i n g our 

resources and pumpers t o get them t o r e t u r n back t o p r o d u c t i o n 

here i n the next month or so. 

Q. I n f a c t , aren't t h e r e only 26 w e l l s i n Montana, 

and out of t h a t , 17 are shut-in? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Only f i v e are producing? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And i n the Wyoming w e l l s , there's only t en 

we l l s up t h e r e ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And only three of them are producing; seven of 

them are s h u t - i n . 

A. Seven of them are b a s i c a l l y f o r c e d from X e r i c 

because the p i p e l i n e w i t h PRB gas was i n bankruptcy, so t h a t ' s 

not r e l e v a n t . 

Q. Okay. When you use as examples your h i s t o r y i n 

other s t a t e s f o r going i n and revamping other delinquent u n i t s , 

t h a t ' s not e x a c t l y a p p l i c a b l e t o the k i n d of numbers t h a t we're 

t a l k i n g about here i n New Mexico, i s i t ? 
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A. I t i s n ' t , but we d i d s t i l l do i t , and we d i d 

accomplish i t . I'm not going t o say t h a t we d i d n ' t overreach a 

l i t t l e b i t , but there's no questio n t h a t we're s t i l l here 

t r y i n g t o get i t done. 

Q. Let's t a l k a l i t t l e b i t about the corporate 

s t a t u s o f X e r i c . You took over X e r i c i n March of 2008. Why 

haven't you f i l e d the proper paperwork amending a n y t h i n g w i t h 

the PRC here i n New Mexico? 

A. I b e l i e v e -- I don't know. 

Q. Okay. Does i t s u r p r i s e you t o know t h a t i n 

New Mexico, according t o the Pu b l i c Regulations Commission, 

X e r i c O i l and Gas s t i l l has the o f f i c e r s of Joe Cook and Walter 

King, and a r e g i s t e r e d agent of Gary Don Regan, and a m a i l i n g 

address of P.O. Box 7288, Odessa, Texas? 

A. Yeah. That's the previous owner. 

Q. So I can see a l i t t l e b i t of confusion here as t o 

e x a c t l y which X e r i c we're d e a l i n g w i t h , p a r t i c u l a r l y i f some 

compassion i s being asked f o r i n the terms of the f a c t t h a t 

y o u - a l l are new hands on t h i s o p e r a t o r s h i p . 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I s there a question i n t h e r e 

somewhere? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t ' s a l i t t l e b i t argumentative, 

Counsel. Why don't you ask a question? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Got ya. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Just f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n 
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purposes, are you --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm assuming t h a t was an 

obj e c t i o n . 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: That was an o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Sustained. 

MS. ALTOMARE: The D i v i s i o n i s a c t u a l l y asking t h a t 

the Commission e n t e r an order p l u g g i n g j u s t the w e l l s t h a t were 

i n c l u d e d i n t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n , not a l l of the X e r i c w e l l s . So 

j u s t -- I t h i n k t h e r e was some testimony e a r l i e r . I j u s t 

wanted t o make sure t h a t t h a t was c l e a r . 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): As X e r i c proceeds t o go 

forward, you i n t e n d t o remain as a c o n s u l t a n t as your r o l e ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Okay. And you don't i n t e n d t o r e g a i n -- or, I 

mean, r e t u r n t o a p o s i t i o n as a p r i n c i p a l i n the company? 

A. As the r i g h t time i s , I would enjoy t h a t . But at 

t h i s time, I can't g i v e you a t i m e l i n e . 

Q. Okay. Give me j u s t one minute. I t h i n k I might 

be done. 

How many employees i n New Mexico does X e r i c employ? 

A. We work sub c o n t r a c t o r s . And a t t h i s p o i n t , Ron 

St. John has been the main p r i n c i p a l on the ground, and w i t h 

new p a r t n e r s h i p f o r X e r i c t h e r e w i l l be another f u l l - t i m e 

employee on the ground i n New Mexico. 

Q. So up u n t i l now between, f o r instance, the 
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l a s t h e aring and now d u r i n g your e f f o r t s t o t r y and get i n t o 

compliance, there's been a employee? 

A. Well, t h a t ' s not t r u e , because we c o n t r a c t e d 

Baker t o be on the f i e l d , and, t h e r e f o r e , they were our 

employees on the ground. 

Q. And how many i n d i v i d u a l s were working through 

Baker on b e h a l f of Xe r i c though t h a t p r o j e c t ? 

A. I know we had f i v e or s i x working out of Hobbs on 

a f u l l - t i m e basis a t t h a t p o i n t , running c o n t r a c t o r s f o r the 

r i g companies and the roustabouts. 

Q. And again, X e r i c has 110 w e l l s i n New Mexico? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And 88 a t the time were out of compliance? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. 

MS. ALTOMARE: That's a l l the questions I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. Do you s t i l l have contact w i t h Baker Energy? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t , our c o n t r a c t i s not s t i l l i n place 

w i t h them. 

Q. So the one and only person t h a t would be working 

i n New Mexico would be Mr. St. John? 

A. No. H e ' l l also have another p a r t n e r w i t h Dan 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, S u i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



86 

Johnson who comes w i t h R e s i l i e n t Energy. And — 

Q. Could you please repeat what energy company? I 

cannot r e a l l y hear i t . 

A. Sorry. X e r i c has formed a p a r t n e r s h i p w i t h 

R e s i l i e n t Energy. 

Q. R e s i l i e n t Energy. Okay. 

A. And w i t h t h a t , w e ' l l have a f u l l - t i m e hand or 

pa r t n e r on the f i e l d l e v e l , as w e l l , w i t h Mr. St. John. 

Q. So you w i l l have two people? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Okay. Do they have an o f f i c e i n Lea County? 

A. We do not have an o f f i c e i n Lea County. 

Q. So Mr. St. John i s based i n Houston? 

A. Midland. 

Q. Midland? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. I s Xe r i c up f o r sale? 

A. Xeric i s not up f o r sale. 

Q. Why not? 

A. Because we want t o b r i n g t h i s t o completion, and 

Xer i c wants to b r i n g the w e l l s i n t o p r o d u c t i o n . They formed a 

p a r t n e r s h i p w i t h another company t o improve t h e i r manpower and 

management and c a p i t a l resources, and they b e l i e v e they can 

grow t h i s company t o be a good company. 

Q. No plans t o f i l e bankruptcy? 
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A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Can you give me a h i s t o r y o f what companies each 

of the p a r t n e r s has been associated w i t h f o r op e r a t i o n s i n 

New Mexico? 

A. I'm s o r r y . Are you asking which companies we've 

h i r e d as c o n t r a c t o r s or the experience any of us have had 

working w i t h other o p e r a t i n g companies i n New Mexico? 

Q. Have you ever been a p r i n c i p a l i n another company 

t h a t has operated i n New Mexico? 

A. I have n o t . 

Q. Has Mr. St. John? 

A. I b e l i e v e he has operated i n New Mexico bef o r e , 

but I don't know. 

Q. Okay. How about F i e l d e r ? 

A. No. 

Q. No experience. How about C o l l i e r ? 

A. C o l l i e r had extensive experience i n the State of 

New Mexico. 

Q. With what companies as operator? 

A. C o l l i e r Sergo i n the past; C o l l i e r D r i l l i n g 

Company. He d r i l l e d a l o t of the w e l l s i n Lea County, New 

Mexico. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: C o l l i e r and C o l l i e r out of 

Ar t e s i a ? 

THE WITNESS: C o l l i e r and C o l l i e r . And t h a t had 
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given us comfort a t the time of the a c q u i s i t i o n , h i s experience 

i n the State of New Mexico. 

Q. (By Commissioner B a i l e y ) : You made an 

i n t e r e s t i n g comment t h a t C o l l i e r was i n charge, but he's no 

longer i n charge. But i s he s t i l l a s s o c i a t e d w i t h the company? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Okay. So out of the o r i g i n a l p r i n c i p a l s , you've 

backed out, C o l l i e r ' s backed out, F i e l d e r has come on, and 

St. John has been the only c o n t i n u i n g o f f i c e r of the company? 

A. The l a s t statement i s accurate. He's the only 

c o n t i n u i n g o f f i c e r . I haven't backed out, j u s t the 

circumstance w i t h r e l a t i o n s h i p s w i t h our c a p i t a l placed i n the 

company r e q u i r e d f o r my p o s i t i o n t o change, but my 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s haven't. 

Q. I j u s t keep hearing, "No, i t ' s h i s f a u l t . No, 

i t ' s h i s f a u l t . I t ' s not my f a u l t , but i t ' s h i s f a u l t . " 

So I'm t r y i n g t o f i n d out where the c o n t i n u i n g 

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y can be placed f o r going forward, as you say. 

A. And the c o n t i n u i n g r e s p o n s i b i l i t y can be placed 

on the group t h a t you see here today as witnesses between 

Mr. F i e l d e r and myself and Mr. St. John and another associate 

w i t h R e s i l i e n t Energy, Dan Johnson. 

Q. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: T h a t ' s a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 
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EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Well, I guess I ' l l f o l l o w up a l i t t l e as w e l l on 

some of these issues w i t h compliance. I t ' s my understanding, I 

t h i n k , from seeing from your pre-hearing statement X e r i c f i l e d 

t h a t you're w i l l i n g t o enter i n t o an agreed compliance order --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. -- w i t h the D i v i s i o n . So i s t h e r e any proposal 

t h a t ' s been presented t o the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. We have been working through t h a t over the past 

couple o f weeks, and I b e l i e v e we are prepared t o submit a 

proposal. 

Q. But you don't have any proposal t o even present 

to us here today as t o how you would come i n t o compliance? 

A. I am not sure I'm the best person t o submit a 

proposal t o you, s i r . I f e e l c o n f i d e n t t h a t we would be 

w i l l i n g t o submit a proposal at t h i s meeting. I j u s t don't 

f e e l I'm the best person t o do t h a t , s i r . 

Q. So someone else could answer t h a t t h a t ' s coming 

up? 

A. I b e l i e v e Mr. F i e l d e r i s probably the best t o 

answer t h a t . 

Q. And I guess I'm a l i t t l e confused because we're 

l o o k i n g at -- I t h i n k what we're l o o k i n g a t here i s p o s t i n g 

over $660,000 f o r b r i n g i n g w e l l s i n t o compliance, but as I 
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understand i t , you spent $700,000 r e c e n t l y which you could have 

used t o come i n t o compliance. 

So why wasn't t h a t money used t o come i n t o compliance 

by p o s t i n g s i n g l e w e l l bonds versus the work t h a t was 

conducted? 

A. We had spent t h a t c a p i t a l t o improve the assets. 

Being completely honest, we had expected more w e l l s t o come o f f 

of the l i s t and a c t u a l l y have a very s u b s t a n t i a l amount of the 

we l l s o f f the l i s t t o prove our c o n s i d e r a t i o n or our d e s i r e t o 

get these w e l l s back i n t o o v e r a l l compliance. 

And t h a t ' s the t r u e i n t e n t of completing t h a t work, 

as w e l l as having v i a b l e p r o d u c t i o n f o r the business. 

Q. But i t ' s my understanding t h a t you spent 

$700,000, and only seven w e l l s were brought i n t o compliance? 

A. Rig h t . And i n c l a r i f i c a t i o n , we have a t t h i s 

p o i n t — and, I guess, i t ' s tough t o answer t h a t because yes, 

we've only taken seven w e l l s o f f the l i s t . 

So -- s o r r y . Yes. We've only been able t o take 

seven w e l l s o f f the l i s t so f a r w i t h t h a t work. 

Q. Because I was j u s t l o o k i n g at t h a t t h i n k i n g 

t h a t ' s roughly $100,000 a w e l l . 

A. Well, there was a l o t of surface work t h a t had t o 

be completed where a s u b s t a n t i a l amount of the c a p i t a l was 

worked w i t h roustabouts i n cle a n i n g up l o c a t i o n s from previous 

operators. There was a l o t of de b r i s i n places. And we d i d 
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have some work t o complete t o get w e l l s back i n t o p r o d u c t i o n on 

some of the other w e l l s not on the l i s t . 

Q. But wouldn't you expect t o have the same k i n d of 

costs t o b r i n g the other w e l l s on l i n e as we l l ? 

A. Well , we b e l i e v e moving forward t h a t -- or Xeric 

b e l i e v e s t h a t moving forward w i t h new p a r t n e r s t h a t we w i l l be 

able t o be more e f f i c i e n t i n t h a t we don't expect i t t o be 

cheap, but we do expect t o be able t o a l l o c a t e and place 

c a p i t a l f o r s p e c i f i c items i n improving f i e l d l o c a t i o n s and 

w e l l bores. 

Q. I t j u s t seems t o me t h a t i f you're l o o k i n g at 

$100,000, which i s what you've done so f a r , $100,000 a w e l l , 

and you've got 81 w e l l s t o go, you're l o o k i n g at --

A. $8.8 m i l l i o n , but we don't expect t h a t t o be the 

way moving forward. We have a s u b s t a n t i a l amount of the 

cleanup done. There i s more cleanup t o continue w i t h . We have 

a s u b s t a n t i a l amount of i t completed. 

And we do have a l o t of work t o be done on w e l l 

bores. And we don't expect i t t o be cheap, but we know i n our 

business t h a t we are capable of p l a c i n g the c a p i t a l t o improve 

and r e t u r n t o p r o d u c t i o n w e l l bores. 

Q. I guess at best, then, how many w e l l s can you 

b r i n g o n l i n e and i n what k i n d of time frame? 

A. I s t h i s t o be an agreed compliance order at t h i s 

p o i n t i n my statement? 
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MS. MUNDS-DRY: Commissioner Olson, we're going t o 

have Ron St. John and Mr. F i e l d s , and I t h i n k both of those 

gentlemen are b e t t e r equipped t o give you -- p a r t i c u l a r l y 

Mr. St. John, who i s an operations person, who can give you the 

f i e l d experience as t o what k i n d of work they can do and i n 

what k i n d of time p e r i o d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But I would l i k e t o hear 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d answer the qu e s t i o n . I understand what you're 

saying, but I would l i k e t o hear the answer t o t h a t q u e s t i o n . 

How many w e l l s can you b r i n g back i n t o compliance? 

THE WITNESS: I b e l i e v e i n our f i n a n c i n g 

conversations and economics and t r y i n g t o place the c a p i t a l , we 

were expecting t o have 40 w e l l s back i n t o compliance and 

re t u r n e d t o c o n s i s t e n t p r o d u c t i o n i n the f i r s t year. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: F i r s t of 2009? 

THE WITNESS: W i t h i n 12 months from r i g - u p date. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Which was August — 

THE WITNESS: August. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — expected t o be. 

THE WITNESS: Rig-up date w i t h the new c a p i t a l 

p a r t n e r s w i t h R e s i l i e n t moving forward, s i r . 

Q. (By Commissioner Olson): Well, I guess I come 

back t o t h a t same issue. I f you can't put up the s i n g l e bond 

money, which seems t o be s u b s t a n t i a l l y l e s s than what i t would 

take t o b r i n g these w e l l s i n t o compliance, how are you going t o 
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f i n a n c i a l l y b r i n g these w e l l s i n t o compliance, then? 

A. We're able t o r a i s e c a p i t a l and make markets f o r 

r e t u r n i n g w e l l s back t o p r o d u c t i o n . I n v e s t o r s t h a t place 

c a p i t a l haven't been w i l l i n g i n these markets t o place c a p i t a l 

f o r bonding. We are, however, able t o place c a p i t a l i n 

redevelopment programs at the f i e l d l e v e l . 

Q. So i s X e r i c , then, a c o r p o r a t i o n ? I s what --

A. X e r i c i s a c o r p o r a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. But t h a t ' s not -- from what I understand, 

i t ' s not r e f l e c t e d i n any of the State records w i t h the Public 

Regulation Commission? 

A. That was also brought t o my a t t e n t i o n j u s t now, 

s i r . We are up-to-date on our f i l i n g s and records where we are 

down south i n the State of Texas, b u t , u n f o r t u n a t e l y , had not 

taken care of t h a t i n the State of New Mexico y e t . 

Q. So how many shareholders are t h e r e i n Xeric? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t , one w i t h R e s i l i e n t . R e s i l i e n t 

Energy has purchased the stock of the company. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 100 percent of the stock? 

THE WITNESS: 100 percent of the stock. 

Q. (By Commissioner Olson): What k i n d of e n t i t y i s 

R e s i l i e n t , then? 

A. Mr. F i e l d e r i s best t o ask t h a t from. 

Q. Okay. Okay. I t h i n k you were t e s t i f y i n g t h a t 

X e r i c doesn't have the f i n a n c i a l c a p a b i l i t y t o place a s i n g l e 
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w e l l bond. So, I guess, what evidence do we have of the 

f i n a n c i a l c o n d i t i o n of Xe r i c , other than what your testimony 

i s ? 

A. X e r i c i s completing an a u d i t t o be a f u l l y 

r e p o r t i n g company w i t h R e s i l i e n t as a wholly-owned s u b s i d i a r y 

of R e s i l i e n t Energy, of which t o be c l e a r , Ron St. John and 

Mr. F i e l d e r and Dan Johnson are s i g n i f i c a n t stockholders of 

R e s i l i e n t Energy, I guess, t o c l a r i f y t h a t l a s t q u e s t i o n . 

Q. But then -- okay. Well, maybe they can help 

answer t h a t when they t e s t i f y . 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I guess you were saying X e r i c has producing 

p r o p e r t i e s i n Montana and Wyoming. Do they have any i n other 

s t a t e s as w e l l or j u s t Wyoming and Montana? 

A. Just those two s t a t e s , yes, s i r . 

Q. And, I guess, why d i d C o l l i e r leave Xeric? He 

was a p r i n c i p a l , I guess, when t h i s purchase occurred? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And so why d i d he leave? 

A. I t r u l y do not have a c l e a r answer f o r t h a t . 

When he had b a s i c a l l y l e f t X e r i c , he had k i n d of j u s t gone 

missing i n a c t i o n . I t was tough f o r us t o reach him. There 

was no, b a s i c a l l y , no formal buyout or disagreement between any 

of us as p a r t n e r s , besides the f a c t t h a t we had r e a l i z e d he 

wasn't f u l f i l l i n g on h i s o b l i g a t i o n s w i t h the company where 
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when you have p a r t n e r s , you g e n e r a l l y t r u s t i n your p a r t n e r t o 

do h i s j o b . 

His reasons f o r l e a v i n g the company we're not sure, 

and they would o n l y be assumptions i f I mentioned them. We 

d i d n ' t have anyt h i n g t h a t caused a quote, unquote, breakup, 

besides him not pe r f o r m i n g h i s d u t i e s towards the l a t t e r end of 

summer 2000 --

Q. But he was han d l i n g -- h i s r o l e was t o handle the 

New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s ; i s t h a t what I understand? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And where was he based out of then? 

A. He was based out of Odessa and Roswell, back and 

f o r t h i n t h a t area. 

Q. Okay. I guess i f these w e l l s had t o be plugged, 

what would you estimate the cost t o pl u g g i n g them t o come i n as 

p a r t of the --

A. I have t o be honest. I don't work on the f i e l d 

l e v e l , so I would have t o ask Ron. I f you were t o ask me on 

the phone, I would c a l l Ron and ask him the estimated cost f o r 

plug g i n g the w e l l s . But I'm going t o assume the cost would be 

s u b s t a n t i a l . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: That's a l l the questions I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have a whole another sheet j u s t 

o f f of your questions. 

. . ... 
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EX7AMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Where i s Mr. C o l l i e r now? 

A. I t h i n k he's i n Roswell. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Why do you t h i n k he i s i n Roswell? 

A. That's the l a s t place we placed him. Yeah. 

Q. Now, Mr. C o l l i e r was a p a r t n e r i n X e r i c , wasn't 

he? 

A. He was p r e s i d e n t of the company a t t h a t time. 

Q. Okay. Was he an owner i n Xeric? 

A. CSC, LLC, had owned h a l f of the stock i n the 

company, and my investment group had owned about h a l f the 

company. 

Q. CSC i s what? 

A. I t ' s j u s t an e n t i t y t h a t Mr. St. John and Tim 

C o l l i e r had opened t o g e t h e r , j u s t a company t h a t owned the 

stock on be h a l f of t h e i r share of the company. 

Q. Okay. CSC stood f o r C o l l i e r , St. John, and who? 

A. Cross. 

Q. Who's Cross? I s Mr. St. John going t o t e s t i f y t o 

t h i s ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: H e ' l l be up next, Chairman Fesmire. 

Q. (By Chairman Fesmire): Okay. C o l l i e r , St. John, 
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and Cross owned h a l f o f the stock i n X e r i c , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Who owned the other h a l f ? 

A. VRH C a p i t a l , my investment e n t i t y . 

Q. Okay. Do you have an i n t e r e s t i n VRH C a p i t a l , or 

are you j u s t --

A. I'm the general p a r t n e r of the group. 

Q. Okay. And the general p a r t n e r h e l d what 

percentage of the p a r t n e r s h i p ? 

A. We d i d n ' t h o l d a s p e c i f i c e q u i t y p o r t i o n . I t ' s 

j u s t a l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p t h a t ' s s t r u c t u r e d as a hedge fund, 

so i t ' s an asset management fee, and then I get p a i d o f f of 

p r o f i t s of investments. Just a standard fund s t r u c t u r e . 

Q. Okay. You make a r e a l l y i n t e r e s t i n g statement, 

t o me. Between September and Thanksgiving Baker/Hughes b i l l e d 

you f o r $700,000, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. How much d i d you pay? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t , we've p a i d $300,000 of t h a t 

b i l l i n g , 

b i l l i n g ? 

Q. Okay. And what d i d you get f o r t h a t $700,000 i n 

A. Roustabout s e r v i c e , r i g time on the w e l l s t h a t we 

d i d work over. B a s i c a l l y , a comprehensive management services 

agreement, so they were working w i t h us t o manage the crews on 
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the f i e l d and correspond w i t h the OCD f i l i n g sundries on a 

t i m e l y n o t i c e and so f o r t h . 

Q. And seven w e l l s back on production? 

A. Correct. 

Q. How much o i l and gas i s Xe r i c making now? Let's 

see, the l a s t r e p o r t i n g p e r i o d i n New Mexico was? 

A. December. I t ' s been f i l e d so f a r --

Q. January because we're 15 days i n t o February. 

What d i d X e r i c make i n January i n New Mexico? 

A. I don't have the s p e c i f i c number, but I would say 

approximately 700 b a r r e l s o f o i l f o r the month. 

Q. And you do the books f o r X e r i c , r i g h t ? 

A. I do have an a s s i s t a n t t h a t does the C-115s and 

books. 

Q. And the books? The f i n a n c i a l books? Who does 

the f i n a n c i a l books? 

A. I've been h a n d l i n g the books. 

Q. What was Xeric's cash flow i n January of t h i s 

year? 

A. We honestly have not been p a i d f o r t h a t y e t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I'm assuming i t ' s going t o be $30,000 f o r the 

month. 

Q. That's a p o s i t i v e cash flow of $30,000? 

A. No. That's a revenue number. 
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Q. That's a revenue number. 

A. Our pumper costs — we had some copper l i n e 

s t o l e n from the West Pearl Queen t h a t cost us some money t o 

r e p a i r . So our net f o r the month a f t e r the net revenue 

i n t e r e s t s w i l l probably be $4- or $5,000 at the end of the 

month. 

Q. Okay. Now, l e t ' s t a l k a l i t t l e b i t about 

R e s i l i e n t Energy. Who i s R e s i l i e n t Energy? 

A. R e s i l i e n t Energy i s Mr. K e l l y F i e l d e r and Dan 

Johnson, and Ron St. John i s al s o a p a r t of R e s i l i e n t Energy 

now as w e l l . 

Q. And they are the 100 percent — they own 

100 percent of the stock of Xeric? 

A. R e s i l i e n t does own 100 percent of the stock of 

X e r i c . 

Q. Okay. And you are a c t i n g as a c o n s u l t a n t t o 

X e r i c or t o R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t , I've been a c t i n g as a c o n s u l t a n t 

t o X e r i c , and the p o s i t i o n i s being t r a n s f e r r e d t o R e s i l i e n t as 

w e l l . 

Q. Now, i s t h a t as a c o n s u l t a n t or a p o s i t i o n ? 

A. Consultant. 

Q. So who's your c o n t r a c t with? 

A. My c o n t r a c t i s w i t h R e s i l i e n t now. 

Q. So you're a c o n s u l t a n t t o R e s i l i e n t ? 
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A. Ex a c t l y . 

Q. Did you put the o r i g i n a l deal — and when I say 

o r i g i n a l , I mean the second most recent t r a n s f e r of X e r i c --

d i d you put t h a t deal together? Not the one w i t h R e s i l i e n t , 

but the one before t h a t ? 

between Mr. Cook and Mr. St. John and C o l l i e r , and I had come 

down -- because I had i n v e s t e d and worked w i t h Mr. C o l l i e r and 

Mr. St. John i n the past, and I had come down and done the due 

d i l i g e n c e t h a t I had done a t the time, and so the deal was more 

put t o g e t h e r by St. John, C o l l i e r , and Cook. 

Q. Okay. And CSC was the h o l d i n g company i n t h a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And CSC was what percentage C o l l i e r ? 

A. I t was 50 percent C o l l i e r . 

Q. Okay. And CSC owned what percentage i n the 

o r i g i n a l purchase of Xeric? What percentage of X e r i c d i d CSC 

buy? 

A. 50 percent. 

Q. And at t h a t time, who r e t a i n e d the other 

50 percent? 

A. I t had been -- a l o t of i t was put to g e t h e r 

A. My l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p . 

Q. Okay. Your l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. How d i d you get an i n t e r e s t at t h a t time? 
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A. I d i d n ' t get an i n t e r e s t besides what was 

c o n t r o l l e d by the l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p . 

Q. Okay. So CSC bought the whole t h i n g and carved 

out 50 percent f o r you or your company? 

A. That's not c o r r e c t . The c a p i t a l was prov i d e d by 

my l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p i n i t i a l l y f o r an a c q u i s i t i o n . CSC had 

c o n t r i b u t e d t o Xe r i c the p r o p e r t i e s t h a t are up i n the Rocky 

Mountains as t h e i r c o n t r i b u t i o n f o r stock i n the company. 

Q. Okay. So you purchased X e r i c , a t l e a s t X e r i c 

New Mexico; they c o n t r i b u t e d the Rocky Mountain p r o p e r t i e s . 

And at t h a t p o i n t , the company was s t r u c t u r e d 50 percent CSC, 

50 percent your l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p ? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. Okay. Now, Mr. C o l l i e r d i d n ' t perform according 

t o you, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. How d i d you get out of CSC/Xeric? Did you buy 

him out? Or d i d you j u s t declare, "We own the p r o p e r t i e s ? " 

A. He was b a s i c a l l y removed on the CSC l e v e l . 

Q. When you say "removed," l e t ' s t a l k about — I 

mean, he i s a 50-percent owner. How do you remove a 50-percent 

owner? 

A. He was an owner i n CSC, which i s 50-percent 

owner. He was removed from h i s p o s i t i o n i n Xe r i c as p r e s i d e n t . 

He was p r e s i d e n t at the time. And --
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Q. But as a 50-percent owner i n CSC, he s t i l l owns 

25 percent o f X e r i c . 

A. Right. And Mr. St. John was the managing member 

of t h a t LLC, and Mr. C o l l i e r was j u s t a member. 

Q. But the questio n i s : He s t i l l owns 25 percent. 

How i s he, quote, removed from a p a r t n e r s h i p where he 

e s s e n t i a l l y owns 25 percent of the company? 

A. I am not an o f f i c e r of CSC. I h o n e s t l y do not 

d i c t a t e t h e i r a c t i o n s and t h e i r books. I suppose I would 

suggest us producing corporate minutes f o r the company t o you, 

i f you wish. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h e x a c t l y how he was removed. 

I do know on the CSC c o r p o r a t i o n books --

Q. I s t h i s a questi o n we need t o ask Mr. St. John? 

A. I b e l i e v e so. I know he has counsel f o r CSC as 

w e l l t h a t we could submit documentation on i n the f u t u r e as 

w e l l . 

Q. Well, I j u s t want t o know. 

A. But you're i n t e r e s t e d now. 

Q. Yes. The question, I guess, I'm asking i s : We 

keep g e t t i n g t o l d t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r i s out, but i t looks t o me 

l i k e he s t i l l owns 25 percent of the assets. 

A. No. He would j u s t have -- i f t h a t were t r u e , i f 

he were -- i f t h a t were the case, then he would simply be a 

holder i n the LLC i n which Mr. St. John -- or CSC. And CSC has 

a stock p o s i t i o n i n R e s i l i e n t , but he's no longer an o f f i c e r i n 

500 
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the company. So he's e f f e c t i v e l y out. 

But i f he owns stock s t i l l through CSC, then -- I 

don't know how t o b e t t e r e x p l a i n i t than t h a t , s i r . I suppose 

maybe he could e f f e c t i v e l y be a stockholder of R e s i l i e n t , but I 

don't b e l i e v e he i s . 

Q. Did the company buy Mr. C o l l i e r out? Or d i d 

something -- d i d Mr. C o l l i e r surrender h i s ownership i n t e r e s t 

i n CSC/Xeric? 

A. I know -- I don't know. I know there's been work 

done on CSC books w i t h counsel between St. John and h i s counsel 

i n Denver. I would h o n e s t l y have t o review the corporate 

minutes, s i r , t o give a c l e a r answer. 

Q. Let's t a l k about something, then, t h a t ' s probably 

a l i t t l e c l o s e r t o home. What happened t o your 50 percent 

i n t e r e s t ? Did you s e l l i t t o R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. We entered i n t o a stock redemption agreement w i t h 

X e r i c j u s t because the i n v e s t o r s i n the l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p 

were r e q u e s t i n g redemptions as i s customary w i t h the r e s t of 

the market c o n d i t i o n s . 

Q. They wanted out? 

A. Well, they wanted out. And as a general p a r t n e r 

of the e n t i t y , I had t o --

Q. You d i d n ' t have the c a p i t a l ? Somebody else had 

the c a p i t a l ? 

A. E x a c t l y . 
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Q. And they wanted out? 

A. E x a c t l y . 

Q. And you cashed out — 

A. No. They d i d not get cashed out y e t . 

Q. And they d i d n ' t get t h e i r stock redeemed? 

A. Well, there's a note i n place over a p e r i o d of 

time, over 13 months, t o be redeemed w i t h the shareholders. 

Q. Okay. So there's a note from X e r i c --

A. From X e r i c --

Q. -- or R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. From X e r i c t o my l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p , which was 

assumed by R e s i l i e n t i n the a c q u i s i t i o n . 

Q. Okay. You've l o s t me. 

A. Well, i t a l l goes back t o R e s i l i e n t , at the end 

of the day, as we're t r y i n g t o c o n s o l i d a t e resources under a 

r e p o r t i n g company t h a t hopes t o increase our c a p i t a l 

a v a i l a b i l i t y . I t ' s a tough market t o place c a p i t a l now. And 

i t ' s not an excuse, but we're j u s t t r y i n g t o improve our 

resources. 

But the l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p t h a t I'm the general 

p a r t n e r o f , I had a f i d u c i a r y r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o my i n v e s t o r s 

too. 

Q. Okay. Without a diagram, I don't t h i n k I'm going 

t o be able t o f i g u r e i t out, so l e t me go on t o my next l i n e of 

qu e s t i o n i n g . Okay? 
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A. Yes, s i r . Okay. 

Q. You put the deal t o g e t h e r . You d i d not know 

about Xeric's v i o l a t i o n s w i t h the OCD. You d i d n ' t know t h a t 

t h e r e was an a c t i o n a g a i n s t them continuing? 

A. I d i d n o t . 

Q. Okay. And you d i d not have any communication --

you d i d not have access t o the communications between Xer i c and 

the OCD? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . I d i d not have access t o those. 

Q. And when were you doing t h i s work? 

A. Last March. 

Q. And d i d you t h i n k t o check the OCD website and 

the OCD imaging system t o look a t the w e l l f i l e s on these 

wells? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

Q. Now, you mentioned t h a t the WPQ 301 -- the West 

Pearl Queen 301 -- p i t has been taken care o f . What d i d you 

mean by t h a t ? 

A. Last summer Phoenix Environmental had taken the 

necessary steps t o f i l l i n t h a t p i t a p p r o p r i a t e l y , and I 

be l i e v e t h e r e was a Case 14107, and I b e l i e v e t h a t t h a t case 

has been dismissed. But i t ' s been cleaned up and p r o p e r l y 

remediated. 

Q. And Phoenix Environmental d i d t h a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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Q. What was the cost of t h a t remediation? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was r i g h t around $80,000 t o f i x t h a t 

problem. 

Q. And has X e r i c p a i d f o r t h a t ? 

A. We have p a i d f o r t h a t . 

Q. Now, X e r i c has p r o d u c t i o n i n New Mexico, Wyoming, 

and Montana; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f I understood your answer t o 

Commissioner Olson's q u e s t i o n , they have no other production? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And they're making, out of t h a t , a l l of t h a t , 

about 700 b a r r e l s a day -- or a month? 

A. I n New Mexico, c o r r e c t . Because f o r a s h o r t time 

as we're r e p l a c i n g our pumpers i n Montana, we're not producing 

o i l . We are doing about 8,000 MCF per month. 

Q. 8,000? 

A. Yeah. Per month i n Wyoming. 

Q. Okay. And out of t h a t , you're d e r i v i n g a cash 

flow of about $4,000 a month a t l a s t month's p r i c e s ? 

A. No, s i r . That was on the j u s t the New Mexico 

numbers. I'm s o r r y . 

Q. That was j u s t New Mexico? 

A. I'm s o r r y . Honestly, I haven't been able t o see 

what we got p a i d from our purchases on the gas i n Wyoming y e t . 
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But I ' d say our end-of-month cash f l o w between both p r o p e r t i e s 

i s r i g h t around $28,000, about. 

We had r e c e i v e d $3 i n MCF, approximately, f o r our gas 

i n Wyoming. We s o l d about 8,000 MCP, so --

Q. And what k i n d of cash flow d i d t h a t r e s u l t in? I 

mean, t h a t ' s gross proceeds. 

A. That's gross. I t ' s a 75 percent net. 

Q. At l e a s t . And then you've got t o pay your 

o p e r a t i n g cost, your taxes, and t h i n g s l i k e t h a t . 

A. Corr e c t . And our pumper i s a f f o r d a b l e up t h e r e . 

So maybe our net i s more l i k e $20,000 f o r t h i s month. 

Q. Okay. You can see why I would be concerned as a 

taxpayer i n New Mexico? You've got 110 w e l l s i n New Mexico, 

some of which are producing. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let's see, how many producing well s ? 

A. On a good day we have 16 w e l l s producing, I 

b e l i e v e , i n New Mexico. 

Q. 16 w e l l s . And you're making 700 b a r r e l s a month 

out of 16 wells? 

A. Rig h t . When they're a l l producing, i t ' s between 

700 and 900. Yes, s i r . 

Q. As a c i t i z e n i n New Mexico, I'm a l i t t l e 

concerned t h a t t h a t ' s not enough cash f l o w t o do the t h i n g s 

t h a t you're going t o have t o do t o those w e l l s out t h e r e . 
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A. And t h a t i s why r i g h t now w i t h the r e l a t i o n s h i p 

X e r i c has formed w i t h R e s i l i e n t t h e r e i s an aggressive 

c a p i t a l --

Q. You keep t a l k i n g about l i k e we're changing 

something w i t h R e s i l i e n t . But i t looks t o me l i k e R e s i l i e n t i s 

mostly the same people t h a t were X e r i c . 

A. Well, no. There are two more p r i n c i p a l s and 

var i o u s other employees associated w i t h R e s i l i e n t t h a t 

Mr. F i e l d e r can o u t l i n e on. But by doing t h a t , we improve our 

a b i l i t y t o place c a p i t a l , which i s what we r e q u i r e now. 

We need t o r a i s e c a p i t a l t o increase our pr o d u c t i o n 

and get the w e l l s o f f the l i s t . And I know we can do both o f 

those to g e t h e r , but i t does r e q u i r e us t o r a i s e c a p i t a l . I t 

does r e q u i r e us t o r a i s e c a p i t a l . And w i t h t h a t , the step t h a t 

X e r i c took was the necessary step t o increase our means of 

r a i s i n g c a p i t a l . 

Q. So maybe I'm a l i t t l e confused. Who were the --

and I admit we're going back t o a questi o n t h a t I p r e v i o u s l y 

asked, and I apologize f o r t h a t , but appar e n t l y , I missed the 

answer. Who were the p r i n c i p a l s i n Xeric? There was you. 

There was Mr. C o l l i e r . 

A. Yes . 

Q. There was Mr. St. John. 

A. Yes . 

Q. Who else? 
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A. That's i t from the beginning. 

Q. Now, who are the p r i n c i p a l s i n R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. The p r i n c i p a l s i n R e s i l i e n t are Mr. K e l l y F i e l d e r 

and Dan Johnson. 

Q. Okay. Does Mr. St. John have an i n t e r e s t i n 

R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. He does. 

Q. Mr. C o l l i e r had an i n t e r e s t i n X e r i c , and we 

don't know how he's out. Doesn't he have a p o s i t i o n i n 

R e s i l i e n t i f those assets go i n t o R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. Maybe Mr. C o l l i e r does, maybe he doesn't. That's 

a b e t t e r q u e s t i o n f o r Mr. F i e l d e r . I t j u s t i s n ' t my -- t h a t ' s 

not my r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r t h a t s i d e , s i r . But I know t h a t 

there's an answer. 

Q. Okay. But Mr. St. John or Mr. F i e l d e r can answer 

t h a t f o r us? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I b e l i e v e Mr. F i e l d e r can answer t h a t 

f o r you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

Q. (By Chairman Fesmire): So l e t ' s get back t o our 

biggest concern here. 

The average cost f o r -- w e l l , l e t me t a l k about 

something e l s e . 

Recently, Chesapeake came i n and asked f o r a 

wa t e r f l o o d expansion i n one of t h e i r Pearl Queen u n i t s out 
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there very c l o s e . And i f I remember c o r r e c t l y , they were going 

t o have a 15 percent b e t t e r EUR, 15 percent of the o r i g i n a l o i l 

i n place, b e t t e r recovery i n the EUR than i s p r o j e c t e d i n the 

West Pearl Queen u n i t . 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. So t h a t ' s t e l l i n g us there's a p o t e n t i a l t h e r e . 

A. There i s p o t e n t i a l t h e r e . 

Q. But t h e r e i s also a s i g n i f i c a n t environmental 

l i a b i l i t y . 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. The average cost f o r OCD — and granted, these 

are probably shallower w e l l s out the r e -- but the average cost 

f o r the OCD to p l u g a w e l l i s about $42,000 now. And, of 

course, t h i n g s are changing f a s t . That's l a s t year's average. 

You've got -- i f you've got 16 producing w e l l s , 

you've got 94 w e l l s t h a t need t o be plugged. And you're going 

t o do t h a t out of $4,000 cash f l o w and new i n v e s t o r s ? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t the c a p i t a l program t h a t R e s i l i e n t 

i s moving forward w i t h w i l l a l l o w them t o p r o p e r l y increase the 

revenues t o recover, and not only r e t u r n t o p r o d u c t i o n or 

pluggi n g them, but also make i t a v i a b l e business. 

I r e a l l y do b e l i e v e t h a t i t can be v i a b l e a t the 

r i g h t p r o d u c t i o n number. And the problem i s the o v e r a l l cost 

of improving the i n f r a s t r u c t u r e , as w e l l as the w e l l bore from 

what we've seen i n the past, i s one of the main problems t h a t 
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we're f i g h t i n g . And I b e l i e v e w i t h c a p i t a l w e l l placed t h a t 

t h a t can be reso l v e d . 

Q. Okay. Here's what I'm l o o k i n g a t i t . You've got 

94 w e l l s out t h e r e s h u t - i n r i g h t now. They haven't been 

t e s t e d . They are not -- they don't have the backside 

i n h i b i t e d . They're not pumped d a i l y . Most of them are s i t t i n g 

out there i n v a r i o u s p h y s i c a l abandonment. People have j u s t 

walked o f f . 

There are -- a t l e a s t i n the p i c t u r e s we saw -- a 

s i g n i f i c a n t number of them hanging submersible pumps and motors 

o f f w i t h probably what amounts t o a m i l e of copper cable t h a t 

nobody went out and got when copper was s e l l i n g , you know, s i x 

months ago f o r phenomenal p r i c e s . 

A. Because on a s p e c i f i c w e l l l i k e t h a t , we have the 

a b i l i t y t o r e t u r n the submersible pump t o p r o d u c t i o n . We need 

t o — 

Q. How long have those submersible pumps been 

s i t t i n g i n there? 

A. We d i d t e s t i t , and i t ' s not f u n c t i o n i n g 

p r o p e r l y . We were p l a n n i n g on r e p a i r i n g i t a f t e r r i g g i n g up 

and p u l l i n g i t out and r e p a i r i n g i t and rer u n n i n g i t , s i r . 

Q. Okay. Are th e r e more than one submersible pump 

hanging out there? 

A. I b e l i e v e there's j u s t one submersible pump on 

the Crosby, yes, s i r . 
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Q. We'll ask him. Okay. But nobody p u l l e d t h a t 

cable? 

A. We d i d not p u l l the cable. 

Q. And nobody p u l l e d the motor, and the c o n t r o l l e r 

i s s t i l l s i t t i n g t h e r e . And, you know, s i x months ago, p r i c e s 

f o r t h a t k i n d of equipment was p r e t t y phenomenal. 

A. That i s t r u e . 

Q. And nobody d i d i t then. And you c o u l d n ' t a f f o r d 

t o do the work t h a t was necessary a t $147 a b a r r e l , and o i l out 

there i s somewhere around $30 now? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I guess you're going t o have t o convince me t h a t 

you're going t o be able t o . I know there's value t h e r e . 

A. A b s o l u t e l y . 

Q. But you're going t o have t o convince me t h a t you 

can get t o i t economically. 

A. Yeah, I do agree. But I do know t h a t -- and i t 

might serve t o be b e n e f i c i a l t o submit some of the economics 

we've run -- we do b e l i e v e i t can be done e f f i c i e n t l y . 

But by adding people on the management team, people 

t h a t are working on the management team f u l l - t i m e , we r e a l l y 

b e l i e v e i t can be done. I know i t seems -- from the o u t s i d e , 

i t might seem tough, but we r e a l l y do b e l i e v e i t can be done. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. Munds-Dry — I'm s o r r y . 

Commissioner Olson. 
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COMMISSIONER OLSON: Just coming back t o how many 

w e l l s t h a t you been working over, how many w e l l s have you 

worked over, then? 

THE WITNESS: We have worked over 22 w e l l s . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay. You've worked over 22 

w e l l s , and seven a c t u a l l y came i n t o compliance? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: I b e l i e v e the sundry n o t i c e s are an 

e x h i b i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, are you a l l done? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I j u s t have a few r e d i r e c t questions. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

Q. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , when you were asked about the 

Crosby and Gregory l o c a t i o n s , you were asked whether you had 

advised Santa Fe about your change o f plans. Were you aware of 

any requirements t o advise the Santa Fe o f f i c e of your change 

of plans? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. I b e l i e v e Commissioner Olson f o l l o w e d up on t h i s . 

I j u s t want t o make sure t h a t we a l l understand. 

The work done by Baker, was i t j u s t done on seven 

well s ? 

A. No, i t was done on 22 w e l l s t o t a l . 
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Q. And how many -- or why were — those w e l l s t h a t 

were not on the l i s t , why were those w e l l s also worked on? 

A. They had t o be -- maintenance had t o be completed 

t o keep them e i t h e r producing or r e t u r n them t o p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. And I understand the new corporate s t r u c t u r e i s a 

l i t t l e c onfusing, and we w i l l have Mr. F i e l d e r t e s t i f y about 

t h a t , but w i l l X e r i c remain the designated operator f o r the OCD 

i n New Mexico? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l o f my questions. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, a n y t h i n g on those 

subjects? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I f I could f o l l o w up on a couple of 

the Commission's questions, j u s t f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n . There was 

some mention of a p o s s i b l e n e g o t i a t i o n of an Agreed Compliance 

Order. This was addressed a t the p r i o r h e aring as w e l l . 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. You are aware t h a t OCD p o l i c y p r o h i b i t s us from 

e n t e r i n g i n t o an Agreed Compliance Order u n t i l an operator i s 

i n f u l l compliance w i t h the f i n a n c i a l assurance o b l i g a t i o n s , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, I d i d read t h a t . 

Q. Okay. And w i t h regard t o r e p o r t i n g of p r o d u c t i o n 

and what y o u - a l l have done since the l a s t h earing, I understand 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



115 

t h a t a l o t of the s t u f f t h a t you have been t r y i n g t o do i s 

expensive; however, f i l i n g C-115s doesn't cost you anything, 

does i t ? 

I s t h a t a no? 

A. I t ' s not our most arduous expense, no. 

Q. Okay. Yet, as f a r as the one requirement i n the 

order t h a t was issued by the D i v i s i o n asking t h a t X e r i c f i l e 

amended C-115s and update t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n , you d i d n ' t do t h a t 

e i t h e r . 

A. Well, t h a t was another s e r v i c e t h a t was 

co n t r a c t e d out, and I was informed t h a t i t was done. I guess 

I ' l l have t o check w i t h Baker and Whitney Boyd and see i f t h a t 

was not completed. Was t h a t f o r the past two years? Because I 

remember seeing t h a t i n the order, and I r e c a l l t h a t being 

submitted. 

Q. Okay. I t ' s my understanding i t hasn't. I f i t 

has, then perhaps when we break I can co n f i r m t h a t . But my 

understanding i s t h a t t h a t hasn't been accomplished. 

A. Okay. And Baker d i d i n f o r m us t h a t they had 

completed t h a t . And i t was r i g h t around November. I ' l l have 

t o search through my e-mail again and see where t h a t was a t . 

Q. Okay. I t h i n k t h a t those are the only p o i n t s I 

wanted t o c l a r i f y . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, anyt h i n g on t h a t ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Nothing on t h a t . 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioners? 

Thank you ve r y much, s i r . 

With t h a t , w e ' l l take a lunch break and reconvene 

at 1:15. 

[Noon recess was taken from 12:06 p.m. t o 1:21 p.m.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the recor d a f t e r 

the lunch break. Let the r e c o r d r e f l e c t t h a t i t i s 1:21 on 

Tuesday, February 24th. 

This i s a c o n t i n u a t i o n of the r e g u l a r l y scheduled 

New Mexico O i l Conservation Commission meeting, and we were i n 

the middle o f Case No. 14106. 

Ms. Munds-Dry, you were about t o c a l l your second 

witness. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yes, s i r . I ' d l i k e t o c a l l Ron 

St. John. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. St. John, would you come 

forward, please. Mr. St. John, you remember t h a t you were 

p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

RON ST. JOHN 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MUNDS-DRY: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name f o r the record. 
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A. Ron St. John. 

Q. And where do you reside? 

A. Midland, Texas. 

Q. And by whom are you employed? 

A. X e r i c O i l and Gas. 

Q. What i s your p o s i t i o n w i t h X e r i c O i l and Gas? 

A. I am an o f f i c e r . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t was 

f i l e d by the D i v i s i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. I am. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the lands and the w e l l s 

t h a t are associated w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. From a f i e l d operations p e r s p e c t i v e , 

Mr. St. John, d i d you know the s t a t e or the c o n d i t i o n of the 

we l l s i n which X e r i c acquired i n March o f 2008? 

A. We were aware of a l o t of the l i a b i l i t i e s ; 

however, a l o t of the environmental issues were not d i s c l o s e d 

a t the time of the a c q u i s i t i o n . 

Q. So yes and no? 

A. Yes and no. 

Q. There were q u i t e a few questions about t h i s from 

the Commission. How many pa r t n e r s or employees make up Xeric 

c u r r e n t l y ? 

A. C u r r e n t l y , I t h i n k I'm the only o f f i c e r r i g h t 
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now. We u t i l i z e a l o t of l o c a l t h i r d - p a r t y s u b c o n t r a c t o r s . 

That's how we get a l o t of the work done. 

Q. And when you and Mr. C o l l i e r and Mr. H i r s c h f e l d 

purchased Xer i c i n March of 2008, i f you could please c l a r i f y 

f o r the Commission how t h a t deal or t h a t s t r u c t u r e was made i n 

terms of CSC and, of course, Mr. H i r s c h f e l d . 

A. Ri g h t . I o r i g i n a l l y s t a r t e d CSC. CSC stood f o r 

C o l l i e r , St. John, Cross, and i t i n v o l v e d Tim C o l l i e r , a 

gentleman named Donny Cross i n Wyoming, and myself. I d i d 

t h a t -- I made an a c q u i s i t i o n i n Wyoming on an o i l and gas 

pr o p e r t y , and since then -- e v e r y t h i n g was v e r b a l w i t h 

Mr. C o l l i e r . There was no stock exchange. 

He suggested or recommended t h a t we do i t t h a t way 

because he had personal issues, whatever they were. Mr. Cross 

was a p a r t n e r . I have since bought him out, and t h a t happened 

probably several months ago, s i x or e i g h t months ago. 

Q. So are you the only shareholder i n Xeric at t h i s 

time? 

A. I am. 

Q. Since March 2008, a c q u i r i n g and today, what are 

your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n Xeric? 

A. I oversee f i e l d o p e r a t i o n s , mainly. I r e l y a l o t 

of Mr. H i r s h f i e l d f o r a d m i n i s t r a t i v e s t u f f . 

Q. I f you would please t u r n t o what Xeri c has marked 

as E x h i b i t A. I ' d l i k e t o discuss w i t h you from the f i e l d 
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operations p e r s p e c t i v e what X e r i c has attempted t o accomplish 

i n terms of i t s work on the ground i n New Mexico. 

Would you please i d e n t i f y what's been marked as 

E x h i b i t A f o r the Commissioners? 

A. E x h i b i t A being t h i s r i g h t here? 

Q. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s i t . Yes. 

A. Yeah. These are, I t h i n k , are a l i s t of 

noncompliant w e l l s . 

Q. P u l l i t back a l i t t l e b i t , Mr. St. John. 

A. Go back where? 

Q. Mr. St. John, I'm s o r r y . I t h i n k you have the 

pre-hearing statement on the f r o n t of t h a t . So keep going back 

a couple of pages. Keep going through them. 

I b e l i e v e the f i r s t page you should have on E x h i b i t A 

i s a C-103 form. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f you could i d e n t i f y these documents f o r the 

Commission. 

A. These are C-103s, I b e l i e v e . Sundry notices? I s 

t h a t r i g h t ? I t ' s j u s t work t o be performed on TA'd w e l l s . 

Q. Okay. And th e r e are se v e r a l of these C-103s? 

A. There are s e v e r a l . 

Q. Do you know how many w e l l s are r e p o r t e d on these 

C-103s? 

A. I'm not sure e x a c t l y how many are, 
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Q. I f we could t a l k about or g i v e the Commission an 

understanding of why t h i s work was done from a f i e l d o p e r a t i o n s 

p e r s p e c t i v e , why d i d X e r i c c o n t r a c t w i t h Baker t o do t h i s work? 

A. Well, we knew we were i n v i o l a t i o n w i t h the OCD 

and t h a t they were r e a l l y concerned about g e t t i n g the w e l l s o f f 

the noncompliance l i s t . Due t o the manpower on hand i n 

New Mexico, we r e a l l y d i d n ' t have the people i n place t o do 

t h i s . So we e l e c t e d t o h i r e Baker Energy, which i s a c o n t r a c t 

o p e r a t i n g or a c o n t r a c t company, and we needed help, and we 

entered i n t o a c o n t r a c t so they could help us b r i n g some of the 

w e l l s i n t o compliance. 

Q. Okay. And l o o k i n g here on the f i r s t page of the 

form C-103, what w e l l i s i d e n t i f i e d i n t h i s document? 

A. I t h i n k t h i s i s the -- t h i s i s the Pearl Queen 

No. 205, West Pearl Queen 205. 

Q. And what work was r e p o r t e d on t h i s C-103? 

A. I t says r i g h t here, "Performed w e l l r e p a i r , 

maintenance work on the s u b j e c t w e l l , change out pump and 

t e s t i n g t u b i n g . " Okay. 

Q. And I b e l i e v e there's an attachment t h a t gives 

the d a i l y completion r e p o r t or d a i l y workover r e p o r t . 

A. Yes, i t does, and t h a t ' s from Baker. 

Q. E x p l a i n t o the Commission what was the scope o f 

Baker's r e s p o n s i b i l i t y under your c o n t r a c t . 

A. Baker's r e s p o n s i b i l i t y was t o i d e n t i f y a l l w e l l s 
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on the noncompliance l i s t , address the problem p e r t a i n i n g t o 

the w e l l , and r e t u r n t o p r o d u c t i o n or — a t t h a t time, there 

was a l i t t l e c o n f u s i o n . We were t o l d t h a t we could swab and 

show a l i t t l e p r o d u c t i o n and p o s s i b l y get a l i t t l e more time t o 

regroup. 

I'm not sure i f t h a t was -- t h a t i s an approach t h a t 

we took on some w e l l s ; however, f o r the most p a r t , w e l l s t h a t 

have pipe i n them, we t r i e d t o r e t u r n t o p r o d u c t i o n . And i t 

looks t o me l i k e t h a t ' s what they d i d . 

Q. So w i t h o u t b e l a b o r i n g the p o i n t going through a l l 

these C-103s, i s t h a t the k i n d o f work t h a t was done on a l l the 

wells? 

A. I t was, yes. 

Q. Before you can b r i n g a w e l l back on p r o d u c t i o n , 

what k i n d of i n i t i a l work needs t o be done on a w e l l before you 

can even get i n t o a we l l ? 

A. Well, the w e l l records were r e a l shoddy on 

Xeric's s t u f f i n New Mexico, at best. For the most p a r t , i t 

i n v o l v e d t a k i n g a workover u n i t out t o the f i e l d , r i g g i n g up 

b l i n d , a c t u a l l y p u l l i n g pipe, and t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out what 

e x a c t l y was the problem. 

We d i d do some i n t e g r i t y t e s t s . That was r e a l l y 

important t o us. We were r e a l l y concerned about the casing 

i n t e g r i t y . And we b a s i c a l l y p u l l e d pipe, p o s s i b l y run 

mechanical i n t e g r i t y t e s t s on the w e l l and see i f i t i s 
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economically f e a s i b l e t o r e t u r n t o p r o d u c t i o n . I f i t i s , we 

t r i e d t o r e t u r n i t t o p r o d u c t i o n . Outside of t h a t , make plans 

t o p l u g . 

Q. Did X e r i c or Baker on b e h a l f of X e r i c do any 

surface cleanup or work of t h a t nature? 

A. We d i d a l o t of work t h a t was not i n the 

noncompliance order. We d i d a l o t o f cleanup work. This lease 

has had 40 years of neg l e c t and abuse and whatever. The 

operators t h a t had i n the past, t o be honest w i t h you, were 

p r e t t y non-prudent o p e r a t o r s . So we were -- the d i s t r i c t 

o f f i c e d i d make recommendations t h a t , look, you know, you've 

got a mess. Get s t a r t e d c l e a n i n g i t up as you're doing the 

w e l l s . So t h a t ' s what we t r i e d t o do. 

Q. Do you happen t o know how many s i t e s t h a t surface 

cleanup was conducted on? 

A. I t ' s probably -- I know a l l t h r e e tank b a t t e r i e s , 

and we probably d i d 15 w e l l s ; 15 w e l l s i t e s , a l l t h r e e tank 

b a t t e r i e s . We s t a r t e d ; we have not completed. We've made a 

good dent, but we are not by any mean, done. 

Q. And i n the testimony e a r l i e r , Mr. St. John, was 

ther e was 22 two w e l l s t h a t Baker worked on. Does t h a t sound 

r i g h t t o you? 

A. That sounds p r e t t y good. 

Q. What are your plans then? What are Xeric plans, 

then, going forward? 
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A. Xeric's plans going forward i s t o do e x a c t l y what 

the Commission i s wanting us t o do. We're wanting t o go i n , 

and t h i s i s something — t h i s i s not the f i r s t time we have 

done something l i k e t h i s . 

We've bought p r o p e r t i e s t h a t have been neglected, 

d i l a p i d a t e d p r o p e r t i e s i n the past. We go i n , and one of two 

t h i n g s happens: We e i t h e r put the w e l l on p r o d u c t i o n and i t i s 

e i t h e r a producer or an a c t i v e i n j e c t o r , or we p l u g i t . I t ' s 

p r e t t y cut and dry. That's e x a c t l y what X e r i c intends t o do 

here. 

However, t h i s i s a much l a r g e r p r o j e c t than we're 

used t o d e a l i n g w i t h . So i t ' s been somewhat of a challenge. 

And we understand now, myself and Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , t h a t we're 

going t o need some serious f i n a n c i n g and help t o get t h i s done. 

Q. There was also d i s c u s s i o n e a r l i e r about a 

compliance order and s e t t i n g some r e a l i s t i c goals, and the 

Commission asked about t h a t . What i s Xeric's p o s i t i o n on 

e n t e r i n g a compliance order w i t h the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. We would l i k e t o do t h a t . But they do have t o be 

r e a l i s t i c goals. We t h i n k j u s t o f f the top of my head, I 

t h i n k we can do f i v e w e l l s a q u a r t e r . I t doesn't sound l i k e 

t h a t many, but w i t h e v e r y t h i n g else t h a t we have going on on 

the surface and t r y i n g t o clean up and m a i n t a i n and r e f u r b i s h 

the surface f a c i l i t i e s t o a c t u a l l y handle o i l and gas 

p r o d u c t i o n , we t h i n k t h a t we can do somewhere around f i v e w e l l s 
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a q u a r t e r f i n a n c i a l l y and w i t h the manpower t h a t we're going t o 

have i n place. So --

Q. What does X e r i c see f o r the p o t e n t i a l f o r i t s 

New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s i n i t s w e l l s ? 

A. We t h i n k t here's a l o t of upside t o t h i s 

p r o p e r t y . I've seen i t t h e r e , and I say t h a t because I monitor 

pressures on a l l f o u r corners -- speaking of the Pearl Queen 

u n i t . I've seen pressures t h a t are r e a l a t t r a c t i v e i n some 

areas of the f i e l d , which t e l l s me t h a t there's probably some 

p o t e n t i a l t h e r e . 

Q. Given t h a t p o t e n t i a l , what i s your p o s i t i o n , 

then, on the D i v i s i o n ' s recommendation t o p l u g some of the 

w e l l s as i t mentioned e a r l i e r ? 

A. I t h i n k you have t o be r e a l s e l e c t i v e about what 

you p l u g . I t h i n k the w e l l s t h a t need t o be plugged need t o be 

plugged. I t h i n k w e l l s t h a t can go on and be put back on 

p r o d u c t i o n and become economically f e a s i b l e t o produce t h a t o i l 

at $36 a b a r r e l , I t h i n k i t needs t o be done. 

I t h i n k i t ' s not only revenue f o r us and allows us 

t o -- gives us c a p i t a l t o move on and do other work on other 

w e l l s i n the f i e l d and i n other leases t h a t are i n the State of 

New Mexico, but I t h i n k t h a t t h a t ' s something t h a t needs t o be 

done . 

Q. And Mr. — 

A. We c e r t a i n l y don't need t o plug a l l of them. 
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Q. I'm s o r r y t o i n t e r r u p t you. 

A. I don't t h i n k we need t o p l u g a l l of them. 

Q. And I mean t o ask you, Mr. St. John, when we were 

t a l k i n g about E x h i b i t A, do you know i f a l l these C-103s were 

a c t u a l l y f i l e d w i t h the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. I don't know i f they were. I'm not sure i f they 

were f i l e d or not. I know they were signed by Whitney Boyd, 

which i s a compliance agent f o r Baker. 

Q. Was t h a t p a r t of Baker's r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s — 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. — t o f i l e these? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s a l l the questions I have f o r 

you, Mr. St. John. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: At t h i s time, Chairman Fesmire, I 

move the admission of E x h i b i t A. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any o b j e c t i o n ? 

MS. ALTOMARE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t A w i l l be admitted i n t o 

the record. 

[Respondent's E x h i b i t A admitted i n t o evidence.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. St. John, you s a i d t h a t you were an o f f i c e r 

w i t h X e r i c . What i s your o f f i c i a l t i t l e ? 

A. I'm p r e s i d e n t . 

Q. Okay. You i n d i c a t e d t h a t X e r i c at t h i s p o i n t 

would be i n t e r e s t e d i n doing an Agreed Compliance Order w i t h 

the D i v i s i o n , You do understand a t t h i s p o i n t t h a t we are w e l l 

beyond t h a t p o i n t i n time, t h a t we had been at t h a t stage a 

long time ago a t the p o i n t where we were d i s c u s s i n g the 

p o s s i b i l i t y of t r y i n g t o i n f o r m a l l y r e s o l v e t h i s , and we are 

not a t the h e a r i n g p o i n t ? 

A. No. I wasn't aware t h a t we were w e l l beyond 

t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l the D i v i s i o n i n f o r m i n g X e r i c 

t h a t before we even would consider d i s c u s s i n g an Agreed 

Compliance Order, X e r i c would have t o post a l l of t h e i r 

r e q u i r e d f i n a n c i a l assurances? 

A. I know you've been r e q u e s t i n g t h a t we do post 

f i n a n c i a l assurance bonds. 

Q. Okay. You are the person t h a t has been described 

as the i n d i v i d u a l who's responsible f o r b a s i c a l l y what's going 

on out i n the f i e l d ? 

A. I am. 

Q. Yet you don't seem t o know much about whether or 
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not s t u f f has been f i l e d , what has a c t u a l l y been done. 

A. That's more on the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e s i d e . 

Q. Okay. But n e i t h e r you nor Mr. H i r s c h f e l d seems 

t o have a whole l o t of answers about e x a c t l y what a l l has been 

completed at t h i s stage i n the game, and we're s i t t i n g here at 

hearing w i t h a whole l o t of questions. 

A. Completed as t o what? 

Q. As t o how f a r along you've come, f o r in s t a n c e , 

w i t h these 22 w e l l s t h a t you're now p u t t i n g forward as an 

example of your e f f o r t s so f a r t o come i n t o compliance. 

A. Uh-huh, uh-huh. I t h i n k t here's a l o t more than 

t h a t , t o be honest w i t h you. As a matter of f a c t , I t h i n k 

there's s e v e r a l t h a t ' s on t h a t l i s t t h a t ' s already been 

plugged. The paperwork j u s t hasn't been f i l e d . 

Q. Have you and. the other i n d i v i d u a l s sat down and 

come up w i t h a p l a n of a c t i o n f o r coming i n t o compliance? 

You've mentioned a couple of f i g u r e s as t o what you t h i n k are 

r e a l i s t i c numbers f o r b r i n g i n g w e l l s i n t o compliance. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And who a l l has sat down and discussed t h a t ? 

A. We're t a l k i n g w i t h R e s i l i e n t , which w i l l be 

Mr. F i e l d e r , and Adam and I have spoke. And we're t r y i n g t o 

come up w i t h a good s o l i d game plan t h a t makes sense. 

I don't want t o make commitments t h a t I can't f o l l o w 

through on. 
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Q. Okay. And when you reference Adam, are you 

t a l k i n g about Mr. H i r s c h f e l d ? 

A. Mr. H i r s c h f e l d . 

Q. And he i s the i n d i v i d u a l t h a t ' s r e s p o n s i b l e f o r 

hand l i n g budgeting concerns and whatnot? 

A. He helps. Yes, he does. 

Q. He d i d n ' t seem t o have any answers about how much 

i t was going t o cost or what y o u - a l l a n t i c i p a t e d i t was going 

t o cost, how many w e l l s you a n t i c i p a t e d being able t o b r i n g 

back on l i n e given a time p e r i o d . Had you t a l k e d s o l i d numbers 

yet? Or were you s t i l l i n the h y p o t h e t i c a l stages? 

A. Well, now you're r e f e r r i n g t o the f i v e w e l l s per 

q u a r t e r and what i t would cost t o b r i n g those f i v e w e l l s per 

q u a r t e r in? 

You know, i t depends upon whether we a c t u a l l y put 

them on p r o d u c t i o n or i f we plug them. Mr. Fesmire's estimate 

at $42,000 apiece t o p l u g them i s probably p r e t t y close. Now, 

i f we go back i n and put them on p r o d u c t i o n , i t may be a l i t t l e 

more than t h a t . 

[Record was read by the r e p o r t e r . ] 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): So had y o u - a l l t a l k e d 

b a l l p a r k f i g u r e s , or had y o u - a l l come up w i t h f i r m numbers i n 

terms of the f i v e w e l l s per quarter? 

A. We have t a l k e d b a l l p a r k f i g u r e s because there's 

going t o be a b i g d i f f e r e n c e between r e t u r n i n g them t o 
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p r o d u c t i o n and p l u g g i n g . I mean, p l u g g i n g them i s p r e t t y c u t 

and d r i e d . Returning them t o p r o d u c t i o n , depending on i f i t ' s 

a producer or an i n j e c t o r , what equipment's going t o be 

in v o l v e d or how much i s going t o be purchased, so the process 

w i l l vary t h e r e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i n those d i s c u s s i o n s , were 

p o s t i n g of the overdue s i n g l e w e l l bonds p a r t of the 

c a l c u l a t i o n s ? 

A. We've t a l k e d about t h a t . I ' l l be honest w i t h 

you, t h a t ' s j u s t not r e a l l y an o p t i o n f o r us -- or f o r me a t 

t h i s time. 

Q. Okay. So the f i g u r e s f o r the overdue w e l l bonds 

d i d not come i n t o the c a l c u l a t i o n s f o r those discussions? 

A. No. 

Q. Might t h a t be why, f o r instance, the c l e r i c a l 

e r r o r of the 50,000-foot depth versus the 5,000-foot depth 

wasn't caught by y o u - a l l ? 

A. The 50,000-foot w e l l was caught by us. And as a 

matter of f a c t , I don't t h i n k t h a t ' s the only one. I t h i n k 

there's s e v e r a l . We don't own any t h i n g deeper than 8,000 f e e t . 

We c e r t a i n l y don't -- I don't t h i n k t h e r e i s a w e l l i n New 

Mexico 50,000-foot deep. You know t h a t . I know t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: There's no w e l l anywhere 

50,000 f e e t deep. 

THE WITNESS: And t h a t ' s not the only c o n f l i c t . I 
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t h i n k you guys have as many c l e r i c a l problems as we do. I 

mean, as f a r as t h a t goes. But we're w i l l i n g t o work i t o u t . 

What's f a i r i s f a i r . 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): But i n any event, y o u - a l l 

have not g o t t e n t o the p o i n t where you have performed those 

c a l c u l a t i o n s i n such a way t h a t you are ready t o come t o the 

OCD and t a l k f i g u r e s about a c t u a l l y p o s t i n g the bonds? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. So you have t e s t i f i e d t h a t a t t h i s p o i n t 

i n time i t ' s your p o s i t i o n t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r and Mr. Cross are 

no longer i n v o l v e d a t a l l i n Xe r i c or CSC? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You are the remaining shareholder i n Xe r i c and 

are now p a r t n e r i n g up or otherwise becoming i n v o l v e d w i t h 

R e s i l i e n t w i t h Mr. F i e l d e r t o move forward w i t h t r y i n g t o get 

th i n g s r e s o l v e d w i t h these p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. That's t r u e . 

Q. Okay. Are you aware t h a t when -- i f you were t o 

have come i n as a brand new operator -- l i k e , f o r i n s t a n c e , i f 

you had j o i n e d fo r c e s under R e s i l i e n t under R e s i l i e n t ' s name 

and simply t r a n s f e r r e d Xeric's w e l l s i n t o R e s i l i e n t ' s name --

y o u - a l l would have been r e q u i r e d t o have posted each of those 

bonds p r i o r t o even t r a n s f e r r i n g those w e l l s i n t o your 

operator's name --

A. Yes. 
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Q. -- under New Mexico r u l e s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So i n a way, by simply t a k i n g over the X e r i c 

name, you're s i d e - s t e p p i n g t h a t o b l i g a t i o n or p u t t i n g i t o f f ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Ob j e c t i o n , Mr. Chairman. 

THE WITNESS: By t a k i n g over the — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Wait a minute. Wait a minute. 

Your o b j e c t i o n i s , Ms. Munds-Dry? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: We're g e t t i n g i n t o an argumentative 

s t a t e of mind here. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You're o b j e c t i n g t o a s t a t e of 

mind? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I'm o b j e c t i n g because t h i s i s g e t t i n g 

argumentative. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I'm going t o get a t what 

Mr. St. John's understanding of what the o b l i g a t i o n s are w i t h 

the bonding requirements. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Rephrase the question, and 

make i t a qu e s t i o n . 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): As an operator coming i n , 

having taken over X e r i c r a t h e r than coming i n under a new name, 

what i s your understanding of the o b l i g a t i o n s f o r the f i n a n c i a l 

assurance requirements? 

A. We weren't aware of the f i n a n c i a l assurance bond 
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u n t i l , I t h i n k , the day of c l o s i n g . Anyway, we weren't aware 

of i t — not on a per w e l l b a s i s . We thought i t was a b l a n k e t 

bond. That's the way we operate i n other s t a t e s . 

Q. Okay. Are you aware t h a t i f you had come i n 

under a d i f f e r e n t name t h a t before you could even take those 

w e l l s i n your name you would have had t o post those bonds 

f i r s t ? 

A. I wasn't aware of i t a t the time. I am now. 

Q. Okay. And again, you were not present a t the 

A p r i l 15th telephone conference between Mr. C o l l i e r and the OCD 

e i t h e r , r i g h t ? 

A. No, I was not . 

Q. But a t t h a t p o i n t i n time, Mr. C o l l i e r was a c t i n g 

on b e h a l f of Xeric? 

A. He was. And I b e l i e v e Mr. Cook — i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Mr. Cook i s a previous owner. 

Q. And you are aware and do not deny t h a t 

Mr. C o l l i e r d i d make r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s on b e h a l f of Xe r i c t o the 

OCD i n t h a t telephone conference? 

A. Yes. I'm not aware of what was s a i d or a c t u a l l y 

what the conversation was about. I was not even i n the s t a t e , 

so 

Q. And do you r e c a l l a t t e n d i n g the June conference 
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t h a t occurred here i n the Santa Fe o f f i c e s of the OCD? 

A. I d i d . I d i d . 

Q. And do you r e c a l l t h a t X e r i c c o l l e c t i v e l y -- t h a t 

being you, Mr. H i r s c h f e l d and Mr. C o l l i e r -- made c e r t a i n 

commitments t o the OCD t o pr o v i d e us w i t h c e r t a i n i n f o r m a t i o n 

about your e f f o r t s a t coming i n t o compliance? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I am. 

Q. And X e r i c never f o l l o w e d through w i t h regard t o 

those o b l i g a t i o n s ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Mr. C o l l i e r was appointed t o be the contact man 

between the OCD. I t h i n k you agree w i t h t h a t . Mr. C o l l i e r 

d i d n ' t f o l l o w through. 

Q. But you do agree t h a t he was working alongside 

you and Mr. H i r s c h f e l d ? Y o u - a l l were working as Xe r i c a t t h a t 

time? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Do you remember at t h a t h earing i t being 

emphasized -- I mean, a t t h a t meeting -- i t being emphasized a t 

t h a t meeting one of the b i g g e s t p r i o r i t i e s f o r the OCD was 

being kept i n t h a t loop? That the OCD be informed and be kept 

apprised of what your e f f o r t s were so t h a t we knew t h a t you 

were making an e f f o r t t o stay on top of i t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. During t h a t time p e r i o d between June and 

u l t i m a t e l y the hearing i n September, where were you working 
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d u r i n g t h a t time? Were you here i n New Mexico, or were you --

A. I was i n the process o f moving from Wyoming t o 

Texas. 

Q. Okay. And who was here, a c t u a l l y , i n the State 

of New Mexico working on the New Mexico wells? 

A. We had t h i r d - p a r t y c o n t r a c t o r s , l o c a l c o n t r a c t 

pumpers, roustabouts. We b a s i c a l l y j u s t assumed the previous 

owners, the people t h a t they had i n place, which were a l l 

t h i r d - p a r t y c o n t r a c t o r s . And they were a l l j u s t t o keep the 

b a l l k i n d of going u n t i l we could get r e l o c a t e d . 

Q. And who was overseeing t h a t connection w i t h the 

previous owners? 

A. The previous owner a c t u a l l y v o l u n t e e r e d t o do 

t h a t f o r about 30 days. I would do some v i a telephone. 

Q. Okay. Was the r e a formal agreement w i t h the 

previous owner as p a r t of the t r a n s f e r ? 

A. Verbal. 

Q. Okay. When d i d you become aware t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r 

was not f o l l o w i n g through on the commitments t h a t had been made 

at the June meeting? 

A. That was -- i t was l i k e f o u r months a f t e r t h a t . 

I t was se v e r a l months. I know s e v e r a l months had went by 

because I wasn't here. I was i n the process of r e l o c a t i n g t o 

move down. And i t had come t o our a t t e n t i o n t h a t he had not 

been i n contact and had not f o l l o w e d through w i t h what he had 
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t o l d you he was going t o do. 

Q. Had you d u r i n g t h a t time made any e f f o r t t o 

fol l o w - u p t o make sure t o see what the s t a t u s was w i t h the 

New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. I have made — I had ver y l i t t l e c o n t a c t . 

Q. Upon f i n d i n g out t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r had not been 

f o l l o w i n g through on h i s o b l i g a t i o n s , what a c t i o n d i d you take? 

A. Well, we were not pleased, t o say the l e a s t . And 

t h a t was probably one of the reasons why Mr. C o l l i e r l e f t . 

Q. "We" being you and Mr. H i r s c h f e l d ? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. Okay. And what d i d you do a t t h a t p o i n t i n time? 

A. Well, Mr. C o l l i e r l e f t , and we t r i e d t o step i n 

and do the best we could. But i t was u n f a m i l i a r t e r r i t o r y f o r 

me f o r sure and Mr. H i r s c h f e l d a l s o . So a t t h a t p o i n t , we 

t r i e d t o make co n t a c t , and t h a t ' s when we d i d contact -- we 

knew we needed help. That's when we c a l l e d Baker Energy and 

t r i e d t o n e g o t i a t e a c o n t r a c t w i t h them. 

Q. Was t h i s p r i o r t o the hearing i n September? 

A. That was r i g h t a f t e r the hearing, I b e l i e v e . 

Q. Okay. 

A. When we contacted Baker? Was t h a t the question? 

Q. Yeah. 

A. Right a f t e r the heari n g , I b e l i e v e . 

Q. P r i o r t o the hearing i n September, what steps d i d 
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you take t o -- once you r e a l i z e d t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r had not been 

performing? 

A. Well, we d i d n ' t take a whole l o t of steps a t the 

time because we were very l i m i t e d as t o how much help we had, 

and we understood t h a t we were i n over our head, and t h a t ' s --

but we t r i e d t o keep the b a l l r o l l i n g ; however, i t probably --

we d i d n ' t do a very good j o b . 

Q. Okay. Do you r e c a l l p r o v i d i n g testimony a t the 

D i v i s i o n h e a r i n g regarding the Crosby Deep and Gregory leases? 

A. I remember something about the Crosby. I'm 

f a m i l i a r w i t h the Crosby/Gregory lease. 

Q. Okay. Do you remember t e s t i f y i n g t h a t t h a t was 

where X e r i c was f o c u s i n g i t s i n i t i a l e f f o r t s t o begin b r i n g i n g 

New Mexico p r o p e r t i e s i n t o compliance? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And I b e l i e v e i t ' s OCD E x h i b i t -- I t h i n k i t ' s 

E x h i b i t 2, but at the time, i t was X e r i c E x h i b i t C — you 

submitted some sundries t h a t had been prepared but not yet 

f i l e d by X e r i c i n d i c a t i n g an i n t e n t i o n t o r e t u r n ten of those 

w e l l s t o p r o d u c t i o n or plug them. 

A. Okay. Now, there's some confusion there because 

there was a sundry n o t i c e f i l e d , and i t was f i l e d a f t e r we had 

closed w i t h X e r i c , but i t was f i l e d by the previous owners. I s 

t h a t what you're r e f e r r i n g to? 

Q. No. I'm a c t u a l l y r e f e r r i n g to some prepared 
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documents. I f you -- I don't know i f t h a t OCD stack o f 

e x h i b i t s i s up t h e r e or not. 

I'm a c t u a l l y r e f e r r i n g t o OCD E x h i b i t No. 2. 

MS. ALTOMARE: May I approach the witness? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, ma'am. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Let me go ahead and hand t h a t 

t o you. And a t the time of the D i v i s i o n h earing i t was marked 

as Xeric E x h i b i t C, and these were sundries t h a t were prepared 

by Xeric but not yet f i l e d and were p r o f f e r e d as evidence by 

Xeric i n t h a t h e a r i n g . 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do they look f a m i l i a r t o you now? 

A. Yeah, they do. I signed them. 

Q. Okay. What e x p l a n a t i o n do you have f o r the f a c t 

t h a t these were never a c t u a l l y f i l e d ? 

A. What e x p l a n a t i o n do I have why they weren't 

f i l e d ? 

Q. R i g h t . Why d i d X e r i c decide not t o f i l e these 

a f t e r the hearing? 

A. We probably refocused our a t t e n t i o n t o the Pearl 

Queen u n i t . 

Q. And why was th a t ? 

A. Because of the amount of w e l l s t h a t were out of 

compliance on i t versus t h i s . 

Q. Okay. Even though you had already begun work on 
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t h i s p a r t i c u l a r u n i t ? 

A. We hadn't r e a l l y begun work. We had done some 

surface work, cleaned o f f the l o c a t i o n s , t e s t e d our dead men. 

We removed some equipment t h a t was f u l l of o i l and l e a k i n g . We 

cleaned a l l t h a t out, shipped i t out. I t had been there f o r 

years. 

As f a r as r i g g i n g up and doing the work on the w e l l , 

a t t h a t time we d i d n o t . We e l e c t e d t o go t o the Pearls. 

Q. So, a c t u a l l y , on t h r e e of these, though, you had 

deadlines set by the BLM; i s t h a t r i g h t ? They're not on those 

p a r t i c u l a r sundries. 

A. They're not on those p a r t i c u l a r sundries? 

Q. No. I b e l i e v e i t ' s -- i f my notes are c o r r e c t 

i t was the Crosby Deep No. 1, the Crosby Deep No. 3, and there 

was one more on the -- Crosby Deep No. 4 t h a t the BLM had set 

February 1 s t . And I t h i n k one was the January 7th deadline f o r 

e i t h e r r e t u r n i n g t o p r o d u c t i o n or p l u g g i n g those wells? 

A. Uh-huh. You know, I t h i n k they had granted an 

extension on t h a t . I'm not sure. I spoke w i t h the BLM, T r i c i a 

Bad Bear i n Hobbs about i t . She's more i n t e r e s t e d i n some 

environmental issues t h a t are t h e r e f o r some reason. 

Q. Those were a c t u a l l y the dates of the extensions 

t h a t were granted by the BLM? 

A. Were they? I guess they were. Did you say you 

had a copy of those sundries w i t h you? 
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Q. I do somewhere, but --

A. I would need t o look a t them. 

Q. But i n any event, X e r i c has stopped working on 

those s i t e s ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? For the time being? 

A. We've gone about as f a r as we can go u n t i l we do 

r i g up. Yes . 

Q. With regard t o the Crosby Deep No. 2, t h e r e i s 

a c t u a l l y some environmental issue on t h a t s i t e w i t h regard t o 

some s t a i n e d s o i l and some l e a k i n g around the wellhead; i s n ' t 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. And Xe r i c has stopped working t h a t s i t e even 

though t h a t hasn't been cleaned up yet? 

A. We've stopped the problem. There was vessels and 

d i f f e r e n t problems out th e r e l e a k i n g , and the r e had been f o r 

several years. We emptied the vessels and had the f l u i d 

disposed of p r o p e r l y , a c t u a l l y took vessels i n , and they'r e not 

even on l o c a t i o n . 

The wellheads, yeah, you're probably r i g h t . 

Q. But the s o i l hasn't been remediated, and the 

debr i s hasn't been cleared? 

A. No. There's some environmental issues; however, 

the landowner i s r e a l cooperative w i t h us over t h e r e , and he's 

working w i t h us a l s o . 

Q. Out of the 22 sundries t h a t you've submitted 
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today as evidence of the work t h a t X e r i c has been performing 

since the l a s t h e a r i n g , o n l y a p o r t i o n of those w e l l s a c t u a l l y 

are w e l l s t h a t are i n v o l v e d i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r a c t i o n out of 

the 88 t h a t were noted i n t h i s case; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Okay. Yeah. 

Q. Does t h a t s u r p r i s e you t h a t not a l l of them 

a c t u a l l y were i n noncompliance and i n v o l v e d i n t h i s case? 

A. No, t h a t doesn't s u r p r i s e me. I f th e r e was a 

noncompliant w e l l i n one area and we had a w e l l t h a t was 

capable of producing or being put back on p r o d u c t i o n , we would 

catch i t w h i l e we were t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. And out of the 22, on l y seven of them 

a c t u a l l y have been brought back i n t o f u l l compliance since the 

e f f o r t s t h a t have been brought about through Baker; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you p e r s o n a l l y had any con t a c t w i t h the 

d i s t r i c t o f f i c e since the September hearing? 

A. Yeah. I've seen -- I've t a l k e d w i t h Buddy H i l l 

and L a r r y Johnson. They were both out t h e r e . 

Q. When was the l a s t time you had contact w i t h them? 

A. That was i n November, I t h i n k . 

Q. And what was t h a t d i s c u s s i o n about? 

A. They were out at the s i t e doing some s t u f f , and I 

j u s t happened to run i n t o them. 
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Q. But i t wasn't an appointment or a s p e c i f i c 

meeting i n i t i a t e d by you t o discuss the s t a t u s of X e r i c — 

A. No, no. 

Q. - - o r your e f f o r t s t o come i n t o compliance? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. 

A. A l o t of t h a t was coo r d i n a t e d through Baker. 

Q. I s Mr. H i r s c h f e l d , even though he's not an 

o f f i c e r going forward, s t i l l going t o be the primary person 

r e s p o n s i b l e f o r the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e issues? 

A. He w i l l p l a y some p a r t i n t h a t ; however, i t ' l l 

p robably be handed o f f t o someone t h a t ' s more experienced. 

Q. Okay. Do you know who t h a t someone w i l l be? 

A. Not y e t . 

Q. W i l l i t be somebody through R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. I t ' l l be a d e c i s i o n through R e s i l i e n t and myself, 

yes . 

Q. So a t t h i s p o i n t i n time, t o the best of your 

knowledge, X e r i c has no immediate plans f o r p o s t i n g any of the 

s i n g l e w e l l bonds t h a t are owed? 

A. No, not a t t h i s time. 

Q. And a t a r a t e of f i v e w e l l s per q u a r t e r -- i s 

t h a t what you said? 

A. That's being r e a l i s t i c . 

Q. Are you saying " q u a r t e r " as i n q u a r t e r year? 
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A. As i n f o u r months. 

Q. So — 

A. That's o n l y the w e l l s on the noncompliant l i s t . 

That doesn't i n c l u d e e v e r y t h i n g e l s e , the surface and the 

environmental issues t h a t we have t o address. 

Q. So a t t h a t r a t e -- I'm not very good a t math --

how many years would i t take you t o b r i n g the remaining 81 

w e l l s --

A. Well, I'm not very good a t math e i t h e r , so have 

you got a c a l c u l a t o r ? 

Q. Four years, approximately f o u r years, t o b r i n g 

the 81 w e l l s back i n t o compliance? 

A. I t h i n k so, and I t h i n k t h a t ' s a reasonable 

amount of time. 

Q. And d u r i n g t h a t time X e r i c would be p o s t i n g the 

overdue bonds when? 

A. Xe r i c would be p o s t i n g --

Q. The s i n g l e w e l l bonds t h a t are owed, when would 

you foresee? 

A. You know, I can't give you an accurate date. I 

wish I could; I can't. I t h i n k Mr. H i r s c h f e l d t o l d you t h a t 

we're not f i n a n c i a l l y capable of p o s t i n g bond. 

Q. But the f i v e w e l l s per q u a r t e r i s based on simply 

f o c u s i n g your finances on b r i n g i n g those back on l i n e and not 

con s i d e r i n g p o s t i n g bonds at a l l ? 
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A. That would be my assumption. 

Q. So the number would be reduced i f you had t o 

consider p o s t i n g bonds i n a d d i t i o n t o f u n n e l i n g money i n t o 

resources i n t o --

A. We would r a t h e r put the money back i n t o the 

pr o p e r t y , not on l y t o clean i t up and t o get i n t o compliance — 

I don't have $750,000 t o give t o you f o r you t o h o l d i n an 

account somewhere. I mean, I j u s t don't have i t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: Okay. I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. I don't understand how the previous owner f i l e d 

sundries w i t h the BLM months a f t e r the sale of the company. 

A. We don't e i t h e r . I t was Walter Keen. He 

a c t u a l l y signed the sundry n o t i c e s . We closed i n March, and he 

sent them l i k e the end of March. We have no e x p l a n a t i o n why he 

done t h a t , and we contacted the BLM o f f i c e s i n Hobbs and 

a c t u a l l y t a l k e d t o T r i c i a Bad Bear -- she's a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e 

f o r the BLM -- and t o l d her what happened. 

And we don't -- I don't have an answer f o r t h a t . I 

don't know why he d i d . 

Q. Not a t your d i r e c t i o n or not a t your request? 

A. No, ma'am. We had not h i n g t o do w i t h i t . 

Q. Baker Energy i s no longer under c o n t r a c t w i t h 
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you. Do you i n t e n d t o renew a c o n t r a c t w i t h them? 

A. With Baker, probably not. We t h i n k we can f i n d 

l o c a l c o n t r a c t o r s , and since I've moved down here now, i t would 

be my r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o oversee those c o n t r a c t o r s . They're 

extremely expensive. 

Q. You've moved down t o Midland? 

A. I have moved t o Midland, yes. 

Q. But not t o Lea County? 

A. No, I have n o t . 

Q. So you have no name, no company, t h a t you i n t e n d 

t o r e l y on t o help you w i t h reworking these w e l l s ? 

A. Sure. I have s e v e r a l . I've used Rico Well 

Service. I've used s e v e r a l d i f f e r e n t w e l l s e r v i c e companies i n 

Lea County. I've used f o u r or f i v e d i f f e r e n t roustabout 

companies. 

Q. But don't have any of them under c o n t r a c t ? 

A. No. That takes about a phone c a l l . 

Q. Do you own any equipment y o u r s e l f ? 

A. You know, I've got t r u c k s , pickups, and s t u f f 

l i k e t h a t . Are you t a l k i n g about workover r i g s ? 

Q. Yes. 

A. No, ma'am, I don't. 

Q. Have you ever operated i n New Mexico before? 

A. Not New Mexico; Texas. 

Q. R e s i l i e n t Energy owns X e r i c . What other 
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companies does R e s i l i e n t Energy own? 

A. R e s i l i e n t ' s got some other e n t i t i e s not i n v o l v e d 

i n o i l and gas. Mr. F i e l d e r can answer t h a t f o r you. The only 

t h i n g I'm i n t e r e s t e d i n i s o i l and gas assets, and I 

p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h R e s i l i e n t i n t h a t . 

Q. I s Xeric the only company t h a t you are i n v o l v e d 

w i t h r i g h t now? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commission Olson? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Yeah. I have some questions, maybe, j u s t 

s t a r t i n g w i t h the c o r p o r a t i o n again. 

You s a i d t h a t you're the p r e s i d e n t of Xe r i c now. 

A. Right. 

Q. I thought the l a s t hearing — or our previous 

witness here was p r e s i d e n t of --

A c t u a l l y , Tim C o l l i e r was. Mr. C o l l i e r was 

Back i n September? 

Yes . 

And when d i d t h a t change? 

That — i n September, al s o , I b e l i e v e . 

A f t e r the hearing? 

A. He d i d n ' t show up. He wasn't here f o r the 
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he a r i n g . 

Q. But I thought you j u s t s a i d he was p r e s i d e n t a t 

the time of the hea r i n g . 

A. He was. And t h a t ' s -- we made the changes 

s h o r t l y before the hearing, but they weren't -- he j u s t k i n d of 

dropped o f f the radar. So --

Q. Well, I guess I come back t o , how come you 

haven't r e g i s t e r e d as a c o r p o r a t i o n i n New Mexico? 

A. X e r i c — 

Q. I t sounds l i k e you've had s e v e r a l changes of 

o f f i c e r s , and none of t h a t i s r e f l e c t e d i n any of the State 

records as even being i n e x i s t e n c e . 

A. I t ' s — Mr. H i r s c h f e l d could probably answer t h a t 

f o r you. I know we're r e g i s t e r e d i n the s t a t e of Texas. 

Xe r i c ' s been around. And I know t h i s i s k i n d of o f f the 

s u b j e c t . I t was s t a r t e d about 25 years ago by a gentleman i n 

Midland, Texas, by a gentleman named Randall Capps. 

Randall Capps s t a r t e d X e r i c . He had good i n t e n t i o n s . 

About l i k e us, he d i d n ' t have a very b i g w a l l e t . But, you 

know, the guy went on t o be s u c c e s s f u l . U n f o r t u n a t e l y , he l e f t 

New Mexico w i t h not such a good r e p u t a t i o n . And we j u s t seen 

an o p p o r t u n i t y . 

Then Mr. Cook had acquired i t from Mr. Capps, and 

t h a t ' s -- they had bought X e r i c . We ended up making a d e a l . I 

brought some p r o p e r t i e s o f f of Mr. Cook, which had already 
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bought X e r i c o f f of Mr. Capps. I had bought some p r o p e r t i e s i n 

Montana o f f of Mr. Cook. And then he approached me t o buy 

these p r o p e r t i e s i n New Mexico. And t h a t ' s k i n d of how a l l of 

t h i s come about. 

So -- but t o answer your q u e s t i o n : Why aren ' t we 

r e g i s t e r e d i n the State of New Mexico? I don't know. 

Q. Well, then coming back t o the c o r p o r a t i o n -- and 

maybe I heard you wrong — but I thought you s a i d when you 

s t a r t e d your testimony t h a t you were the only shareholder of 

Xe r i c . 

A. Of CSC. 

Q. Of CSC? 

A. CSC, yes. And now I'm the sole shareholder of 

Xer i c a t t h i s time. 

Q. But I thought under the p r i o r testimony we j u s t 

had t h a t R e s i l i e n t was the sole shareholder of X e r i c . 

A. No. R e s i l i e n t i s not a shareholder r i g h t now. 

We're t r y i n g t o get a deal w i t h R e s i l i e n t t o o b t a i n f i n a n c i n g 

f o r us and p a r t i c i p a t e w i t h us as a j o i n t venture. And yes, 

R e s i l i e n t w i l l be, but r i g h t now they're not. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, would you l i k e t o 

take a few minutes t o t a l k t o your witness? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Yeah. We can do i t one of two ways. 

We can clean i t up w i t h Mr. F i e l d e r , and i f you wouldn't mind, 

take a break w i t h Mr. St. John, whichever you p r e f e r . 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t ' s p r e t t y much up t o you, but we 

have some p r e t t y c o n f l i c t i n g testimony. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I f you wouldn't mind, i f we could 

take j u s t a f i v e - m i n u t e break. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Why don't we take a 

fi v e - m i n u t e break and reconvene here a t a q u a r t e r a f t e r 2:00. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: Thank you. 

[Recess taken from 2:08 p.m. t o 2:13 p.m., and 

testimony continued as f o l l o w s : ] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let the recor d r e f l e c t t h a t t h i s 

i s the c o n t i n u a t i o n of Case No. 14106. 

The r e c o r d should also r e f l e c t t h a t a l l the 

Commissioners are s t i l l present. 

Ms. Mund-Dry, you were i n the middle of -- no. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t h i n k i t was Commissioner Olson who 

was i n the middle of an examination of Mr. St. John. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson was i n the 

middle o f the examination o f Mr. St. John. Commissioner Olson? 

Q. (By Commissioner Olson): I guess maybe j u s t t o 

make sure I'm c l e a r . 

A. I was a l i t t l e confused about the que s t i o n . I'm 

so r r y . But there has been --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Well, why don't you l e t him ask 

the questi o n . 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 
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Q. (By Commissioner Olson): I guess my f i r s t 

q uestion was, I thought you s a i d when you s t a r t e d your 

testimony t h a t you were the sole shareholder o f X e r i c . But 

then a p r i o r witness had s a i d t h a t R e s i l i e n t was the only 

shareholder of X e r i c . 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. Can you c l a r i f y t h a t ? 

A. Yes. R e s i l i e n t i s a p a r t o f X e r i c . That was 

e f f e c t i v e January 1; however, the paperwork has not been 

completed. That's where I got confused. A l l the documents 

have not been completed and signed, but i t was dated and 

e f f e c t i v e January the 1st. I'm s o r r y about the confusion. 

But R e s i l i e n t i s -- and Mr. F i e l d e r can b r i n g you up 

to speed on t h a t . They are a p a r t n e r of X e r i c . 

Q. But I guess i s t h a t the sole shareholder? I s 

t h a t the R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. Yeah. They w i l l be, yes. 

Q. They w i l l be once the paperwork — 

A. I t ' s e f f e c t i v e -- i t ' s e f f e c t i v e January 1st. 

But we s t i l l have some paperwork l i n g e r i n g out t h e r e . We're 

not completely closed. 

Q. And you're not closed between — of the deal 

between Xeri c and R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. No. There's a document, I t h i n k , t h a t ' s 

r e q u i r i n g a s i g n a t u r e . We're j u s t w a i t i n g on i t t o come i n . 
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And as soon as t h a t ' s i n , we're e f f e c t i v e l y -- I mean, then 

we're closed. 

Q. And whose s i g n a t u r e are you w a i t i n g on? 

A. We're w a i t i n g on a document t o be drawn up, and I 

t h i n k the s i g n a t u r e t h a t we're w a i t i n g on i s -- i t ' s an opi n i o n 

l e t t e r from an a t t o r n e y i s what i t was. 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: I t ' s not me, Commissioner Olson. 

Just so you know they'r e not w a i t i n g on me. 

THE WITNESS: I j u s t know there's a document f l o a t i n g 

around. We're w a i t i n g on a s i g n a t u r e . I t was a l l e f f e c t i v e 

January 1. I'm s o r r y . I j u s t d i d n ' t remember i t . 

Q. (By Commissioner Olson): So I guess I'm s t i l l 

t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out who's on f i r s t . 

A. Right. 

Q. And so C o l l i e r l e f t i n September? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And was he bought out or what? 

A. No. CSC i s how k i n d of a l l t h i s s t a r t e d . I 

s t a r t e d CSC. C o l l i e r and I had a v e r b a l agreement. I don't 

know what h i s personal issues was. He s a i d , "Look." He s a i d , 

"At some p o i n t , I cannot be an o f f i c e r of CSC." And I s a i d 

f i n e . 

There was myself and another gentleman up i n Wyoming, 

Donny Cross. At some p o i n t , Donny couldn't go on w i t h the 

t h i n g s t h a t we were doing, so I made an o f f e r t o buy him out. 
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I d i d buy him out. I am the sole owner of CSC, which CSC went 

i n and bought X e r i c . Okay? 

I know i t ' s c o nfusing. I f I had i t a l l over t o do 

again, I wouldn't probably do i t . 

Q. But I guess i f C o l l i e r was a p r i n c i p a l , how d i d 

you not buy him out? 

A. I t was v e r b a l . We had n o t h i n g on paper. He had 

personal issues. I don't know what those were. And he j u s t 

e l e c t e d not t o be a d i r e c t o r of CSC. He could not a t the time 

f o r personal reasons. I don't know whether he had a 

c o n f l i c t i n g business i n t e r e s t somewhere e l s e . I r e a l l y don't 

know. 

Q. And what k i n d of an e n t i t y i s CSC then? 

A. I t ' s an LLC. 

Q. I t ' s an LLC. 

A. Uh-huh. I t ' s a Wyoming c o r p o r a t i o n or LLC. 

Q. I don't know i f t h a t e n t i r e l y c l e a r e d i t up. So 

d i d C o l l i e r leave any k i n d of money on the t a b l e w i t h t h i s 

whole deal? 

A. No. 

Q. He brought nothing? What d i d he b r i n g t o t h i s 

deal? 

A. He d i d n ' t b r i n g a n y t h i n g except h i s e x p e r t i s e . I 

met him i n Wyoming. I had p r i o r commitments t o another company 

t o do some p r o j e c t s . I had made an a c q u i s i t i o n w i t h a company 

500 
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out of Midland, Texas, bought some p r o p e r t y i n Sweetwater 

County, Wyoming. I had no help a t t h a t p o i n t . 

That's when I went out and r e c r u i t e d Mr. Cross and 

Mr. C o l l i e r t o help and o f f e r e d them p a r t of the company. 

Mr. Cross -- a t the time, Mr. C o l l i e r c o u l d n ' t take h i s p a r t 

because of c o n f l i c t i n g business dealings somewhere e l s e , but I 

r e c r u i t e d them as help and o f f e r e d them p a r t o f the company t o 

a c t u a l l y help me. 

Q. When you say t o help you, was t h a t t o help run 

the company? 

A. To help -- I had p r i o r commitments on another 

p r o j e c t i n Wyoming, so I o f f e r e d them t h i s so they would 

a c t u a l l y go t o the f i e l d . They had a l o t of e x p e r t i s e i n 

d r i l l i n g and completions, and I a c t u a l l y -- I d i d n ' t have any 

help a t the time. So -- and I had done t h i s a c q u i s i t i o n and 

ended up w i t h i t and had some work t o be done, and I j u s t had 

p r i o r commitments. So t h a t ' s how I got i n v o l v e d w i t h those 

two . 

Q. Well, I guess some of the d i s c u s s i o n we had going 

on was about C o l l i e r not keeping promises, as I understand, and 

was coming up w i t h testimony w i t h the D i v i s i o n t h a t was made on 

beh a l f of X e r i c . 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And then when d i d you f i n d out about t h a t ? 

A. About C o l l i e r not f o l l o w i n g through? 
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Q. Right. 

A. I t was before the hearing because he d i d n ' t show 

up f o r the he a r i n g . But we had found out l i k e i n August. I 

t h i n k the hearing was i n September. 

Q. So how d i d you f i n d out? 

A. Well, f o r one t h i n g , I t h i n k M i k a l or the OCD had 

contacted our lawyer. And anyway they had some complaints. We 

j u s t knew t h a t i t wasn't g e t t i n g done. I t h i n k myself and 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d had asked him some questions, and a t t h a t p o i n t , 

the answers weren't c l e a r , and we knew t h a t something was 

probably up. 

So i t was p r e t t y i n c o n s i s t e n t , and he had other 

t h i n g s t h a t he k i n d of was o f f doing too. So we d i d n ' t f e e l 

l i k e h i s main focus was Xe r i c e i t h e r . 

Q. Well, I guess maybe -- t o make sure I heard you 

c o r r e c t l y , I thought you s a i d t h a t you found out about the per 

w e l l bonding a t the c l o s i n g . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Well, i f you --

A. Well, t h e r e was a p e t i t i o n f i l e d . We closed on 

March -- we closed i n March. I t was l i k e March the 5t h . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Of what year? 

THE WITNESS: 2008, l a s t year. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And "we" being CSC, owning Xeric? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . And then I t h i n k — d i d n ' t 
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y o u - a l l f i l e the paperwork l i k e two days a f t e r t h a t ? I don't 

have the dates. I know you f i l e d — the OCD f i l e d some 

paperwork l i k e one or two days a f t e r we had closed w i t h X e r i c . 

Q. (By Commissioner Olson): But you're saying you 

found out a t the c l o s i n g , r i g h t ? I f you found out a t c l o s i n g 

t h e r e was a per w e l l bond which was q u i t e s u b s t a n t i a l f o r the 

number of w e l l s --

A. We weren't c l e a r . I had never operated i n the 

State of New Mexico. I was not r e a l c l e a r on e x a c t l y — I know 

t h i s i s t o t a l l y d i f f e r e n t than Texas or any other place I have 

operated, but I was not c l e a r of the s i n g l e w e l l bond f i n a n c i a l 

assurance. I wasn't. And i t was not d i s c l o s e d by the previous 

owners. 

Q. I guess I thought you were saying t h a t you found 

about per w e l l bonds a t the c l o s i n g . 

A. We knew the r e was a bond r e q u i r e d , and t h a t bond 

was posted. But we d i d not know about the s i n g l e w e l l bond. 

We knew the r e was a bond requirement. I don't remember e x a c t l y 

what i t i s , and we had t h a t bond up. We s t i l l do. But we 

weren't aware o f the s i n g l e w e l l bond u n t i l l a t e r . 

Q. Okay. And I guess I ' l l s t i c k w i t h the bonding 

issue f o r a second. I t h i n k you were t e s t i f y i n g t h a t the 

s i n g l e w e l l bonds are j u s t not an o p t i o n f o r you; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. I don't -- r i g h t now, t o come up w i t h -- I t h i n k 
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i t ' s $700,000, r i g h t ? Or somewhere p r e t t y close t o t h e r e , 680 

or something. That's j u s t not something I t h i n k we can do a t 

t h i s time. 

Q. But then you're saying you can do something on a 

long-term b a s i s . So how do we, then, guarantee t h a t a c t u a l l y 

t h i s w i l l get done? That's p a r t of the reasons why there's a 

s i n g l e w e l l bond out the r e i s t o guarantee t h a t c e r t a i n t h i n g s 

w i l l happen. 

And how do we guarantee t h a t y o u ' l l a c t u a l l y perform? 

Because d u r i n g the past h i s t o r y of X e r i c , how w i l l we look t o 

a c t u a l l y see t h a t i t ' s been performed? 

A. I understand the past h i s t o r y i s not good w i t h 

X e r i c . I'm open t o suggestions on whatever we can come up 

w i t h . I mean, i f I commit t o do f i v e w e l l s per q u a r t e r , and 

you want a bond on those f i v e w e l l s , and then when I complete 

the f i v e w e l l s , I get my bond back and put i t on another f i v e . 

I'm w i l l i n g t o be f a i r . Whatever i s -- I'm open t o 

suggestions. I'm not — but I want t o be r e a l i s t i c . I want 

these t o be goals t h a t we can accomplish. But as f a r as coming 

up w i t h $680,000, $700,000, you know, r i g h t now t h a t ' s not an 

op t i o n f o r us. I j u s t don't have i t . 

Q. Well, I guess back on the performance, you're 

saying t h a t you can do f i v e w e l l s per q u a r t e r . 

A. Yes. 

Q. And, oh, speaking of math, I t h i n k you s a i d a 
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q u a r t e r was four months. I t would a c t u a l l y be thr e e months. 

A. Okay, i t would be t h r e e months. So t h a t ' s a 

l i t t l e over one w e l l a q u a r t e r -- or a month. 

Q. But then I guess, l o o k i n g r i g h t now, you 

purchased t h i s back i n March o f 2008 w i t h the idea o f b r i n g i n g 

these t h i n g s — knowing they were noncompliant — b r i n g i n g them 

i n t o compliance, and i n a nine-month p e r i o d you only brought 

seven w e l l s i n t o compliance. 

A. Rig h t . 

Q. So t h a t ' s not — even there i s not what -- the 

f i v e w e l l s a q u a r t e r t h a t you're t a l k i n g about. So how do 

we -- I'm saying look a t i t al r e a d y . You d i d n ' t meet i t l a s t 

year. How are you going t o meet i t t h i s year? 

A. Last year we went through a l o t of changes. For 

one, the people t h a t we had h e l p i n g us, the C o l l i e r d e a l , I 

mean, t h a t was a b i g issue f o r us. This guy had a l l the 

experience i n New Mexico. I mean, I had none. 

And I was r e l y i n g a l o t on -- t h a t ' s one of the 

reasons why we d i d t h i s a c q u i s i t i o n . I t was a recommendation 

from him. And not o n l y t h a t , he's the one t h a t had a l l the 

experience i n New Mexico, and I had none. So whenever he k i n d 

of dropped out of the loop, t h a t squeezed us p r e t t y hard. 

Q. But then I thought you s a i d you had f i r s t had 

dealings w i t h him up i n Wyoming. 

A. We d i d . 
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Q. He was already o p e r a t i n g i n New Mexico a t the 

same time? 

A. No. He was not o p e r a t i n g i n New Mexico, and he 

was not o p e r a t i n g i n -- he was j u s t h e l p i n g me i s what he was 

doing i n Wyoming. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But he was from New Mexico. 

THE WITNESS: And he has a h i s t o r y w i t h Yates 

Petroleum, C o l l i e r and C o l l i e r D r i l l i n g out of A r t e s i a . He has 

a l o t , and we were banking a l o t on t h a t . So when he k i n d of 

f e l l o f f the radar, t h a t caused us t o k i n d of go i n t o a 

t a i l s p i n . I'm s u r p r i s e d we got seven of them. 

I mean, i t ' s o f f the l i s t . But now we know what's 

happening here, and we're s t a r t i n g t o get a l i t t l e more 

organized. We know what's i n v o l v e d , and the r e i s a l o t 

i n v o l v e d . 

Q. So C o l l i e r was i n v o l v e d i n New Mexico. I s he a 

landowner or a min e r a l owner on any of these p r o p e r t i e s ? 

A. No. 

Q. You also s a i d t h a t when you had taken t h i s over 

t h a t the w e l l f i l e s were shoddy and t h a t you were going t o 

these w e l l s b l i n d . Did you ever look at the OCD w e l l f i l e s f o r 

these wells? 

A. We had. I wasn't r e a l f a m i l i a r w i t h the website. 

I've g o t t e n more f a m i l i a r w i t h i t . We d i d p u l l up some 

i n f o r m a t i o n . The e x i s t i n g w e l l f i l e s were p r e t t y shoddy. They 
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were not complete a t a l l . I t was about l i k e the operator t h a t 

had had i t previous t o us. But yes, we now do. We get a l o t 

of i n f o r m a t i o n o f f the website. 

Q. But, I guess, i f you were o p e r a t i n g i n other 

s t a t e s , I'm sure t h i s has come up b e f o r e . Why wouldn't you go 

f i r s t t h i n g t o go look a t the State f o r w e l l records t o f i n d 

out what you're purchasing? 

A. Well, there's a l o t of w e l l s here. So we d i d 

look at some. Like I say, we went a l o t o f f the recommendation 

Mr. C o l l i e r had made because of h i s experience i n New Mexico. 

We probably d i d n ' t f o l l o w through, d i d n ' t do as much 

due d i l i g e n c e on t h i s p r o j e c t as we d i d on previous p r o j e c t s . 

But l i k e — once again, we were r e l y i n g a l o t on h i s word and 

what he recommended. He had a h i s t o r y here, and i t was a 

p r e t t y good one. 

Q. Well, he had the h i s t o r y , I guess, but he wasn't 

meeting the promises t h a t he was making on b e h a l f of the 

company. 

A. Yes, and I understand t h a t . He d i d not. He 

d i d n ' t f o l l o w through on the promises he made t o us. 

Q. Let me see i f I can c l a r i f y the time frames again 

because I thought you were saying you d i d n ' t f i n d out u n t i l 

August t h a t the promises weren't being kept, but your p r i o r 

witness was saying t h a t i t was a c t u a l l y -- he thought i t was i n 

June. So what's the time frame? 
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A. We had a meeting here i n June w i t h the OCD. We 

had t o designate someone t o communicate w i t h the OCD e i t h e r 

weekly or biweekly, b r i n g them up t o speed on e x a c t l y what we 

had accomplished d u r i n g t h a t two-week p e r i o d o f time and what 

was going t o be accomplished i n the next two weeks. Tim 

C o l l i e r was designated as t h a t person. 

I t went along a couple of months t h e r e . At t h a t 

time, I was s t i l l l i v i n g i n Wyoming. So I had other 

commitments up t h e r e . I hadn't yet moved down here, and I 

j u s t — so I wasn't r e a l l y on top of t h i n g s the way I probably 

should have been. But no, Mr. C o l l i e r d i d not do what he s a i d 

he would do, e i t h e r t o the OCD or t o us p e r s o n a l l y . 

But t h a t -- I know we d i d have a meeting i n June w i t h 

the OCD. 

Q. And I guess the suggestions you're b r i n g i n g up 

today f o r t h i s f i v e w e l l s per q u a r t e r , i s t h i s your plan? I 

mean, I would t h i n k a t t h i s p o i n t since you're out of 

compliance, you're saying you'd l i k e t o come i n t o some Agreed 

Compliance Order, but you don't seem t o have a n y t h i n g — any 

evidence t o present t o us of a proposed p l a n , other than 

t h i n k i n g t h a t you can do f i v e w e l l s per q u a r t e r . 

A. I wasn't aware t h a t we were supposed t o come i n 

w i t h a proposed p l a n . I f you would l i k e a w r i t t e n p lan t h a t 

shows t h a t and shows what we would l i k e t o do, then we could 

c e r t a i n l y put one togethe r f o r you. 
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However, I wasn't aware t h a t we were supposed t o come 

i n here t o make a proposal on how we can get i n t o compliance. 

Q. Well, I guess, what d i d you expect what was going 

t o happen here today? I mean, t h a t ' s the whole p o i n t of why 

we're here. You're out of compliance. 

A. We're out of compliance. We want t o get i n t o 

compliance. The t h i n g about i t i s , the OCD wants us t o put up 

700 grand. We're here t o t r y and f i g u r e out some way t h a t w i l l 

not put a l i a b i l i t y on the State but yet — and a l l o w us t o go 

i n and p o s s i b l y clean t h i s mess up w i t h our money. I wasn't 

aware t h a t we were supposed t o have a w r i t t e n proposal f o r 

t h a t ; however, w e ' l l c e r t a i n l y -- w e ' l l do whatever pleases the 

OCD a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Well, I thought t h a t was the purpose of why we're 

here. 

A. Well, then, I'm not prepared. But I ' d be more 

than happy t o get you a w r i t t e n proposal i f t h a t ' s what you 

would l i k e . 

Q. Well, I don't know i f t h a t w i l l n e c e s s a r i l y help 

us a t the moment because we're having t o deal w i t h t h i s hearing 

at the moment. That's k i n d of what the purpose of the hearing 

i s . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have. 
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EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. St. John, we're going t o re-plow the same 

road f o r a l i t t l e b i t . But I need t o know, as of today, what 

i s your p o s i t i o n i n Xeric? 

A. I am the p r e s i d e n t . 

Q. P r i o r t o December 31st of t h i s year, what was 

your p o s i t i o n w i t h Xeric? 

A. I was -- p r i o r t o t h i s , I was v i c e p r e s i d e n t , I 

t h i n k . I'm not exact on when the dates were. But I t h i n k I 

was v i c e p r e s i d e n t . 

Q. But you s a i d as of January 1st t h e r e were some 

changes. What was your p o s i t i o n p r i o r t o the change? 

A. I was p r e s i d e n t p r i o r t o the change. And the 

t h i n g s are e f f e c t i v e January 1. Are you t a l k i n g about w i t h 

R e s i l i e n t ? They were e f f e c t i v e January 1, but we s t i l l have 

some documents t h a t are — 

Q. Okay. Immediately p r i o r t o the change w i t h 

R e s i l i e n t , what was your p o s i t i o n ? 

A. I was p r e s i d e n t immediately — i n December, I 

b e l i e v e . 

Q. And when d i d you become p r e s i d e n t o f Xeric? 

A. I t was about the time Mr. C o l l i e r l e f t . Because 

we had appointed Mr. C o l l i e r p r e s i d e n t . And i t was about the 

time t h a t he had l e f t . 
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Q. Okay. And do you have any idea what day t h a t 

was ? 

A. That was August or September. 

Q. Of 2008? 

A. Of '08, yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. Up t o then you were v i c e p r e s i d e n t between 

i n i t i a l c l ose, which was i n March, t o August or September you 

were v i c e p r e s i d e n t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And immediately a f t e r v i c e p r e s i d e n t , you were 

pres i d e n t ? 

A. Yes. A f t e r Mr. C o l l i e r had l e f t . 

Q. Okay. When d i d you become aware f o r the need f o r 

the — the requirement under the law f o r the i n d i v i d u a l w e l l 

bonds? 

A. That was -- I wasn't aware of i t u n t i l I was made 

aware of i t a f t e r c l o s i n g . 

Q. A f t e r which c l o s i n g ? 

A. The March of '08. That's when we bought i t o f f 

of Mr. Cook and Mr. King. 

Q. So you became aware of i t a f t e r you bought i t --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. -- but before you became pres i d e n t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. So some time i n t h a t p e r i o d you became aware? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And you're t e l l i n g us t h a t you are not going t o 

comply w i t h t h a t bonding requirement; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I'm t e l l i n g you I can't. I want t o , but I can't. 

Q. Okay. You understand t h a t t h a t ' s a requirement 

of the law? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you understand t h a t ' s t o p r o t e c t the c i t i z e n s 

of New Mexico from having t o p l u g these w e l l s ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you're t e l l i n g me t h a t you cannot? Why can 

you not comply w i t h the law? 

A. I don't have the $700,000. 

Q. Okay. Now, we've got p r i o r testimony t h a t s a i d 

t h a t Tim C o l l i e r was a 50-percent owner i n CSC when they 

acquired Xeric? 

A. No. 

Q. That's not true? 

A. No, s i r , t h a t ' s not t r u e . 

Q. And you r e a l i z e t h a t came from a p r i o r witness 

who was the f i n a n c i a l o f f i c e r f o r the cor p o r a t i o n ? 

A. No, I wasn't aware of i t . Mr. C o l l i e r --

ev e r y t h i n g was v e r b a l w i t h Mr. C o l l i e r . I don't know what 

issues he had, e i t h e r personal or whatever. But he asked me 

not t o document him down as an o f f i c e r of CSC. 
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Q. I'm not t a l k i n g about --

A. There's no re c o r d of ownership -- of Mr. C o l l i e r 

having any ownership i n CSC. 

Q. Okay. So when the p r i o r witness t o l d us t h a t 

Mr. C o l l i e r was a 50-percent owner i n CSC, he was mistaken? 

A. Yes. I t was because there's n o t h i n g documented. 

Q. P r i o r t o the a c q u i s i t i o n , immediately p r i o r t o 

the a c q u i s i t i o n o f X e r i c , who were the owners of CSC? 

A. Me. 

Q. Just you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Immediately a f t e r the a c q u i s i t i o n of Xe r i c by --

the 50 percent a c q u i s i t i o n of -- w e l l , I don't even know i f 

t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

X e r i c a c q u i r e d what — I mean, CSC acquired what 

percentage of X e r i c i n March of 2008? 

A. CSC r e q u i r e d — 

Q. Acquired. 

A. Acquired -- I t h i n k i t was 100 percent, 

Mr. Fesmire. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I ' d have t o look back through my documents, but 

I'm sure i t was. CSC had done other a c q u i s i t i o n s previous t o 

t h a t . And --

Q. So Mr. H i r s c h f e l d ' s company d i d not have an 
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i n t e r e s t a t t h a t time? 

A. He d i d . You know, Mr. H i r s c h f e l d represents a 

funding company, and they had a percentage. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. Okay. They had a percentage o f Xeric? 

A. Of X e r i c . 

Q. So how cou l d X e r i c have acquired 100 -- I mean, 

how could --

A. CSC, Mr. H i r s c h f e l d ' s company, which was a 

funding company -- and I'm s o r r y . I get confused on a l o t of 

t h i s . 

Q. Me too. 

A. Well, and — but CSC, I t h i n k , i f I remember 

r i g h t , i t was — i t was CSC and then -- t h a t ' s r i g h t . We d i d 

i t 50/50. We d i d i t 50/50. I'm s o r r y . CSC bought 50 percent 

of X e r i c . Mr. H i r s c h f e l d ' s company or the company he 

represented bought the other 50 percent. 

Q. So you are c o r r e c t i n g p r i o r testimony t h a t you 

had 100 percent of --

A. Yes. That was -- I'm s o r r y . But t h a t ' s how i t 

worked. I have t o t h i n k back. This i s i n March of '08, so --

Q. Okay. So i n March of '08, CSC owned 50 percent, 

and Mr. H i r s c h f e l d represented an i n t e r e s t --

A. Of 50 percent. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

Q. So now we go i n t o January o f t h i s year. 

A. Okay. 
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Q. Who owns X e r i c today? 

A. E f f e c t i v e January 1, w i l l be R e s i l i e n t , which 

w i l l be Mr. F i e l d e r , and t h a t ' s i t . 

Q. Okay. And he i s buying CSC out? 

A. He's buying X e r i c . 

Q. Okay. But who i s being p a i d f o r X e r i c e f f e c t i v e 

January 1st? 

A. E f f e c t i v e January 1st, who w i l l be p a i d f o r 

Xeric? I t h i n k some of the people Mr. H i r s c h f e l d represents. 

Q. So Mr. H i r s c h f e l d ' s company gets 50 percent of 

the proceeds of the sale? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you get 50 percent of the proceeds of the 

sale? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does Mr. C o l l i e r have a c l a i m t o t h a t 50 percent? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Okay. As of today, R e s i l i e n t Energy owns a l l of 

Xeric? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you s t i l l have a document? 

A. Yes, s i r , we do. There's one, but the e f f e c t i v e 

c l o s i n g date was January 1st, and t h a t ' s how I got confused 

before. I apologize f o r t h a t . I'm more a f i e l d guy. I don't 

r e a l l y stay up t o speed on the paperwork. I probably should. 
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Q. Okay. So who owns R e s i l i e n t today; do you know? 

A. Yes, I do. I t ' s Mr. F i e l d e r , and I'm going t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e a l s o . 

Q. What does t h a t mean? 

A. I'm going t o become p a r t owner of R e s i l i e n t . 

Q. But you are not a t the present time an owner i n 

R e s i l i e n t , are you? 

A. I w i l l be when t h a t document i s signed, which i s 

e f f e c t i v e January 1. 

Q. So your i n t e r e s t i n R e s i l i e n t w i l l be d e r i v e d i n 

your i n t e r e s t i n Xeric? 

A. Uh-huh. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Was the r e a c t u a l l y a buyout of 

your i n t e r e s t i n X e r i c , or how --

THS WITNESS: Yes, w i t h R e s i l i e n t . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: So d i d money change hands, or 

what happened? 

THE WITNESS: A c t u a l l y , i t ' s the commitments t h a t 

R e s i l i e n t has made known. There hasn't been any money. I t ' s 

been a l l an agreement t h a t R e s i l i e n t i s going t o come i n and 

f u r n i s h a l o t of c a p i t a l t o do what we need t o do and b r i n g 

o t h er s t u f f to the t a b l e t h a t we're not capable of doing. 

And t h a t ' s p a r t of the buyout agreement. As f a r as 

money changing hands, I haven't made a n i c k l e o f f of X e r i c . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I guess what's g e t t i n g bought --
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1 i t doesn't sound l i k e a n y t h i n g was a c t u a l l y bought. I guess 

2 I'm confused. 

3 THE WITNESS: Well, we're b r i n g i n g R e s i l i e n t on as — 

4 I mean, they, R e s i l i e n t , i s going t o own a l l the assets. And 

5 they have the c a p a c i t y t o go out and b r i n g an i n f l u x of money 

6 t o do the t h i n g s t h a t we want t o do. And t h a t ' s k i n d of the 

7 commitment f o r them. 

8 But they ' r e going t o -- they have i n d i c a t e d t o us 

9 t h a t t h e y ' r e w i l l i n g t o b r i n g a s u b s t a n t i a l amount t o the 

10 t a b l e . We t h i n k w e ' l l get ours on the back end. 

11 Q. (By Chairman Fesmire): Okay. What are they 

12 going t o do? 

13 A. They're a c t u a l l y going t o b r i n g c a p i t a l . 

14 j Q. Okay. But what are you going t o do w i t h the 

15 j c a p i t a l ? 

16 I A. We're going t o go i n and rework w e l l s and t r y t o 

17 I get i n t o compliance. We don't want t o -- I don't want t o come 

18 I back down here. 

19 Q. Are any of those u n i t s i n v o l v e d i n a waterflood? 

20 A. They're not. Those u n i t s haven't been fl o o d e d i n 

21 several years. I ' l l speak s p e c i f i c a l l y on the Pearl Queen 

22 u n i t . They q u i t p u t t i n g water i n probably ten years ago. I t 

23 hadn't been flo o d e d . 

24 Q. Do you i n t e n d t o f l o o d i t ? 

25 A. Yes. 
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Q. And before you can f l o o d i t , you're going t o have 

t o plug a l l those w e l l s , aren't you? 

A. No. We plan t o -- t h e r e are several TA'd 

i n j e c t i o n w e l l s t h a t I'm assuming the i n t e g r i t y i s good. 

That's one t h i n g w e ' l l work our way through. Producers, w e ' l l 

be p u t t i n g --

Q. Okay. Let me rephrase the question then: Before 

you can f l o o d i t , you're e i t h e r going t o have t o p l u g or place 

a l l of those w e l l s back on p r o d u c t i o n ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. I f t h a t ' s what you want us t o do. Part of the 

f l o o d program probably i s t o u t i l i z e some of those w e l l bores. 

Q. R i g h t . So you're e i t h e r going t o have t o put 

them on p r o d u c t i o n or i n j e c t i o n or p l u g them. 

A. Yes. I'm s o r r y . 

Q. And, i n f a c t , you don't i n t e n d t o f l o o d t h a t 

w i t h o u t p l u g g i n g the w e l l s t h a t you're not using. 

A. Yeah. We'll p l u g the w e l l s we don't use, yeah. 

Q. Okay. And you can't f l o o d i t w i t h o u t p l u g g i n g 

i t , and you can't -- the upside p o t e n t i a l on t h i s u n i t , or 

these u n i t s , i s t o f l o o d i t , r i g h t ? 

A. That i s some of the upside. What do you mean we 

can't f l o o d i t w i t h o u t p l u g g i n g i t ? I mean, I'm confused 

t h e r e . 

Q. You cannot f l o o d i t w i t h o u t p l u g g i n g the w e l l s 

t h a t you're not u s i n g as e i t h e r i n j e c t i o n or producing w e l l s i n 
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the f l o o d ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. The w e l l bores t h a t we w i l l not u t i l i z e t o pursue 

a w a t e r f l o o d w i l l be plugged; however, t h e r e are several i n 

t h a t u n i t t h a t we want t o u t i l i z e . 

Q. Okay. 

A. To reimplement the w a t e r f l o o d . 

Q. Well, e s s e n t i a l l y , what I'm saying i s t h a t you 

have t o do something t o every w e l l out t h e r e , c o r r e c t ? You 

e i t h e r have t o place i t on i n j e c t i o n , place i t on p r o d u c t i o n , 

or plug i t . 

A. Yes, s i r . A b s o l u t e l y . 

Q. And t h a t ' s going t o cost money. 

A. Yes. 

Q. At f i v e w e l l s a q u a r t e r , how long w i l l i t take 

you t o get the -- l e t ' s j u s t use 90 — w e l l s t h a t need t o be 

addressed? How long w i l l t h a t take? 

A. Well, they're not a l l i n t h a t u n i t . Those 90 

w e l l s are s p l i t between f o u r d i f f e r e n t u n i t s . 

Q. But you're only p l a n n i n g t o f l o o d one u n i t --

A. One a t a time. 

Q. One at a time? 

A. Yes. 

Q. But you i n t e n d t o f l o o d a l l the u n i t s ? 

A. The ones t h a t we t h i n k the upside i s t h e r e . No, 

not a l l of them. We won't f l o o d the Crosby, the Gregory. 
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We'll f l o o d probably the West Pearl, the East P e a r l , the South 

Pe a r l . 

Q. Have you had -- so 3/4s of the u n i t s and a l l the 

b i g u n i t s you're going t o have t o fl o o d ? 

A. We can reimplement the f l o o d . There's other 

options t h e r e . 

Q. Okay. Have you had an e n g i n e e r i n g f i r m look a t 

i t and make those estimates? 

A. There have been several s t u d i e s over the years 

t h a t ' s been done t h e r e . We're s t i l l i n the process of working 

w i t h engineers. We're s e r i o u s l y c o n s i d e r i n g polymer. 

Q. But polymer i s expensive. 

A. Polymer i s very expensive. 

Q. How are you going t o do t h a t on the cash flow 

t h a t you're g e n e r a t i n g now? 

A. Well, you got t o s t a r t somewhere, and t h a t ' s 

where R e s i l i e n t i s going t o come i n and f u r n i s h c a p i t a l f o r us 

t o do s t u f f l i k e t h i s . Yeah, polymer i s expensive. 

Q. Now, I may have asked t h i s q u e s t i o n , but I've got 

t o go back through i t again. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. The ownership of R e s i l i e n t i s Mr. F i e l d e r and you 

i n the f u t u r e , and t h a t ' s p a r t of your agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. So, i n essence, you're t r a d i n g a percentage --
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since no money i s t r a d i n g hands -- you're t r a d i n g your 

ownership i n X e r i c f o r ownership i n R e s i l i e n t --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. -- who i n t u r n w i l l own a l l of Xeric? R e s i l i e n t 

w i l l own a l l of Xeric? 

A. Yes, yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Folks, I'm going t o have t o step 

out f o r j u s t a minute. I ' l l be r i g h t back. 

[Discussion o f f the record.] 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the r e c o r d . 

We w i l l continue Case No. 13957 u n t i l the 

March 12, 2009 docket. 

Case No. 14149 t o the March 12, 2009 docket. 

Case No. 14150 t o the March, 2009 docket. 

Case No. 14124 was remanded t o the Examiner Hearing 

docket. 

Case No. 14145 has been dismissed. 

Case No. 14134 continued t o the A p r i l 9, 2009 docket. 

Case No. 14141 continued t o the A p r i l 9, 2009 docket. 

Case No. 14278 t o the A p r i l 9, 2009 Commission 

meeting docket. 

At t h i s time, Ms. Altomare, you have some fo l l o w - u p 

questions f o r t h i s witness? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. I ' l l t r y t o be b r i e f t o f o l l o w 

up on the -- some of the questions from the Commissioners. 
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RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Have you made any i n q u i r i e s r e g a r d i n g the 

p o s s i b i l i t y of u t i l i z i n g a s u r e t y company or a bank t o post the 

bonds i n t h i s case? 

A. I have not, p e r s o n a l l y . 

Q. Do you know i f Mr. H i r s c h f e l d has? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. You repeatedly s t a t e d t h a t you r e l i e d on 

Mr. C o l l i e r ' s experience, and once he l e f t , you b a s i c a l l y f e l t 

l i k e you had been l e f t w i t h o u t guidance i n New Mexico. 

You d i d p r e t t y much from the get-go have counsel i n 

New Mexico; i s t h a t r i g h t ? Legal counsel? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. You i n d i c a t e d t h a t Mr. C o l l i e r had a 

h i s t o r y here i n New Mexico, and t h a t i t was your impression i t 

was a good one. Did you ever f o l l o w up w i t h OCD or w i t h anyone 

else i n i n d u s t r y t o see what h i s h i s t o r y was here i n 

New Mexico? 

A. Yes. I had asked around about him and h i s 

experience i n New Mexico. 

Q. So d i d you co n f i r m w i t h the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Not w i t h the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , no. I 

was more i n t e r e s t e d i n some of h i s t a l e n t s , so 
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Q. Okay. You've i n d i c a t e d t h a t the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n wants you t o post these bonds. You understand t h a t 

i t ' s not an issue of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n wanting you 

to post i t , but r a t h e r a requirement, a p r e r e q u i s i t e i n order 

f o r your company t o continue o p e r a t i n g i n t h i s s t a t e ? 

A. I am now. 

Q. And i t i s a requirement t h a t ' s imposed on a l l 

other o p e r a t o r s . 

A. Okay. 

Q. At the l a s t h earing, you t e s t i f i e d t h a t you were 

the v i c e p r e s i d e n t once Mr. C o l l i e r had l e f t and t h a t 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d was the p r e s i d e n t . Do you r e c a l l t h a t ? 

A. I don't r e c a l l . 

Q. Would t h a t s u r p r i s e you t h a t f o r a p e r i o d of time 

Mr. H i r s c h f e l d was i d e n t i f i e d as the p r e s i d e n t of Xeric? 

A. Probably. No, i t wouldn't s u r p r i s e me. 

MS. ALTOMARE: For b r e v i t y ' s sake, I won't reference 

the testimony, but i t i s i n the t r a n s c r i p t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The testimony w i l l stand f o r 

i t s e l f . 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Okay. You have i n d i c a t e d 

t h a t R e s i l i e n t has the cap a c i t y t o b r i n g an i n f l u x of money 

which you pl a n t o rework the w e l l s . Do you pl a n t o use any of 

t h a t money a t a l l t o post bonds? 

A. That's p a r t of our d i s c u s s i o n , yes. 
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Q. Has t h a t been discussed i n any d e t a i l w i t h 

R e s i l i e n t ? 

A. Not -- no. 

Q. And f i n a l l y , w i t h regard t o the w a t e r f l o o d , do 

you understand t h a t even though you pl a n t o do i t on a 

u n i t - b y - u n i t b a s i s , t h a t i n order t o get permission f o r a 

wa t e r f l o o d , you have t o be i n f u l l compliance w i t h OCD ru l e s ? 

A l l of the f i n a n c i a l assurances have t o be posted, 

and you cannot be i n v i o l a t i o n o f the i n a c t i v e w e l l r u l e s i n 

order t o get permission t o get the w a t e r f l o o d approved and the 

i n j e c t i o n --

A. You had explained t h a t , I t h i n k , a t a previous 

hearing. 

Q. So i n order t o get the w a t e r f l o o d p r o j e c t 

launched, you'd have t o be i n f u l l compliance before t h a t 

s t a r t e d . 

A. A b s o l u t e l y . You also i n d i c a t e d t h a t we weren't 

e n t i t l e d t o any k i n d o f d r i l l i n g p ermits or whatever. We 

understand t h a t . We understand we got a mess. 

Q. Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Munds-Dry, do you have 

anything f u r t h e r ? 

MS. MUNDS-DRY: No f u r t h e r questions f o r t h i s 

witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything f u r t h e r from the 
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Commission? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. St. John, thank you 

very much. 

Again, we w i l l reconvene tomorrow morning a t 10:00. 

We w i l l begin our d e l i b e r a t i o n s i n Case No. 14255, the Santa Fe 

County r u l e s . 

We w i l l also continue w i t h the docket i n t h i s case. 

I don't expect t o s t a r t before 11:00 tomorrow. I imagine i f 

something were t o come up, we could probably take as long as we 

had t o on the o t h e r d e l i b e r a t i o n s , because I don't t h i n k we 

w i l l f i n i s h b e fore we continue t h i s case. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I w i l l be back here as soon as 

po s s i b l e and make myself a v a i l a b l e t o counsel and the 

Commission as w e l l . 

I apologize, and I appreciate the f l e x i b i l i t y . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And I apologize t o everybody who 

was here. I'm s o r r y t h a t I have t o go. We'll see you 

tomorrow. 

[Hearing concluded.] 

* * * 
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